Three-Dimensional Time Dependent Computation of Turbulent Flow

÷

by

(NASA-CE-143347) DEPENDENT COMPUTA (Stanford Univ.)

COMPUTATICN

THRFE-DIMENSIONAL OF TUREULENT

L TIME FLCW CSCL

N75-30477

135

134

р HC

\$5.75

20 D

G3/34

Unclas 34235

4

D. Kwak W. C. Reynolds and J. H. Ferziger

Prepared from work done under Grant NASA-NgR-05-020-622



Report No. TF-5

Thermosciences Division **Department of Mechanical Engineering Stanford University** Stanford, California

May 1975

REPRODUCED BY NATIONAL TECHNICAL INFORMATION SERVICE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE SPRINGFIELD, VA. 22161

THREE-DIMENSIONAL TIME DEPENDENT COMPUTATION OF TURBULENT FLOW

Ъу

D. Kwak, W. C. Reynolds, and J. H. Ferziger

Prepared from work done under Grant NASA-NgR-05-020-622

Report No. TF-5

Thermosciences Division Department of Mechanical Engineering Stanford University Stanford, California

May, 1975

ABSTRACT

The three-dimensional, primitive equations of motion have been solved numerically for the case of isotropic box turbulence and the distortion of homogeneous turbulence by irrotational plane strain at large Reynolds numbers. A Gaussian filter was applied to governing equations to define the large scale field. This gives rise to additional second order computed scale stresses (Leonard stresses). The residual stresses are simulated through an eddy viscosity. 16x16x16 and 32x32x32 uniform grids were used, with a fourth order differencing scheme in space and a second order Adams-Bashforth predictor for explicit time stepping. The results were compared to the experiments and statistical information was extracted from the computer generated data.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The authors gratefully acknowledge the useful comments of Drs. A. Leonard, M. Rubesin, H. Lomax and Mr. S. Shaanan. We appreciate Ms Nancy Silvis for the speedy typing of the final copy.

This work was sponsored by NASA Ames Research Center under Grant NASA-NgR-05-020-622.

iv

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	rag
Abstract	
Acknowle	igments
Table of	Contents
List of	figures
Nomencla	ure
Chapter	
-	.1 Historical Background
	.2 Motivation and Objectives
	.3 Summary of the Results
0	
Chapter	1. THEORETICAL FOUNDATIONS
	.1 Definition of the Filtered and Residual Fields 4
	2.2 The Dynamical Equations 6
	3.3 Filter Selection
	.4 Residual Stress Models
	.5 Governing Equations for the Filtered Field
Chapter	II. NUMERICAL METHOD
	.1 Grid Layout and Notation
	.2 Space Differencing
	3 DG Operator 16
	4 Transport Difference Operator
	5 Time Differencing
	6 Prossure Field Solution
	./ Summary of Difference Equations
Chapter 3	V. DECAY OF ISOTROPIC TURBULENCE
	.1 Problem Description
	.2 The Benchmark Experiment
	.3 Mesh Size Selection
	.4 Initial Conditions
	.5 Boundary Conditions
	.6 Extraction of Statistical Information from the Compu-
	tation

	4.7	Selection of the Averaging Scale		•	•	•	•	•	29
	4.8	Selection of C_{x} and C_{y}		•	٠	•	•	•	30
	4.9	Energetics of the Filtered Field		٠	•	•	•	•	31
	4.10	Other Aspects	••	•	•	•	•	•	32
	4.11	Computational Details	••	•	•	•	•	•	33
Chapter	v. 1	DISTORTION OF HOMOGENEOUS TURBULENCE BY IRROT	ΓΑΤ	101	IAL	,			
	H	PLANE STRAIN	• •	•	•	•	٠	•	35
	5.1	Problem Description	•	•	•	•	•	•	35
	5.2	Governing Equations	••	•	•	•	•	•	36
	5.3	Anisotropic Initial Condition		٠	•	•	•	•	39
	5.4	Results	• •	•	•	•	•	•	41
	5.5	Energetics of the Filtered Field	• •	•	•	•	•	•	43
	5.6	Assessment of Turbulence Closure Models	• •	•	•	•	•	•	43
Chapter	VI.	CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS		•	•	•	•	•	46
Figures	•••	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		•	•	•	•	•	48
Appendix	κΙ.	On the Conservative Space Differencing Schem	ne	•	•	•	•	•	84
Appendia	c II.	Flow Charts and Program	, .	•	•	•	•	•	90
Referenc	es .			•	•	• .	•	.1	.22

Page

ż

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure		Page
2.1	Gaussian filter	48
2.2	Filtered energy spectra, $\overline{E}(k,t)$	49
3.1	Comparison of modified wave numbers	50
3.2	Comparison of DIV(GRAD) operator	51
4.1	Sketch of wind tunnel test section for a generation of iso- tropic flow	52
4.2	Determination of A or B vector	53
4.3	Unfiltered initial energy spectrum	54
4.4	Evolution of energy spectra: 16 x 16 x 16 mesh: Smagorinsky model: $\Delta_A = 0$	55
4.5	Filtered energy spectra: 16 x 16 x 16 mesh: Smagorinsky model: $\Delta_A = \Delta$	56
4.6	Filtered energy spectra - a comparison of Smagorinsky and vorticity model 16 x 16 x 16 mesh: $\Delta_A = 2\Delta \dots \dots$	57
4.7	Filtered energy spectra - effect of Leonard term: 16 x 16 x 16 mesh: vorticity model: $\Delta_A = 2\Delta$	58
4.8	Filtered energy spectra: 32 x 32 x 32 mesh: Smagorinsky model: $\Delta_A = 2\Delta$	59
4.9	Sensitivity of filtered mean square velocity decay rate to Smagorinsky model constant, $c : 16 \times 16 \times 16$ mesh: $\Delta_A = 2\Delta \dots $	60
4.10	Decay of mean square filtered velocity: 16 x 16 x 16 mesh: $\Delta_A = 2\Delta$	61
4.11	Decay of mean square filtered velocity: 32 x 32 x 32 mesh: Smagorinsky model: $\Delta_A = 2\Delta$	62
4.12	Skewness: 16 x 16 x 16 mesh \ldots \ldots \ldots	63
4.13	Comparison of skewness	64
4.14	Components of dissipation	65
5.1a	Schematic of wind tunnel producing constant rate of strain in x-y plane	66
5.1b	Equivalent representation of the plane strain in a box $$.	66
5.2	Tucker-Reynolds flow: turbulent intensities	67
5.3	Tucker-Reynolds flow: turbulent energy ratios	68
5.4	Tucker-Reynolds flow: change in structural parameter, K_1^{-1} .	69
5.5	Simulation of the Tucker-Reynolds flow: turbulent inten- sities (anisotropic initial condition)	70

٦.

Figure

5.6	Simulation of the Tucker-Reynolds flow: turbulent en- ergy ratios under the plane strain and the return to isotropy in parallel flow (anisotropic initial con- dition)	71
5.7	Simulation of the Tucker-Reynolds flow: change in struc- tural parameter, K ₁ (anisotropic initial condition)	72
5.8	Simulation of the Tucker-Reynolds flow: turbulent inten- sities (isotropic initial condition)	73
5.9	Simulation of the Tucker-Reynolds flow: turbulent en- ergy ratios under the plane strain and the return to iso- tropy in parallel flow (isotropic initial condition)	74
5.10	Simulation of the Tucker-Reynolds flow: change in struc- tural parameter, K _l (isotropic initial condition)	75
5.11a,b,c	One dimensional energy spectra (isotropic initial con- dition)	76
5.12a,b,c	One dimensional energy spectra	79
5.13	Filtered energy balance	82
5.14	Comparison of the pressure-strain correlations	83

Page

NOMENCLATURE

A,B	=	random unit vectors
A	=	constant in Rotta's model
C S	=	constant in the Smagorinsky model
C,	=	constant in the vorticity model
D	8	finite difference form of divergence operator
^D ij	Ξ	$2\nu < \frac{\partial u_1}{\partial x_k} \frac{\partial u_1}{\partial x_k} >$
E	-	three-dimensional energy spectrum
E ₁₁	=	one-dimensional energy spectrum
$\overline{\mathbf{E}}, \overline{\mathbf{E}}_{11}$		filtered spectra
ê, ^Ē , ê	=	unit vecotrs in x-, y-, and z-direction
F ₁	æ	i-component of forcing term due to the mean strain
F,	8	finite difference form of F ₁
f	8	a general field variable; \overline{f} = filtered field component; f' = residual field component
G	8	filter function; finite difference form of gradient operator
^g 1	=	RHS of Poisson equation for pressure; \tilde{g}_1 finite difference form
H	8	heaviside step function
к ₁	Ξ	$(\langle \overline{v}^2 \rangle - \langle \overline{u}^2 \rangle)/(\langle \overline{v}^2 \rangle + \langle \overline{u}^2 \rangle)$, structural parameter
k ₁	=	wave number in i-direction
k.i	8	modified wave number in i-direction (fourth order); k" (second order)
۶ ²	=	finite difference form of ∇^2 operator
L	Ξ	N Δ , computational box size; length scale of large eddies
М	-	grid size of turbulence generator in experiments
N	=	number of finite difference mesh points in one direction
Nc	Ξ	$\Delta t \sqrt{q^3/3} / \Delta$ for isotropic turbulence;
	Ξ	$\Delta t \sqrt{U_{max} + q^3/3} / \Delta$ for straining flow
P	≣	$p + \frac{1}{3} R_{ii}$; imposed pressure field

Θ	æ	production term
\mathcal{P}_{L}	=	Leonard production term
р	8	pressure
q ²	Ξ	<u>u</u> iu
R	8	degree of anisotropy
R _T	Ξ	qL/v
R _{ij}	Ξ	$\overline{u_{i}^{\prime}u_{j}^{\prime}} + \overline{u_{i}^{\prime}\overline{u_{j}}} + \overline{u_{j}^{\prime}\overline{u_{i}}}$, residual stress
s _{ij}	Ξ	$\frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\partial u_{i}}{\partial x_{j}} + \frac{\partial \overline{u}_{j}}{\partial x_{i}} \right)$
Lij	Ξ	$\frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\partial U_{i}}{\partial x_{j}} + \frac{\partial U_{j}}{\partial x_{i}} \right)$
^T ij	Ξ	$\langle p\left(\frac{\partial u_{i}}{\partial x_{j}}+\frac{\partial u_{j}}{\partial x_{i}}\right) \rangle$; $(T_{ij})_{c}$ = computed; $(T_{ij})_{m}$ = Rotta's
		model; (T _{ij}) _R obtained from R _{ij} history
t	=	time
ບູ	=	free stream velocity in x-direction
U	•	i-components imposed mean velocity
u_i	=	i-components fluctuating velocity; \overline{u}_{i} = filtered field component; u'_{i} = residual field component; \hat{u}_{i} = Fourier transformed u_{i} ; \underline{u} = vector notation
δ/δ _x , δ/δ _t	=	finite difference form of $\frac{\partial}{\partial \mathbf{r}}$, $\frac{\partial}{\partial t}$
ε	8	energy dissipation; ε_{R} = residual fields contribution; ε_{L} = Leonard terms contribution
Φ	-	spectrum function
φ,θ	=	random angle
ν	=	μ/ ho , kinematic viscosity
ν _T	₽,	eddy viscosity
ρ	=	fluid density
Г	-	constant strain-rate
Ŷ	=	constant in Gaussian filter function
η	=	Kolmogorov microscale
ω	=	filtered vorticity, curl u
$\Delta_{\mathbf{A}}$	8	averaging length scale

x

Δ	-	computational mesh width
< >	-	ensemble average in real space; shell average in wave-number space
Superscripts		
(n)	8	time step

Subscripts

(k, l, m)

= computational mesh number index

CHAPTER I

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Historical Background

As computer capabilities grow, the three-dimensional time-dependent computation of turbulence is becoming possible. However, the retention of all scales of motion is not yet feasible (and probably never will be), so the best one can hope for is the simulation of the large scale structures. The large scale structures are strongly dependent upon the nature of the flow, but there is considerable evidence that the structure of the smaller scales is independent of the large scale structure. This suggests a mixed approach in which one computes the large scale motions and models the small scales.

To define the large scale motions, some sort of averaging operator has to be applied to the governing equations to filter out the small scale motions. However, in three-dimensional computations to date, the definition of the small scale motions was not precisely related to the filtering operation and consequently the meaning of those motions was not very clear. In any case, the resulting equations for the filtered field contain so-called sub-grid scale or residual scale Reynolds stresses, which must be modeled in the computation.

Two distinctive solution methods have been used in solving the resulting equations. The first is a conventional finite difference mesh calculation. In this approach, the simplest and perhaps the most usual way of relating the residual scale turbulence to the filtered motion is by a local eddy viscosity model. Smagorinsky (1963, 1965) related eddy viscosity to the local strain-rate of the filtered field. Deardorff (1970a,b) applied this model to three-dimensional turbulent channel flow and planetary boundary layer problems, and Schumann (1973) applied it to plane channels and annuli. Deardorff (1973) and Schumann later introduced more sophisticated residual Reynolds stress transport equations. Other examples of this approach are given by Lilly (1964, 1967), Smagorinsky et al (1965), Fox and Lilly (1972), Fox and Deardorff (1972). Previous work mentioned above has not paid sufficient attention to the basic

1

aspects of this type of simulation, so as yet this approach has not really progressed very far.

The second approach is the spectral (Fourier) method much advocated by Orszag (1969, 1971a,b). While this method has mathematically attractive features for certain problems, it is generally more difficult to extend to flows with interesting geometries. Moreover, work to date ignored the residual Reynolds stresses, and it is not clear how these could be incorporated in a Fourier calculation.

1.2 Motivation and Objectives

At the time this work was initiated there were some serious problems with work done previously:

- There was a need to define the large-scale field precisely, so that the equations can be systematically developed.
- (2) There was a need to carefully evaluate the accuracy requirements to be sure that computational errors are higher order than the residual stresses.
- (3) There was a need to carefully assess just what can really be learned from this type of turbulence simulation.

The main objective of this study was to carefully develop a numerical simulation method for turbulent flows away from solid or free boundaries, and to apply this method to study decaying isotropic turbulence and homogeneous turbulence with irrotational plane strain.

The present study is one in a systematic program investigating large eddy simulation of turbulence, and reports the details of the initial computations under this program.

1.3 Summary

The contribution of the present work includes

- (a) a precise definition for the large-scale field (after Leonard (1973)),
- (b) a study of the optimum averaging scale, as compared to the grid mesh scale,
- (c) a study of two residual stress models, and evaluation of the model constant for each,

2

- (d) a demonstration that the model constant is independent of mesh size,
- (e) a fourth-order differencing scheme that properly conserves energy and momentum,
- (f) a method for calculating the pressure so as to conserve mass at subsequent time steps,
- (g) a demonstration that a coarse mesh can be used to obtain surprisingly good predictions for the Reynolds stresses in a straining flow,
- (h) an evaluation of certain aspects of simple turbulence closure models.

Although many questions have been answered by this work, new ones have been raised. Suggestions for follow-on work in this project are made in Chapter VI.

Chapter II

Theoretical Foundations

2.1 Definition of the Filtered and Residual Fields

To resolve the smallest scales of turbulence in a grid-based calculation, the mesh size has to be smaller than the dissipation length, which is on the order of the Kolmogorov microscale, $\eta = (v^3/\epsilon)^{1/4}$. Here v is the kinematic viscosity and ϵ is the energy dissipation rate per unit mass. It is known that (see Tennekes and Lumley 1972) $\epsilon \simeq q^3/L$ where q is the R.M.S. velocity and L is the length scale of large eddies. Thus the minimum number of mesh points that must be used in a three-dimensional grid computation that resolves both the large and small scales can be estimated as

$$N = \left(\frac{L}{\eta}\right)^3 = \left(\frac{qL}{\nu}\right)^{9/4} = R_T^{9/4}$$

Using this estimate, we find that an R_T of 10^3 , typical of turbulent flows, would require 2×10^7 worlds of storage for four variables. This is approximately 50 times the Large Core Memory of the CDC 7600, and about 10 times the available memory of the ILLIAC IV disk.

It is clear that one can not do a full simulation, except at extremely low Reynolds number. The best one can hope for is a computation that will yield the large-scale motions. Fortunately these contain most of the turbulence energy, and are responsible for most of the turbulent transport, and so a large-eddy simulation technique would be very useful, especially if it could handle arbitrary flows.

The first problem one faces is in defining the large scale field. Conventionally the large scale motions have been defined by volumeaveraging in a continuous manner over computational grid boxes (e.g. Deardorff 1970a). Schumann (1973, 1974) applied a slightly different technique involving averaging over the surface of grid boxes.

A more general approach that recognizes the continuous nature of the flow variables is the "filter function" approach of Leonard (1973). Let $f(\underline{x})$ denote a field variable, for example velocity. f may contain

4

large and very small components. Then, we define the filtered field \overline{f} by

$$\overline{f}(\underline{x}) = \int G(\underline{x}-\underline{x}') f(\underline{x}') d\underline{x}' \qquad (2.1a)$$

where G is a selected filter function. For $\overline{C} = C$, where C is a constant, the filter G must satisfy

$$\int G(\underline{x}) d\underline{x} = 1 \qquad (2.1b)$$

Now f can be decomposed into its filtered field (FF) component, \overline{f} , and residual-field (RF) components, f', by

$$f = \overline{f} + f' \tag{2.2}$$

Note that f is <u>not</u> the conventional mean used in the classic-turbulence literature.

In the present work we treat only flows that are homogeneous, for which the integration in (2.1) extends over all space. Careful consideration will have to be given to the domain of integration when one desires to treat a flow near a wall.

Now note that, if G is piecewise continuously differentiable and G(r) goes to zero as $r \rightarrow \infty$ at least as fast as $1/r^4$,

$$\overline{\frac{\partial f}{\partial \underline{x}}} = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} G(\underline{x} - \underline{x}') \frac{\partial f}{\partial \underline{x}}, d\underline{x}'$$

$$= \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} f(\underline{x}') \frac{\partial}{\partial \underline{x}}, G(\underline{x} - \underline{x}') d\underline{x}'$$

$$= \frac{\partial}{\partial \underline{x}} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} G(\underline{x} - \underline{x}') f(\underline{x}') d\underline{x}'$$

$$= \frac{\partial}{\partial \underline{x}} \overline{f}$$
 (2.3a)

$$\frac{\partial f}{\partial t} = \frac{\partial f}{\partial t}$$
 (2.3b)

Also,

However,

$$\overline{fg} \neq \overline{fg}$$
 (2.3c)

2.2 The Dynamical Equations

Applying (2.1) to the Navier-Stokes equations, and using (2.2) and (2.3), one obtains (for incompressible flows)

$$\frac{\partial u_1}{\partial x_1} = 0 \qquad (2.4)$$

$$\frac{\partial \overline{u}_{1}}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} \frac{\overline{u}_{1} u_{j}}{u_{1} u_{j}} = -\frac{1}{\rho} \frac{\partial \overline{p}}{\partial x_{1}} + \nu \nabla^{2} \overline{u}_{1}$$
(2.5)

The advection term is

$$\overline{u_{i}u_{j}} (\underline{x}_{0},t) = \overline{u_{i}\overline{u}_{j}} + \overline{u_{i}'\overline{u}_{j}} + \overline{u_{i}'u_{j}'} + \overline{u_{i}'u_{j}'}$$

$$= \overline{\overline{u_{i}\overline{u}_{j}}} + R_{ij} \qquad (2.6)$$

where

$$R_{ij} = \overline{u_i'u_j'} + \overline{u_i'\overline{u}_j} + \overline{\overline{u}_i'u_j'}$$

 $R_{\mbox{ij}}$ is the residual field contribution to the advection term. $-\rho R_{\mbox{ij}}$ is called the "residual stress."

To localize the first term on the right in (2.6) we carry out a Taylor series expansion,

$$\overline{\overline{u_{i}}\overline{u_{j}}} (\underline{x}_{0},t) = \int G(\underline{x}_{0}-\underline{x}) \ \overline{u_{i}}\overline{u_{j}}(\underline{x}) \ d\underline{x}$$

$$= \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \left\{ \overline{u_{i}}(\underline{x}_{0},t) + \frac{\partial \overline{u_{i}}}{\partial x_{k}} (x_{k}-x_{k0}) + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2}\overline{u_{i}}}{\partial x_{k}\partial x_{k}} (x_{k}-x_{k0}) (x_{k}-x_{k0}) \right\}$$

$$+ 0(x-x_{0})^{3} \left\} = \left\{ \overline{u_{j}} (\underline{x}_{0},t) + \frac{\partial \overline{u_{j}}}{\partial x_{k}} (x_{k}-x_{k0}) + \frac{\partial \overline{u_{j}}}{\partial x_{k}} (x_{k}-x_{k0}) + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2}\overline{u_{j}}}{\partial x_{k}\partial x_{k}} (x_{k}-x_{k0}) + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2}\overline{u_{j}}}{\partial x_{k}} (x_{k}-x_{k$$

6

For the above filtering of the dynamical equations to be useful, the integrals in (2.7) must exist. This requires that $G(r) \rightarrow 0$ exponentially as $r \rightarrow \infty$.

2.3 Filter Selection

(a) <u>Sub-Grid-Scale filter</u>

Let us first seek a filter that makes the scales of motion in the residual field smaller than the scales in the filtered field, in the Fourier sense. Let

$$f = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \hat{f}(\underline{k}) e^{\underline{i}\underline{k}\cdot\underline{x}} d\underline{k} \qquad (2.8)$$

Then,

$$\overline{f} = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \widehat{f}(\underline{k}) \ G(\underline{x}-\underline{x}') \ e^{\underline{i}\underline{k}\cdot\underline{x}'} \ d\underline{x}' \ d\underline{k}$$
(2.9)

We want to have \overline{f} contain all scales larger than a cut-off scale. Thus we want +k

$$\overline{f} = \int_{-k_{c}}^{+k_{c}} \widehat{f}(\underline{k}) e^{\underline{i}\underline{k}\cdot\underline{x}} d\underline{k}$$
(2.10)

where k_c is the cut-off wave number. Hence, we can write

$$\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} H(k) \ \hat{f}(\underline{k}) \ e^{\underline{i}\underline{k}\cdot\underline{x}} \ d\underline{k} = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \ \hat{f}(\underline{k}) \ \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} G(\underline{x}-\underline{x}') \ e^{\underline{i}\underline{k}\cdot\underline{x}'} \ d\underline{x}' \ d\underline{k}$$
(2.11a)

where

$$H(k;k_{c}) = \begin{cases} 0 & \text{if } k_{i} > k_{c} & \text{for any i} \\ 1 & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$
(2.11b)

So we have an integral equation for G,

$$H(k;k_{c}) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} G(\underline{x}-\underline{x}') e^{ik(\underline{x}'-\underline{x})} d\underline{x}' \qquad (2.12)$$

The solution to (2.12) is

$$G(\underline{\mathbf{x}}-\underline{\mathbf{x}}') = \prod_{i=1}^{3} \frac{\sin \pi(\mathbf{x}_{i}-\mathbf{x}_{i}')/\Delta_{A}}{\pi(\mathbf{x}_{i}-\mathbf{x}_{i}')}$$
(2.13)

where $\Delta_A = \pi/k_c$ is the averaging or filtering length scale. This is the proper filter if one wishes to have the residual field really be "sub-grid scale." A grid-based computation made using this filter would be equivalent to a Fourier computation.

The second moment of G involves integrals like

$$\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \frac{x^2 \sin(\pi x/\Delta_A)}{\pi x} dx \qquad (2.14)$$

This integral does not exist, and hence the expansion (2.7) could not be used. This filter is not suitable for a grid-based numerical method; hence one can not expect to really have the residual field be sub-grid scale.

(b) Top-hat filter

The filter used implicitly by many workers is the top-hat,

$$G(\underline{\mathbf{x}}-\underline{\mathbf{x}}') = \begin{cases} 1/\Delta_{\underline{\mathbf{A}}} & \text{for } |\underline{\mathbf{x}}-\underline{\mathbf{x}}'| < \frac{\Delta_{\underline{\mathbf{A}}}}{2} \\ 0 & |\underline{\mathbf{x}}-\underline{\mathbf{x}}'| \geq \frac{\Delta_{\underline{\mathbf{A}}}}{2} \end{cases}$$
(2.15)

Then the filtered velocity is

$$\underline{\underline{u}}(\underline{x}) = \frac{1}{\Delta_{A}^{3}} \int_{-\Delta_{A/2}}^{\Delta_{A/2}} \underline{u}(\underline{x}+\underline{\xi}) d\underline{\xi} \qquad (2.16)$$

This is equivalent to volume averaging. The Fourier transform of (2.16) is

$$\frac{\hat{\underline{u}}(\underline{k})}{\underline{\underline{u}}(\underline{k})} = \frac{1}{\Delta_{A}^{3}} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \int_{-\Delta_{A/2}}^{\Delta_{A/2}} \underline{\underline{u}}(\underline{x}+\underline{\xi}) e^{-\underline{k}\cdot\underline{x}} d\underline{x}d\underline{\xi}$$

$$= \frac{1}{\Delta_{A}^{3}} \int_{-\Delta_{A/2}}^{+\Delta_{A/2}} \hat{\underline{u}}(\underline{k}) e^{\underline{i}\underline{k}\cdot\underline{\xi}} d\underline{\xi}$$

$$= \left\{ \frac{3}{\Pi} \frac{\sin(k_{1}\Delta_{A/2})}{k_{1} \Delta_{A/2}} \right\} \underline{\underline{u}}(\underline{k}) \qquad (2.17)$$

Here $\hat{u}(\underline{k})$ is the Fourier transform of \underline{u} .

Equation (2.17) shows that the spectrum of the filtered field will contain components of all wave-numbers. Moreover, at the wave-numbers for which the coefficient of $\underline{\hat{u}}(\underline{k})$ in (2.17) is zero, the inverse transform will be singular. This makes it impossible to predict the actual spectrum $\underline{\hat{u}}(\underline{k})$ from the filtered spectrum $\underline{\hat{u}}(\underline{k})$, and this very undesirable feature of the top-hat filter renders it useless if we want to compute spectral features with a grid-based method. However, the tophat filter could be used if spectral results were not sought.

Using (2.15) in (2.7), and carrying out the integration over \underline{x} ,

$$\overline{\overline{u}_{i}\overline{u}_{j}} (\underline{x}_{o},t) = \overline{\overline{u}_{i}\overline{u}_{j}}(\underline{x}_{o},t) + \frac{\Delta_{A}^{2}}{24} \nabla^{2}(\overline{\overline{u}_{i}\overline{u}_{j}}) + O(\Delta_{A}^{4})$$
(2.18)

The second term on the right is called the Leonard term; $-\rho \Delta_A^2 \nabla^2 (\bar{u}_1 \bar{u}_j)/24$ is called the "Leonard stress." As will be shown later, $R_{ij} = O(\Delta_A^2)$ and $\Delta_A = O(\Delta)$. So both the residual stresses and the Leonard stresses have to be included; moreover, the computational difference scheme must be accurate to $O(\Delta^2)$ to avoid introduction of numerical errors comparable with these stresses.

(c) <u>Gaussain filter</u>

A filter with much more desirable properties is

$$G(\underline{\mathbf{x}}-\underline{\mathbf{x}}') = \left\{ \sqrt{\frac{\Upsilon}{\pi}} \frac{1}{\Delta_{A}} \right\}^{3} \exp \left\{ -\gamma(\underline{\mathbf{x}}-\underline{\mathbf{x}}')^{2}/\Delta_{A}^{2} \right\}$$
(2.19)

where γ is a constant. Then the filtered velocity is

$$\underline{\underline{u}}(\underline{x}) = \left(\sqrt{\frac{\Upsilon}{\pi}} \frac{1}{\Delta_{A}}\right)^{3} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \underline{\underline{u}}(\underline{x}') e^{-\Upsilon(\underline{x}-\underline{x}')^{2}/\Delta_{A}^{2}} d\underline{x}' \qquad (2.20)$$

The Fourier transform of this is

$$\frac{\hat{\underline{u}}(\underline{x})}{\underline{u}(\underline{x})} = \left(\sqrt{\frac{Y}{\pi}} \frac{1}{\Delta_{A}}\right)^{3} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \underline{u}(\underline{x}+\underline{\xi}) e^{-i\underline{k}\cdot\underline{x}} e^{-\gamma |\underline{\xi}^{2}/\Delta_{A}^{2}|} d\underline{x} d\underline{\xi}$$

$$= \left(\sqrt{\frac{Y}{\pi}} \frac{1}{\Delta_{A}}\right)^{3} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \underline{\hat{u}}(\underline{k}) e^{i\underline{k}\cdot\underline{\xi}} e^{-\gamma |\underline{\xi}^{2}/\Delta_{A}^{2}|} d\underline{\xi}$$

$$= \left(\sqrt{\frac{Y}{\pi}} \frac{1}{\Delta_{A}}\right)^{3} \underline{\hat{u}}(\underline{k}) \exp\left\{-\frac{1}{4} \frac{\Delta_{A}^{2}}{\gamma} (k_{1}^{2} + k_{2}^{2} + k_{3}^{3})\right\}$$

$$= \underline{\hat{u}}(\underline{k}) \exp\left(-\frac{\Delta_{A}^{2}}{4\gamma} k^{2}\right) \qquad (2.21)$$

Consider now the three-dimensional energy spectra of the actual and filtered fields:

$$E(k) = 2\pi k^{2} < \underline{\hat{u}}(\underline{k}) \cdot \underline{\hat{u}}^{*}(\underline{k}) > \qquad (2.22a)$$

$$\overline{E}(k) = 2\pi k^2 < \underline{\underline{\hat{u}}}(\underline{k}) \cdot \underline{\underline{\hat{u}}}^*(\underline{k}) > \qquad (2.22b)$$

Here < > denotes an average over an ensemble of experiments, and * denotes a complex conjugate. Equations (2.21) and (2.22) show that

$$\overline{E}(k) = E(k) \exp\left(-\frac{\Delta_A^2}{2\gamma} k^2\right) \qquad (2.23)$$

We see that the use of the Gaussian filter will result in a filtered field that misses only a very small amount of large scale motion; most of the small scale motions are placed in the residual field. Thus, in many respects this filter has the desirable properties of the sub-gridscale filter. However, its behavior at $r \rightarrow \infty$ makes the integrals in (2.7) exist. Moreover, the conversion back and forth between the spectrum of the filtered field and the spectrum of the actual field is easily accomplished, and hence the Gaussian filter is perferable to the top-hat filter. Using (2.19) and (2.7), one obtains

$$\overline{\overline{u}_{i}\overline{u}_{j}} (\underline{x}_{o},t) = \overline{u}_{i}\overline{u}_{j}(\underline{x}_{o},t) + \frac{\Delta_{A}^{2}}{4\gamma} \nabla^{2}(\overline{u}_{i}\overline{u}_{j}) + 0(\Delta_{A}^{4}) \quad (2.24)$$

When $\gamma = 6$, the Leonard term in (2.24) is exactly the same as in (2.18). Hence the Gaussian filter with $\gamma = 6$ was chosen for the present study. This filter is illustrated on Fig. 2.1 and an example of \overline{E} and E relation (2.23) is shown on Fig. 2.2.

2.4 <u>Residual Stress Models</u>

The following eddy viscosity model is used for R_{ii} .

$$R_{ij} = \frac{1}{3} R_{kk} \delta_{ij} - 2v_T \overline{S}_{ij}$$
(2.25)

where

$$\overline{S}_{ij} = \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\partial \overline{u}_i}{\partial x_j} + \frac{\partial \overline{u}_j}{\partial x_i} \right)$$

is the strain-rate tensor, and $\nu_{\rm T}^{}$ is an effective viscosity associated with the residual field motions.

(a) Smagorinsky model

Smagorinsky (1963) suggested a model for $\nu^{}_{T}$,

$$v_{\rm T} = (c_{\rm S} \Delta_{\rm A})^2 (2\bar{s}_{ij} \bar{s}_{ij})^{1/2}$$
 (2.26)

where c_S is a constant. In experiments one observes a sharp separation of turbulent regions, containing vorticity and non-turbulent regions which are irrotational. A weakness of this model is that, in a non-turbulent irrotational region, v_T will have a non-zero value. This will give rise to residual stresses in the non-turbulent flow outside of a boundary layer.

11

(b) Vorticity model

A way around this drawback is to relate $\nu_{\ensuremath{T}}$ directly to vorticity. A likely possibility is

$$\omega_{\rm T} = (c_{\rm v} \Delta_{\rm A})^2 \sqrt{\bar{\omega}_{\rm i} \tilde{\omega}_{\rm i}} \qquad (2.27)$$

where $\bar{\omega} = \operatorname{curl} \bar{u}$ is the vorticity, and c_{u} is a constant.

2.5 Governing Equations for the Filtered Field

Now, neglicting the molecular viscosity term, and dropping terms of higher order than Δ_A^2 , filtered momentum equations become

$$\frac{\partial \bar{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{i}}}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{j}}} \left(\bar{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{i}} \bar{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{j}} + \frac{\Delta_{\mathbf{A}}^{2}}{24} \nabla^{2} \bar{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{i}} \bar{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{j}} - 2 \nabla_{\mathbf{T}} \bar{\mathbf{s}}_{\mathbf{i}} \right) = -\frac{\partial \mathbf{P}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{i}}} \qquad (2.28)$$

where $P = \frac{p}{\rho} + \frac{1}{3} R_{ii}$. This may be written as

h₁

$$\frac{\partial \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}}}{\partial \mathbf{t}} = \mathbf{h}_{\mathbf{i}} - \frac{\partial \mathbf{P}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{i}}} \stackrel{\Delta}{=} \mathbf{H}_{\mathbf{i}}$$
(2.29)
$$\frac{\Delta}{\mathbf{e}} - \frac{\partial}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{j}}} \left(\overline{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{i}} \overline{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{j}} + \frac{\Delta_{\mathbf{A}}^{2}}{24} \nabla^{2} \overline{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{i}} \overline{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{j}} - 2 v_{\mathbf{T}} \overline{\mathbf{s}}_{\mathbf{i}} \right)$$

where

It is in this form that we shall deal with the problem computationally. The manner in which continuity was used to fix P is discussed in the next chapter.

CHAPTER III

NUMERICAL METHOD

3.1 Grid Layout and Notation

A uniform cubic mesh is used, as sketched below. The mesh width Δ need not be the same as the averaging scale Δ_A introduced in the previous chapter.



The i-component of the filtered velocity at the nth time step is written as

where (k,l,m) is the meshpoint index for (x, y, z). We now define the following operator notations:

> $\delta/\delta x_i$ = finite difference operator corresponding to $\partial/\partial x_i$ $\delta/\delta t$ = finite difference operator corresponding to $\partial/\partial t$

G = finite difference form of gradient operator

D = finite difference form of divergence operator $\frac{\delta}{\delta x_{j}}(u_{i}f) = \text{transport operator corresponding to } \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}}(u_{i}f)$

Further details of these terms are given next.

3.2 Space Differencing

A fourth order differencing scheme is applied where fourth order accuracy is needed. Since the Leonard and residual stress terms are second order, they can be approximated by second order formula to give the same accuracy. The central difference fourth order scheme is, for example,

$$\frac{\delta \bar{u}}{\delta x} = \frac{1}{12\Delta} \left\{ \bar{u}_{(k-2)} - 8\bar{u}_{(k-1)} + 8\bar{u}_{(k+1)} - \bar{u}_{(k+2)} \right\}$$
(3.1)

For simplicity, the subscripts l and m are not shown.

Suppose we represent \overline{u} by a discrete Fourier expansion,

$$\overline{u} = \sum_{n} \hat{\overline{u}}(\underline{k}) e^{\underline{i}\underline{k} \cdot \underline{x}}$$
(3.2)

where

$$k_1 = \frac{2\pi}{N\Delta} n_1$$
 = wave number in the x_1 direction
 $n_1 = -N/2, ..., 0, 1, ..., (\frac{N}{2} - 1)$

N = Number of mesh points in one direction

The sum extends over all n_1 , n_2 , and n_3 . Substituting (3.2) in (3.1), the Fourier transform of $\delta u/\delta x$ is identified as

$$\frac{\widehat{\Delta u}}{\delta x} = \frac{1}{12\Delta} \left(e^{-i2\Delta k_1} - 8e^{-i\Delta k_1} + 8e^{i\Delta k_1} - e^{i2\Delta k_1} \right) \hat{\overline{u}}$$
$$= \frac{1}{6\Delta} \left\{ 8 \sin(\Delta k_1) - \sin(2\Delta k_1) \right\} \hat{\overline{u}}$$
(3.3)

If a modified wave number, k¦, is defined by

$$k_{i}^{\prime} \stackrel{\Delta}{=} \frac{1}{6\Delta} \left\{ 8 \sin(\Delta k_{i}) - \sin(2\Delta k_{i}) \right\}$$
(3.4)

then the Fourier transform of Du = 0 can be written as

$$k_{1}^{\prime}\hat{\overline{u}}_{1} = 0$$
 (3.5)

Note that the exact transform of div $\overline{\underline{u}}$ is $k_1 \overline{\underline{u}_1}$. Hence, k_1' may be interpreted as the wave number that allows continuity to be satisfied in grid space.

If instead one were to use a second-order central difference scheme,

$$\frac{\delta \bar{u}}{\delta x} = \frac{1}{2\Delta} \left(\bar{u}_{(k+1)} - \bar{u}_{(k-1)} \right)$$
(3.6)

The modified wave number , $k_{1}^{\prime\prime}$, would be

$$k_{i}^{"} \stackrel{\Delta}{=} \frac{1}{\Delta} \sin(\Delta k_{i}) \qquad (3.7)$$

 k_1, k'_1 and k''_i are compared in Fig. 3.1.

The fourth-order D and G operators are therefore (again only subscripts different from k, ℓ , or m are explicitly shown).

$$D(\bar{\underline{u}}) = \frac{\delta\bar{\underline{u}}}{\delta x} + \frac{\delta\bar{\underline{v}}}{\delta y} + \frac{\delta\bar{\underline{w}}}{\delta z}$$

$$= \frac{1}{12\Delta} \left\{ \bar{\underline{u}}_{(k-2)} - 8\bar{\underline{u}}_{(k-1)} + 8\bar{\underline{u}}_{(k+1)} - \bar{\underline{u}}_{(k+2)} \right\}$$

$$+ \frac{1}{12\Delta} \left\{ \bar{\underline{v}}_{(\ell-2)} - 8\bar{\underline{v}}_{(\ell-1)} + 8\bar{\underline{v}}_{(\ell+1)} - \bar{\underline{v}}_{(\ell+2)} \right\}$$

$$+ \frac{1}{12\Delta} \left\{ \bar{\underline{w}}_{(m-2)} - 8\bar{\underline{w}}_{(m-1)} + 8\bar{\underline{w}}_{(m+1)} - \bar{\underline{w}}_{(m+2)} \right\}$$

$$= \operatorname{div} \bar{\underline{u}} + 0(\Delta^{4}) \qquad (3.8)$$

$$G(P) = \left(\hat{e}_{x} \frac{\delta}{\delta x} + e_{y} \frac{\delta}{\delta y} + e_{z} \frac{\delta}{\delta z}\right) P$$

$$= \hat{e}_{x} \frac{1}{12\Delta} \left\{P_{(k-2)} - 8P_{(k-1)} + 8P_{(k+1)} - P_{(k+2)}\right\}$$

$$+ \hat{e}_{y} \frac{1}{12\Delta} \left\{P_{(\ell-2)} - 8P_{(\ell-1)} + 8P_{(\ell+1)} - P_{(\ell+2)}\right\}$$

$$+ \hat{e}_{z} \frac{1}{12\Delta} \left\{P_{(m-2)} - 8P_{(m-1)} + 8P_{(m+1)} - P_{(m+2)}\right\}$$

$$= \text{grad } P + 0(\Delta^{4}) \qquad (3.9)$$

where \hat{e}_x , \hat{e}_y , \hat{e}_z are unit vectors in the x-, y-, and z-directions. 3.3 DG Operator

$$DG(P) = \frac{\delta}{\delta x_{1}} \left(\frac{\delta}{\delta x_{1}} P \right) \qquad (3.10)$$

Expanding one term of (3.10), using the fourth-order difference scheme,

$$\frac{\delta}{\delta x} \left(\frac{\delta}{\delta x} P \right) = \frac{1}{(12\Delta)^2} \left\{ P_{(k-4)} - 16P_{(k-3)} + 64P_{(k-2)} + 16P_{(k-1)} - 130P_{(k)} + 16P_{(k+1)} + 64P_{(k+2)} - 16P_{(k+3)} + P_{(k+4)} \right\}$$
(3.11)

If P is expanded in a discrete Fourier series, similar to (3.2), the Fourier Transform of (3.11) is identified as,

$$\begin{cases} \frac{\delta}{\delta x} \left(\frac{\delta P}{\delta x} \right) \\ = \frac{1}{(12\Delta)^2} \begin{cases} e^{i4\Delta k_1} - 16e^{i3\Delta k_1} + 64e^{i2\Delta k_1} + 16e^{i\Delta k_1} \\ - 130 + 16e^{-i\Delta k_1} + 64e^{-i2\Delta k_1} - 16e^{-i3\Delta k_1} + e^{-i4\Delta k_1} \\ \hat{P} \\ = \frac{1}{72\Delta^2} \begin{cases} -65 + 16\cos(\Delta k_1) + 64\cos(2\Delta k_1) \\ - 16\cos(3\Delta k_1) + \cos(4\Delta k_1) \\ \hat{P} \\ \end{cases} \end{cases}$$

$$= -k_1^{\prime 2} \hat{p} \qquad (3.12)$$

(3.12) may be obtained directly from (3.4). Therefore, in Fourier space DG operator becomes

$$DG = -k_{i}' k_{i}'$$
 (3.13)

Compare (3.12) to the following fourth order central differencing scheme, which is a commonly used approximation to $\partial^2/\partial x^2$ operator;

$$\frac{\delta^2}{\delta x^2} P = \frac{1}{12\Delta^2} \left\{ -P_{(k-2)} + 16P_{(k-1)} - 30P_{(k)} + 16P_{(k+1)} - P_{(k+2)} \right\}$$
(3.14)

$$\begin{pmatrix} \frac{\delta^2 P}{\delta x^2} \end{pmatrix} = -\frac{1}{6\Delta^2} \left\{ 15 - 16 \cos(\Delta k_1) + \cos(2\Delta k_1) \right\} \hat{p}$$

$$\stackrel{\Delta}{=} -\tilde{k}_1^2 \hat{p}$$
(3.15)

where \tilde{k}_1 is defined by (3.15). k_1^2 , $k_1'^2$, and \tilde{k}_1^2 are compared in Fig. 3.2 for N = 16.

3.4 Transport Difference Operator

Differencing the transport terms in the form of (2.28) will automatically conserve momentum in an inviscid flow. But the computation becomes unstable and the kinetic energy increases. This happens in real flows in spite of the dissipative nature of R_{ij} and the Leonard term. This non-linear instability, first reported by Phillips (1959), arises because the momentum conservative form does not necessarily guarantee energy conservation, and truncation errors in the energy equation are not negligible.

Arakawa (1966) devised a differencing scheme that conserves both mean square vorticity and energy in two-dimensional calculations that use the vorticity and stream function as dependent variables. This is not useful in a three-dimensional flow.

A fourth-order transport differencing scheme that does conserve energy and momentum was developed for the present work:

17

$$\frac{\delta}{\delta x} (\bar{u}\bar{f}) = \frac{1}{3\Delta} \left\{ (\bar{u}\bar{f})_{(k+1)} - (\bar{u}\bar{f})_{(k-1)} + \bar{u}(\bar{f}_{(k+1)} - \bar{f}_{(k-1)}) + \bar{f}(\bar{u}_{(k+1)} - \bar{u}_{(k-1)}) \right\} \\ - \frac{1}{24\Delta} \left\{ (\bar{u}\bar{f})_{(k+2)} - (\bar{u}\bar{f})_{(k-2)} + \bar{u}(\bar{f}_{(k+2)} - \bar{f}_{(k-2)}) + \bar{f}(\bar{u}_{(k+2)} - \bar{u}_{(k-2)}) \right\}$$

$$+ \bar{f}(\bar{u}_{(k+2)} - \bar{u}_{(k-2)}) \right\}$$
(3.16)

Again we only show subscripts that differs from k, l, or m. For details see Appendix I. In the present work this was used for the terms $\partial(\bar{u}_1\bar{u}_1)/\partial x_j$; for the Leonard term a second-order version of (3.16) was used,

$$\frac{\delta}{\delta \mathbf{x}} (\bar{\mathbf{u}}\bar{\mathbf{f}}) = \frac{1}{4\Delta} \left\{ (\bar{\mathbf{u}}\bar{\mathbf{f}})_{(k+1)} - (\bar{\mathbf{u}}\bar{\mathbf{f}})_{(k-1)} + \bar{\mathbf{u}}(\bar{\mathbf{f}}_{(k+1)} - \bar{\mathbf{f}}_{(k-1)}) + \bar{\mathbf{f}}(\bar{\mathbf{u}}_{(k+1)} - \bar{\mathbf{u}}_{(k-1)}) \right\}$$
(3.17)

The familiar second-order central difference approximation was used for ∇^2 in the Leonard term,

$$\frac{\delta^2 \bar{f}}{\delta x^2} = \frac{1}{\Delta^2} (\bar{f}_{(k+1)} - 2\bar{f}_{(k)} + \bar{f}_{(k-1)})$$
(3.18)

For the residual stress terms, (3.17) was used. The strain-rates and vorticity were computed from the second-order central difference (3.6).

3.5 <u>Time Differencing</u>

A second order Adams-Bashforth method was used for the time integration. As shown by Lilly (1965), this method is very weakly unstable, but the total spurious computational production of kinetic energy is small.

The Adams-Bashforth formula for \bar{u}_1 at time step n+1 is

$$\bar{u}_{i}^{(n+1)} = \bar{u}_{i}^{(n)} + \Delta t \left(\frac{3}{2} H_{i}^{(n)} - \frac{1}{2} H_{i}^{(n-1)}\right) + O(\Delta t^{3}) \quad (3.19)$$

where H_{t} is defined by (2.29). Note that this is an explicit scheme.

3.6 Pressure Field Solution

To study this problem in detail, let us rewrite (2.29) as

$$\frac{\partial u_{i}}{\partial t} - h_{i} = -\frac{\partial P}{\partial x_{i}} \qquad (3.20a)$$

Again, continuity is

$$\frac{\partial u_i}{\partial x_i} = 0 \qquad (3.20b)$$

Taking the divergence of (3.20a)

$$\nabla^{2} \mathbf{P} = \frac{\partial}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{i}} \mathbf{h}_{i} - \frac{\partial}{\partial t} \frac{\partial \mathbf{u}_{i}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{i}}$$
$$= \mathbf{g}_{1}$$
(3.21)

The usual computational procedure involves choosing the pressure field at the current time step such that continuity is satisfied at the next time step, i.e. so that the new flow field will be divergence free. This must be done very carefully. Let's look at three possibilities. These take advantage of Fourier transformation, for it is known that fast Fourier transforms provide an excellent way to solve the Poisson equation, at least in a rectangular domain.

(a) Method 1

The Fourier transform of (3.21) is

$$-k^2 \hat{P} = \hat{\tilde{g}}_1$$
 (3.22)

where \tilde{g}_1 is the difference approximation to g_1 and $k^2 = k_x^2 + k_y^2 + k_z^2$. k_x , k_y , and k_z are wave numbers in x-, y-, and z-directions. By inverse transformation, P can be obtained. However, as will be shown shortly, this method does not give a next velocity field that is divergencefree in grid space. Hence this approach is unsatisfactory.

(b) <u>Method 2</u>

A second approach is to use the difference form of (3.21),

$$\frac{\delta^2}{\delta x^2} + \frac{\delta^2}{\delta y^2} + \frac{\delta^2}{\delta z^2} P = \tilde{g}_1$$
(3.23)

Then P can be obtained by Fourier transforming (3.23),

$$-\tilde{k}_{1}\tilde{k}_{1}\hat{P} = \hat{\tilde{g}}_{1} \qquad (3.24)$$

As will be shown shortly, the pressure from this does not give a divergencefree field in grid space at the next time step. Hence, this method, which was used by Jain (1967), is also unsatisfactory.

(c) <u>Method 3</u>

The finite difference forms of (3.20a) and (3.20b) are

$$\frac{\delta \mathbf{u}_{i}}{\delta t} - \tilde{\mathbf{h}}_{i} = -\frac{\delta}{\delta \mathbf{x}_{i}} \mathbf{P} \qquad (3.25a)$$

$$D\bar{u}_{1} = 0$$
 (3.25b)

where h_{i} is difference approximation to h_{i} . If we apply the D operator to (3.25a),

$$DG P = \frac{-\delta}{\delta t} (D\bar{u}_{i}) + D\tilde{h}_{i} = g_{1}^{\dagger} \qquad (3.26)$$

Then, taking the Fourier transform of (3.26), and using (3.13),

$$-k_{1}'k_{1}'\hat{P} = \hat{g}_{1}' \qquad (3.27)$$

Now let's compare the three methods. The Fourier transform of (3.25a) is

$$\frac{\delta \bar{u}_{i}}{\delta t} - \hat{\bar{h}}_{i} = -i k_{i}' \hat{\bar{P}} \qquad (3.28)$$

To satisfy continuity in grid space, we want to have

$$\frac{\delta}{\delta^{t}} \frac{\delta^{u}_{i}}{\delta^{x}_{i}} = 0$$

for a flow that has $\overline{Du_i} = 0$ to start. From (3.5), this is equivalent to $k_1'\overline{u_1} = 0$ at the first and next time steps. Using (3.21), and substituting \hat{P} in (3.28) by \hat{P} from (3.22), (3.24) or (3.27) and operating with D on the resulting equations, one obtains,

for method 1:

$$\frac{\delta}{\delta t} (k_{i}^{\dagger} \hat{\bar{u}}_{i}) = \left(\hat{\bar{h}}_{i} - \frac{k_{i}^{\dagger} k_{j}^{\dagger}}{k^{2}} \hat{\bar{h}}_{j}\right) k_{i}^{\dagger} \neq 0 \qquad (3.29)$$

for method 2:

$$\frac{\delta}{\delta t} (k_{i} \dot{\vec{u}}_{i}) = \left(\hat{\vec{h}}_{i} - \frac{k_{i} k_{j}}{\tilde{k}^{2}} \hat{\vec{h}}_{j}\right) k_{i} \neq 0 \qquad (3.30)$$

for method 3:

$$\frac{\delta}{\delta t} (k_{i} \hat{\vec{u}}_{i}) = \left(\hat{\vec{h}}_{i} - \frac{k_{i} k_{j}}{k'^{2}} \hat{\vec{h}}_{j}\right) k_{i}' \equiv 0 \qquad (3.31)$$

The error introduced by method 1 and method 2 can be seen clearly by observing the magnitude of the ratio k'^2/k^2 or k'^2/\tilde{k}^2 as illustrated in Fig. 3.2. Method 3 satisfies continuity at the next time step in grid space, and hence is chosen for pressure field solution here.

3.7 Summary of Difference Equations

Momentum equation:

$$\frac{\delta \tilde{u}_{i}}{\delta t} = -\frac{\delta}{\delta x_{j}} \left\{ \bar{u}_{i} \tilde{u}_{j} + \frac{\Delta_{A}^{2}}{24} \frac{\delta^{2}}{\delta x_{k} \delta x_{k}} (\bar{u}_{i} \tilde{u}_{j}) - 2v_{T} \tilde{s}_{ij} \right\}$$

$$-\frac{\delta P}{\delta x_{i}}$$

$$= \tilde{h}_{i} - \frac{\delta P}{\delta x_{i}} \qquad (3.32)$$

Poisson equation for P:

$$DG(P) = D(\tilde{h}_{1})$$
(3.33)

where

$$P = \frac{\bar{p}}{\rho} + \frac{1}{3} R_{ii}$$

$$\tilde{S}_{ij} = \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\delta \bar{u}_i}{\delta x_j} + \frac{\delta \bar{u}_j}{\delta x_j} \right)$$

$$v_T = (c_S \Delta_A)^2 (2S_{ij} S_{ij})^{1/2} : \text{Smagorinsky model}$$

$$= (c_v \Delta_A)^2 (\bar{\omega}_i \bar{\omega}_i)^{1/2} : \text{Vorticity model}$$

$$\overline{\omega}_i = \varepsilon_{ijk} \frac{\delta \bar{u}_j}{\delta x_k}$$

c_S,c_v = constant

,

CHAPTER IV

DECAY OF ISOTROPIC TURBULENCE

4.1 Problem Description

Perhaps the most basic problem in turbulence is the decay of incompressible homogeneous isotropic turbulence. It is with this primitive turbulent flow that our study began. This flow was used to determine the value of the residual stress model constant (C_s or C_v), for use in subsequent calculations of other flows. It also provided a basic testing ground for the computational methods being developed in this program.

The experimental grid turbulence data of Comte-Bellot and Corrsin (1971) were used as the "target" for these predictions. Such experiments closely approximate homogeneous isotropic turbulence, when viewed in a coordinate frame translating at the mean flow velocity.

4.2 The Benchmark Experiment

The pertinent information from Comte-Bellot and Corrsin's (1971) experiments will be reviewed now. The wind tunnel test section, which has a slight secondary contraction to isotropize the turbulence, is sketched in Fig. 4.1. The turbulence was generated by a biplane square rod grid with mesh size, M, of 5.08 cm. The free-stream air speed, U_o , was 10 m/sec, giving grid mesh Reynolds number $U_o M/v$ of 34,000. The streamwise ($\langle u^2 \rangle$) and transverse ($\langle v^2 \rangle$, $\langle w^2 \rangle$) turbulent energy components remained nearly equal to each other during the decay along the test section. These were closely fit by

$$\frac{U_o^2}{\langle u^2 \rangle} \simeq 21 \left(\frac{U_o t}{M} - 3.5 \right)^{1.25}$$
(4.1a)

۰.

$$\frac{U_{o}^{2}}{\langle v^{2} \rangle} \approx \frac{U_{o}^{2}}{\langle w^{2} \rangle} \approx 20 \left(\frac{U_{o}t}{M} - 3.5 \right)^{1.25}$$
(4.1b)

Correlations, energy spectra and other quantities were measured using

hot wire anemometry at $U_0 t/M = 42$, 98 and 171. The Reynolds number based on the Taylor microscale, $R_{\lambda} = \sqrt{(u^2)\lambda/\nu}$, was 71.6, 65.3 and 60.7 at these points.

4.3 Mesh Size Selection

The choice of the computational mesh size requires consideration of the turbulence spectrum (Fig. 4.3). The smallest scales that can be resolved have wave number π/Δ , where Δ is the mesh width. If there are N points in one direction, the largest scales that will be represented in the computation have wave number $2\pi/(N\Delta)$. N and Δ must be chosen such that the computation captures as much of the turbulence energy as possible. It is also desirable that the computation extend to the so-called inertial subrange (Tennekes and Lumley 1972).

The mesh systems used were as follows:

<u>16³ mesh</u>		
∆ =	1.5 cm, N = 16,	$\Delta t = 6.25 \times 10^{-3} sec$
32 ³ mesh		
∆ =	1.0 cm, N = 32,	$\Delta t = 6.25 \times 10^{-3} sec$

The model constants were first evaluated using the 16^3 mesh; the 32^3 calculation then verified that the constants are independent of mesh size.

The corresponding Courant numbers were:

Nc =
$$\sqrt{q^3/3}$$
 $\Delta t/\Delta x$, $q^2 = \langle \overline{u}^2 \rangle + \langle \overline{v}^2 \rangle + \langle \overline{w}^2 \rangle$

 $\frac{16^3 \text{ mesh}}{\text{Nc} \leq 0.06}$ $\frac{32^3 \text{ mesh}}{\text{Nc} \leq 0.1}$

4.4 Initial Conditions

We want to prescribe an initial profile that has the proper energy content and spectrum, and is isotropic. A technique for generating a random field that meets these conditions, and also satisfies continuity, was developed for this purpose. Since the computation will treat the filtered field, we matched the initial filtered spectrum and not the initial measured spectrum.

We generated initial filtered field, $\overline{u}_1(\underline{x})$, by first establishing its discrete Fourier transform, $\hat{u}_1(\underline{k})$,

$$\underbrace{\widetilde{u}}(\underline{x}) = \sum_{n=-\frac{N}{2}}^{\frac{N}{2}-1} \underbrace{\widehat{u}}_{\underline{u}}(\underline{k}_{n}) e^{i\underline{k}_{n}\cdot\underline{x}}$$
(4.2)

Here \underline{k}_n is the wave number vector defined by $(\underline{k}_n)_i = \frac{2\pi}{N\Delta} n_i$, where n_i is an integer ranging from -1/2N to 1/2N-1 for an N^3 mesh system. Note that the maximum wave number is $\underline{k}_{max} = \pi/\Delta$. If \underline{u} is discretized at N points, then the Fourier transform u can only be evaluated at N discrete wave numbers, and that is why the summation must have non-symmetric limits.

The commonly used fast Fourier transform requires N to be 2^m , where m is an integer (see Cochran et al. 1967). Physically N has to be large enough so that wave-number spectra can be treated as smooth functions. As will be shown later, 16^3 or 32^3 mesh systems gave fairly smooth three-dimensional energy spectra.

Now, we can approximate the spectrum function, Φ_{ij} of the filtered field (see Tennekes and Lumley 1972) as,

$$\Phi_{ij}(k_n) \simeq \langle \hat{\overline{u}}_i(\underline{k}_n) \hat{\overline{u}}_j^*(\underline{k}_n) \rangle$$
(4.3)

where $\langle \rangle$ denotes an average over an esemble of experiments or, alternatively, over a spherical shell in k-space with radius k_n (see Section 4.6).
The filtered 3-D energy spectrum, \overline{E} , is given by

$$\widetilde{E}(k) = 2\pi k^2 \Phi_{ii}(\underline{k}) \qquad (4.4)$$

E(k)dk is the energy content of a differentially thick spherical shell in wave-number space. Using (4.3), $\overline{E}(k)$ is approximated by

$$\overline{E}(k_n) \simeq 2\pi k_n^2 \langle \hat{\overline{u}}_i(k_n) \hat{\overline{u}}_i^*(k_n) \rangle$$
(4.5)

To establish the initial field we need to fix the Fourier amplitudes $\hat{u}_i(k_n)$. Equation (4.5) was used to fix $\hat{u}_i(k_n)\hat{u}_i^*(k_n)$ for each k. The vector components \hat{u}_i were chosen by a technique described below. To get \hat{u}_i to satisfy continuity in grid space, the real and imaginary parts of the transformed velocity vector, $\underline{\hat{u}}$, must be perpendicular to the modified wave-number vector, \underline{k}' (see Equation (3.5)). In the actual computation, we have N^3 points in <u>k</u>-space, and, for any <u>k</u>, <u>k'</u> can be obtained by (3.4). Then, $\underline{\hat{u}}$ has to be selected on a perpendicular plane to <u>k'</u> in <u>k</u>-space.

To ensure statistical isotropy, the real and imaginary parts of \underline{u} must be chosen randomly. First we picked a unit vector A, perpendicular to \underline{k}' , by turning a random angle, ϕ , from a reference frame (Fig. 4.2). Here ϕ was selected with uniform probability over the interval 0 to 2π . We then repeated to get a second random unit vector \underline{B} , also perpendicular to \underline{k}' . The real part of $\underline{\hat{u}}$ was made proportional to the vector \underline{A} and the imaginary to \underline{B} , and hence continuity was satisfied. We still needed to fix the relative magnitudes of the real and imaginary parts of $\underline{\hat{u}}(k)$, which we did by a random choice of an angle, θ . Then we defined a and b by

$$a = \cos\theta$$
, $b = \sin\theta$ (4.6)

Finally, we set

$$\hat{\overline{u}}_{j}(\underline{k}_{n}) = \left|\hat{\overline{u}}_{\ell}(\underline{k}_{n})\hat{\overline{u}}_{\ell}^{*}(\underline{k}_{n})\right|^{1/2} (aA_{j} + ibB_{j})$$
(4.7)

Now, by inverse transforming \overline{u}_i , we obtained \overline{u}_i , which must be real and will be real if the Fourier transform satisfies

$$\frac{\hat{\underline{u}}}{\underline{\underline{u}}}(-\underline{\underline{k}}_{n}) = \frac{\hat{\underline{u}}}{\underline{\underline{u}}}(\underline{\underline{k}}_{n})$$
(4.8)

In essence, the imaginary contribution for each negative k_n exactly cancels the imaginary contribution of the same positive k_n . Hence, we only needed to generate \hat{u}_i by (4.7) for the upper half of the <u>k</u>-space, i.e. for $0 \le n \le \frac{N}{2} - 1$. However, this won't fix $\hat{\underline{u}}$ for $n_i = -\frac{N}{2}$. Moreover, if $\hat{\underline{u}}$ is not zero, the velocity field will have an imaginary part (see (4.2)). If instead we wrote (4.2) as

$$\overline{u}_{i}(\underline{x}) = \sum_{-N/2}^{N/2} \hat{\overline{u}}_{i}(\underline{k}_{n}) e^{i\underline{k}_{n} \cdot \underline{x}}$$

then $\overline{u_i}$ would be real. However, then we could not take advantage of the FFT routine to invert $\hat{\overline{u_i}}$. As a practical solution to this dilemma we set $\hat{\overline{u_i}}$ equal to zero for the wave numbers corresponding to $n_i = -1/2N$. Then (4.2) is essentially the same as

$$\underbrace{\overline{u}}(\underline{x}) = \sum_{-(\frac{N}{2} - 1)} \underbrace{\sum_{\underline{u}} \sum_{\underline{u}} \sum_{\underline{u}} \underbrace{\widehat{u}}(\underline{k}_{n})}_{\underline{u}(\underline{k}_{n})e} e^{i\underline{k}_{n} \cdot \underline{x}}$$

and \overline{u}_i will be real, and an FFT routine may be used. The resulting energy spectrum was therefore slightly low at the highest wave number. However, the effect of this discrepancy was insignificant and became invisible after a few time steps in the computation.

We remark that the field generated by this procedure is quite isotropic. However, as will be shown it has zero skewness, whereas real turbulence has a non-zero skewness. As will be seen, this condition corrected itself in only a few time steps.

4.5 Boundary Conditions

The computational problem can only extend over a part of the experimental region. To get around this difficulty we have used "periodic" boundary conditions, which are of course not really correct. However, if the computational grid system extends over a distance large compared to the scale of the energy-containing motions, the periodic boundary conditions should not introduce appreciable error. The periodic boundary conditions have a great advantage in dealing with the Poisson equation for the pressure by fast Fourier transform (FFT) methods.

4.6 Extraction of Statistical Information from the Computation

The statistical quantities of interest are averages over ensembles of experiments. Since we made only one computational realization in each case, the statistical quantities had to be inferred from appropriate ergodic hypotheses.

In physical space the ensemble average $\langle \rangle$ was replaced by an average over the flow field. This was done by taking a mean value over N³ mesh points, i.e.

$$\langle f(\underline{x}) \rangle = \frac{1}{N^3} \sum_{k,\ell,m=1}^{N} \sum_{m=1}^{M} f_{(k,\ell,m)}$$
 (4.9)

The differencing schemes described in Chapter III were used to calculate these quantities.

In wave number space, the ensemble average was replaced by an average over a shell in k-space ("shell average"). Since we have only N^3 discrete points in k-space, the <> average was made by taking a mean value over the points between the two shells with radius (k-1/2 Δ k) and (k+1/2 Δ k).

To get the filtered spectrum, $\overline{E}(k)$, the transformed velocity, \overline{u} , was obtained by FFT (see 4.2). Then, $\langle \overline{u}_i(\underline{k}_n) \overline{u}_i^*(\underline{k}_n) \rangle$ was calculated by shell-averaging. The choice of the band width, Δk , is somewhat arbitrary and was set to be 0.1 cm⁻¹ here. Then, from (4.5),

$$\overline{E}(k) \simeq \frac{2\pi k^2}{N_k} \sum_{\substack{k_n = k - \Delta k}}^{k + \Delta k} \frac{\widehat{u}_i}{\widehat{u}_i} (\underline{k}_n) \frac{\widehat{u}_i}{\widehat{u}_i}^* (\underline{k}_n)$$
(4.10)

where N_k is the number of points between the two shells with radius $(k-1/2\Delta k)$ and $(k+1/2\Delta k)$. The resulting spectra, evaluated at 0.1 cm⁻¹ wave-number intervals, were smooth enough to be represented by continuous curves as shown by solid lines in Fig. 4.4, 4.5, and 4.7. The filtered spectrum, $\overline{E}(k)$, was then compared to the filtered experimental spectrum, which we obtained using (2.23).

4.7 Selection of the Averaging Scale

Considerable thought was given to the choice of the averaging scale $\Delta_{\rm A}^{}$. Our failures are as important as our successes, and both will now be discussed.

Consider first the computation with $\Delta_A = 0$. This zero averaging length is equivalent to the unfiltered calculations used in laminar flow, and implies that we are trying to resolve the complete spectrum by a finite difference method. The Leonard term in this case is equal to zero, i.e. $\overline{u_i u_j} = \overline{u_i u_j}$.

The unfiltered initial energy spectrum is plotted in Fig. 4.3. The amounts of unfiltered energy for the 16^3 mesh and 32^3 mesh systems are also shown. Figure 4.4 shows the computation for a value of C_s that gives the proper rate of energy decay. Note that for $k > 1/2k_{max}$ the spectrum is distorted considerably at $tU_0/M = 86.5$ and become worse as time increases.

In an instantaneously fluctuating field, higher derivatives are not small and the convergence of the Taylor series is expected to be slow. Use of $\Delta_A = 0$ and the consequent exclusion of the Leonard term caused much distortion of the spectrum, i.e. aliasing error. Indeed, the finite difference method with N mesh points in one direction can only resolve the unfiltered field up to $k = \pi/(2\Delta) = k_{max}/2$, which is a half the maximum wave number in one direction (see Orszag 1969, Orszag and

Israelli 1974). Judging from Fig. 4.4, in a computation without filtering the non-linear interactions transfer too much energy from large to small scales. This excess up-scale energy transfer could be somewhat reduced by using a larger coefficient in the residual stress model. However, this brings an unreasonably high energy decay rate. We conclude that one should never use $\Delta_A = 0$ in a turbulence simulation; filtering is essential.

Let's look next at what happens when the averaging scale Δ_A is equal to the mesh scale Δ . Figure 4.5 shows a computation with a value of C_s that gives the proper energy decay. Note that the errors in the predictions of the filtered spectrum are significant at high wave numbers.

Consider now the computations with $\Delta_A = 2\Delta$, shown in Fig. 4.6, run for values of C_s and C_v that give the proper energy decay. The predictions of the filtered spectrum for both residual stress models are remarkably accurate, even in the coarse 16³ calculation!

To investigate the effect of the Leonard term separately from the filtering, an additional calculation with $\Delta_A = 2\Delta$ was run with the vorticity model, excluding the Leonard terms (Fig. 4.7). The prediction is poor on high wave number side. Evidently the Leonard terms assists in removal of energy from high wave numbers. We conclude that good results will be obtained with $\Delta_A = 2\Delta$, and that the Leonard terms must be included.

4.8 Selection of C_s and C_v

An analytical way of determining the residual stress model constants, C_s or C_v , is not known. Lilly (1966) estimated $C_s = 0.2$ using several ad-hoc assumptions. Later workers (Deardorff 1971, Fox and Deardorff 1972) calibrated this constant to get the best computational results. In these cases, the required C_s was between 0.10 and 0.22.

In the present study a series of 16³ mesh calculations were run with different values of each constant, and values selected that gave the best prediction for the filtered rate of energy decay as judged by consideration of the slope of the curve (Fig. 4.10). The constants obtained were as

follows;*

 $C_{s} = 0.206$, $C_{v} = 0.254$

Figure 4.9 shows the sensitivity of the predicted filtered energy decay to C_s . Figure 4.10 shows the excellent agreement of the energy history with the data for the final constants.

Figure 4.11 shows the energy decay rate from the 32^3 calculation with these same constants. The spectral results are shown in Fig. 4.8. The excellent agreement with data confirms that the model constants do not vary with the mesh size, at least in the range covered.

In comparing Fig. 4.10 and 4.11, it must be remembered that these are the <u>filtered</u> energies, which are different in these two mesh systems. Because of the discrete Fourier approximation, not all the turbulent energy is captured (see Fig. 4.3). Filtering improves the situation, because less energy is omitted from the filtered field at high wave number. However, the energy in the discrete approximation to the filtered field was still less than that in the filtered experimental field. To facilitate selection of the constants, the filtered experimental history was shifted as shown in Fig. 4.10 and 4.11.

4.9 Energetics of the Filtered Field

Multiplying (2.28) by \overline{u}_i , and taking an ensemble average, and assuming homogeneity, one finds

$$\frac{d}{dt} \frac{q^2}{2} = -\varepsilon = -(\varepsilon_R + \varepsilon_L)$$
(4.11a)

where $q^2 = \langle \overline{u}_1 \ \overline{u}_1 \rangle$.

The dissipation ε is seen to have two parts, a part representing transfer to the residual field,

The three digits are not meant to imply accuracy. We actually ran with

 $(2C_s)^2 = 0.17$, $(2C_v)^2 = 0.26$.

$$\varepsilon_{R} = -\langle \overline{u}_{i} \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} (2v_{T} \overline{s}_{ij}) \rangle \qquad (4.11b)$$

and a Leonard term part,

$$\varepsilon_{\rm L} = + \langle \overline{u}_{\rm i} \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{\rm j}} (\frac{\Delta_{\rm A}^2}{24} \nabla^2 \overline{u}_{\rm i} \overline{u}_{\rm j}) \qquad (4.11c)$$

To see the relative contributions of the Leonard term and the residual scale motions to the energy decay rate, $\varepsilon_L / \varepsilon_0$ and $\varepsilon_R / \varepsilon_0$ are shown in Fig. 4.14. Here ε_0 is the sum of ε_L and ε_R at $(U_0 t/M - 3.5) = 42$ where the computation started. ε_L is much smaller than Leonard estimated (1973). As shown by Leonard (1975), ε_L takes energy mostly from the large wave number side thus preventing the damming up of energy in the smaller eddies.

4.10 Other Aspects

No significant difference is observed between Smagorinsky and vorticity models. However, some differences are expected in future applications to unbounded flow problems with turbulent and non-turbulent regions.

The skewness, which is a measure of vorticity production in the energy cascade process, is shown in Fig. 4.12 and 4.13. Since the initial field is randomly generated, the skewness is zero initially, but quickly adjusts to essentially a constant value. For the 16^3 calculation the value is clearly too low (the experimental skewness is about-0.4). For the 32^3 calculation the skewness seems slightly high.

We have emphasized the need for a fourth order differencing scheme, and wonder why others have been able to do so well with second order schemes. The reason may be that the second order difference form of the advection term implicitly includes Leonard-like second order truncation terms and thus the Leonard term is partially taken care of by the truncation. If a fourth order scheme is to be used, the Leonard terms should be included explicitly. We have seen that they are important, particularly at the high wave numbers. We conclude that, for a grid calculation of the type run here, the best results will be given by the fourth-order difference scheme that incorporates the Leonard terms.

A question arose as to the behavior of the vorticity under the difference scheme used here. A two-dimensional irrotational flow was input, $v_{\rm T}$ was set equal to zero, and two time steps were taken. The vorticity remained exactly zero, indicating that, at least in a two-dimensional flow, the differencing scheme will not produce unwanted vorticity. This aspect of the computation should receive further study in the future.

4.11 Computational Details

The calculations described above were executed on the CDC 7600 at Lawrence Berkeley Laboratory, using programs written in FORTRAN (Appendix II). The total storage requirements (octal) for 60 bit words were as follows:

16³ calculation

Large Core Memory: 230,360

Field Length (Small Core) required to load: 121,200

 32^3 calculation

Large Core Memory: 1,100,234

Field Length (Small Core) required to load: 121,200

The computer time per computational step was approximately as follows:

 16^3 calculation: CPU time \approx 3 sec

 32^3 calculation: CPU time ≈ 20 sec

The calculation program was carefully checked before these production runs. To check each term in the difference equation (3.32) and (3.33), we imposed systematically artificial flow fields. For the terms involving first derivatives of velocities such as \overline{S}_{ij} , $\overline{\omega}_i$, υ_T , $\frac{\delta}{\delta x_i}$ (\overline{u}_i , \overline{u}_j) and \overline{Du}_i , the following linear velocity field was used:

 $\overline{u} = x + 2y + 3z$ $\overline{v} = 4x + 5y + 6z$ $\overline{w} = 7x + 8y + 9z$

Then the computed results were compared to the exact values. For the terms with second derivatives, the following quadratic expressions were used:

 $\overline{u} = x^2 + 2y^2 + 3z^2$ $\overline{v} = 4x^2 + 5y^2 + 6z^2$ $\overline{w} = 7x^2 + 8y^2 + 9z^2$

Then, at randomly picked mesh points, the computer results for the advection terms, the Leonard terms, \tilde{h}_i , and $D(\tilde{h}_i)$ were compared to the exact values obtained analytically.

For the Poisson solver, a sinusoidal pressure field was used to generate DG(p), then the computer results were checked against the imposed pressure field. The initial field was generated as described in Section 4.4 and two time steps were advanced. The subsequent results provided a testing ground for time stepping, the maintenance of a divergence-free velocity field, the overall sequence of computing, and input, output, tape handling, and data reduction routines.

The computer program is given in Appendix II.

CHAPTER V

DISTORTION OF HOMOGENEOUS TURBULENCE BY IRROTATIONAL PLANE STRAIN

5.1 Problem Description

Shear may be viewed as a combination of pure strain and rotation. Therefore, a basic problem is that of homogeneous turbulence acted upon by an imposed uniform homogeneous irrotational strain. Tucker and Reynolds (1968) approximated such a flow experimentally by passing grid-generated turbulence through a passage designed to produce uniform strain in a coordinate system translating with the mean flow velocity. This experimental flow approximates the problem of box turbulence with a constant rate of strain, shown in Fig. 5.1b.

In this chapter we discuss the computation of an idealized homogeneous flow with irrotational pure strain, comparable to the Tucker-Reynolds laterally strained flow. In addition, we treat the return to isotropy following the removal of strain, which roughly corresponds to the experiment in the uniform channel downstream of the straining section.

Tucker and Reynolds did not measure the energy spectrum and hence we cannot make an exact comparison with their data. However, for a qualitative comparison, the initial turbulent intensities in the computation were set to be equal to the experimental values at the beginning of the strained section. Two cases were run. The first case was run with approximately the same initial anisotropy as the experiments. However, there are problems in that the anisotropic field so generated had improper shearing stresses. Therefore, a second calculation was made with an initially isotropic field, and this flow has been used to study the effects of pure strain on homogeneous turbulence.

The initial field for the computation was based on an energy spectrum similar to that used in Chapter IV. However, the Tucker-Reynolds initial energy level was much higher than the energy in the grid flow studied in Chapter IV. To adjust the energy, the amplitude of the Fourier coefficients were multiplied by a constant. The initial one-dimensional energy spectra are shown in Figs. 5.11 and 5.12 by solid curves.

The strain-rate used in the calculation was different from that of the Tucker-Reynolds experiments. In an initial calculation their strain rate was used, but the energy-decay rate in the relaxation section did not match their experiments. The difference was attributed to differences between their (unmeasured) spectrum and that used to start the calculation. We first computed the energy-decay rate in the absence of strain as shown by the solid lines in Fig. 5.5 and 5.8. Then, the strain-rate was determined to get the same total strain as in the Tucker-Reynolds experiments at a point in the flow that would have the same energy in the absence of strain. The final calculations were performed using this strain rate. Therefore, the calculation should be regarded as a "Tucker-Reynolds-like" flow, and not as a simulation of their flow.

5.2 Governing Equations

To handle the imposed mean strain, we express the local velocity and pressure field as*

$$u_{i}(\underline{x},t) = U_{i}(\underline{x}) + u_{i}''(\underline{x},t) \qquad (5.1a)$$

$$p(\underline{x},t) = P(\underline{x}) + p''(\underline{x},t)$$
 (5.1b)

where

$$U_{i} = (U, V, 0) = (\Gamma x, -\Gamma y, 0)$$
 (5.2a)

$$P = -\frac{1}{2} \rho \Gamma^2 (x^2 + y^2)$$
 (5.2b)

 Γ is the constant strain-rate. With this decomposition, the Navier-Stokes equations for incompressible flow become

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial t} (U_{i} + u_{i}'') + \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} \left\{ (U_{i} + u_{i}'') (U_{j} + u_{j}'') \right\}$$
$$= -\frac{1}{\rho} \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{i}} (P + p'') + \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} \left\{ v \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} (U_{i} + u_{i}'') \right\}$$
(5.3a)

Note that we place the strain in the $x_1 - x_2$ plane, while Tucker and Reynolds placed it in the $x_1 - x_3$ plane.

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial x_{i}} (U_{i} + u_{i}'') = 0 \qquad (5.3b)$$

Now, using the definition (5.2), and noting that $\partial^2 U_i / \partial x_k \partial x_l = 0$, this reduces to

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial t} \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}}^{"} + \frac{\partial}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{j}}} \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}}^{"} \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{j}}^{"} + \frac{\partial}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{j}}} (\mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{i}} \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{j}}^{"} + \mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{j}} \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}}^{"})$$

$$= -\frac{\partial}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{i}}} \frac{\mathbf{p}^{"}}{\rho} + \frac{\partial}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{j}}} \left(v \frac{\partial \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}}^{"}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{j}}} \right)$$
(5.4a)

$$\frac{\partial u_1''}{\partial x_1} = 0 \tag{5.4b}$$

These are the equations that will solve by the methods presented previously. The only modification (compare (2.5)) comes from the third term on the left; this term may be regarded as a forcing function due to the mean strain.

Now, we express each variable quantity, f'', as

$$\mathbf{f}'' = \mathbf{f} + \mathbf{f}' \tag{5.5a}$$

where

$$\overline{f}(\underline{x}) = \int G(\underline{x}-\underline{x}') f''(\underline{x}') d\underline{x}' \qquad (5.5b)$$

Note that \overline{f} is now the filtered f" field. The $U_i u_j^{"}$ term in (5.4a) is filtered using the method described in chapter II, giving

$$\overline{U_{i}U_{j}''}(x_{o}) = \int G(\underline{x}, \underline{x}_{o}) \left[U_{i}(\underline{x}_{o}) + \frac{\partial U_{i}(x_{o})}{\partial x_{k}} (x_{k} - x_{ko}) \right] \\ \left[\overline{u_{j}}(\underline{x}_{o}) + \frac{\partial \overline{u}_{j}}{\partial x_{k}} (x_{o}) (x_{k} - x_{ko}) + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2}\overline{u_{j}}}{\partial x_{k}\partial \ell} (x_{k} - x_{ko}) (x_{k} - x_{\ell o}) \right] \\ + \dots u_{j}' \right] d\underline{x} \\ = U_{i}\overline{u_{j}} + \frac{\Delta_{A}^{2}}{24} \nabla^{2} U_{i}\overline{u_{j}} + 0(\Delta_{A}^{4})$$
(5.6)

The model for the residual stress, R_{ij} , is taken as

$$R_{ij} = \frac{1}{3} R_{ll} \delta_{ij} - v_T 2S_{ij}$$
 (5.8)

where now S_{1j} is the total strain-rate,

$$S_{ij} = \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} \left(U_{i} + \overline{u}_{i} \right) + \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{i}} \left(U_{j} + \overline{u}_{j} \right) \right\}$$
(5.9a)

Since we expect the strain-rate to be dominated by small scales, the eddy viscosity, $\nu_{\rm T}$, was evaluated using the vorticity model,

$$v_{\rm T} = (C_{\rm v} \Delta_{\rm A})^2 (\overline{\omega}_{\rm i} \overline{\omega}_{\rm i})^{1/2}$$
(5.9b)

$$\overline{\underline{\omega}} = \operatorname{curl} \overline{\underline{u}}$$
 (5.9c)

Since the imposed flow is irrotational, $\nu^{}_{\rm T}$ is based on the total RMS vorticity.

Then, filtering (5.4), and again neglecting the viscous term, the following equations are obtained (compare (2.28)).

$$\frac{\partial \overline{u}_{i}}{\partial t} = -\frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} \left\{ \overline{u}_{i} \overline{u}_{j} + \frac{\Delta_{A}^{2}}{24} \nabla^{2} (\overline{u}_{i} \overline{u}_{j}) - 2 \nu_{T} (\overline{s}_{ij} + \lambda_{ij}) \right\}$$
$$-\frac{\partial P}{\partial x_{i}} + F_{i} \qquad (5.10a)$$

$$\frac{\partial \mathbf{x}_{i}}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{i}} = 0 \tag{5.10b}$$

where

$$P = \frac{p}{\rho} + \frac{1}{3} R_{ii}$$
 (5.11a)

and

$$\mathcal{S}_{ij} = \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\partial U_i}{\partial x_j} + \frac{\partial U_j}{\partial x_i} \right)$$
(5.11b)

 ${\bf F}_{\underline{1}}$ are the terms through which the major effects of the mean strain come in. These are

$$\mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{i}} = \frac{\partial}{\partial \mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{j}}} \left[\mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{i}} \overline{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{j}} + \mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{j}} \overline{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{i}} + \frac{\Delta_{\mathbf{A}}^{2}}{24} \nabla^{2} \left(\mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{i}} \overline{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{j}} + \mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{j}} \overline{\mathbf{u}}_{\mathbf{i}} \right) \right]$$
(5.11c)

Note the appearance of a Leonard correction term.

For the computation, the difference form of (5.10) is used,

$$\frac{\delta \overline{u}_{i}}{\delta t} = -\frac{\delta}{\delta x_{j}} \left\{ \overline{u}_{i} \overline{u}_{j} + \frac{\Delta_{A}^{2}}{24} \frac{\delta^{2}}{\delta x_{k} \delta x_{k}} \overline{u}_{i} \overline{u}_{j} - 2v_{T} (\tilde{s}_{ij} + \delta_{ij}) \right\}$$
$$- G(P) + \tilde{F}_{i} \qquad (5.12)$$

where \tilde{F}_{i} is the difference form of F_{i} and

$$\tilde{S}_{ij} = \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\delta \overline{u}_{i}}{\delta x_{j}} + \frac{\delta \overline{u}_{j}}{\delta x_{i}} \right)$$
(5.13)

The exact expressions for 3_{ij} were used. As before, the Poisson equation for P is obtained by operating with D on (5.10a),

$$DG(P) = D(\tilde{h}_{i}) + D(\tilde{F}_{i}) - \frac{\delta}{\delta t} D(\overline{u}_{i})$$
 (5.14)

where

$$\tilde{h}_{i} = -\frac{\delta}{\delta x_{j}} \left\{ \overline{u}_{i} \overline{u}_{j} + \frac{\Delta_{A}^{2}}{24} \frac{\delta^{2}}{\delta x_{k} \delta x_{k}} \overline{u}_{i} \overline{u}_{j} - 2v_{T} (\tilde{s}_{ij} + \delta_{ij}) \right\}$$
(5.15)

The space differencing and the time advancing schemes are the same as those explained in Chapter III. Periodic boundary conditions in all three directions were imposed, and the same solution procedure as described in Chapter IV was applied.

5.3 Anisotropic Initial Condition

Anisotropy in grid generated turbulence is not negligible in many experiments (e.g. Grant and Nisbet (1957), Uberoi (1963), Tucker and Reynolds (1968)). Therefore, to make the initial condition reasonably close to the experiments, it was felt desirable to generate an initial field with anisotropy. A method for this will now be described.

Suppose that the u and v components of turbulence energy are equal while the w component is different,

$$<\bar{u}^2 > = <\bar{v}^2 >$$
 (5.16a)

$$\langle \overline{w}^2 \rangle = (1+R) \langle \overline{u}^2 \rangle$$
 (5.16b)

where <> denotes an average over an ensemble of experiments. For the Tucker-Reynolds experiments, w is in the mean flow direction and R \approx 0.45. Now let us decompose \overline{w} into its isotropic part, \overline{w}_{I} , and anisotropic part, \overline{w}_{A} , such that

$$< \overline{u}^2 > = < \overline{v}^2 > = < \overline{w}_{I}^2 >$$
 (5.17a)

and

$$\overline{w} = \overline{w}_{I} + \overline{w}_{A}$$
 (5.17b)

If we assume that the isotropic part can be generated by the method in Chapter IV, then, for continuity to be satisfied,

$$D(\overline{w}_{A}) = 0$$
 (5.18)

This is a crude assumption. However, unless we know more about the initial turbulence structure, this is perhaps the best we can do. Now (5.18) in Fourier transformed space can be written as,

$$\hat{\bar{w}}_{A} k'_{3} = 0$$
 (5.19)

where \uparrow denotes a Fourier transform and k_3' is defined by (3.4). Therefore, $\frac{\uparrow}{w}$ can have a non-zero values only when $k_3' = 0$. Then, following the same procedure discussed in Section 4.4, we get

$$\hat{\vec{w}}_{A}(k_{1},k_{2},0) = \left(\frac{R}{3+R}\hat{q}^{2}\right)^{1/2}$$
 (a+ib) (5.20)

1

where

$$\hat{q}^2 = \hat{u}\hat{u} + \hat{v}\hat{v} + \hat{w}\hat{u}\hat{w} + \hat{w}\hat{v}\hat{w}\hat{A}$$

and $a = \cos \theta$, and $b = \sin \theta$ are obtained from a random angle, θ , with uniform probability from 0 to 2π .

The initial condition for the first run was generated by this procedure and, for an input R of 0.45, the generated field emerged with $R \approx 0.43$. This field had shearing stresses not present in the actual flow, and so the second run was made using an isotropic initial field generated by the method described in Chapter IV. Further studies in Section 5.5 and 5.6 are based on the second run. Both runs are reported for completeness.

5.4 Results

The results of the following two cases are presented.

(1) Anisotropic initial field

$$\frac{\langle \overline{w}^2 \rangle}{\langle \overline{u}^2 \rangle} \simeq \frac{\langle \overline{w}^2 \rangle}{\langle \overline{v}^2 \rangle} \simeq 1.43$$

(2) Isotropic initial field

$$\langle \overline{u}^2 \rangle \simeq \langle \overline{v}^2 \rangle \simeq \langle \overline{w}^2 \rangle$$

For both cases, the mean stream speed was taken as $w_0 = 240$ in/sec, $\Gamma = 1.457/\text{sec.}$, $\Delta = 0.59$ in and $\Delta t = 5.36 \times 10^{-3}$ sec. This corresponds to a Courant number $\sqrt{q^2/3 + U_{\text{max}}^2}$ $\Delta t/\Delta \le 0.15$. The 16^3 mesh system was run using the vorticity model, with $C_v = 0.206$ as obtained from the isotropic decay studies. For convenience of reader, three of the Tucker-Reynolds measurements for the turbulent intensities, $\langle \overline{u}_1^2 \rangle / W_0^2$, the turbulent energy ratios, $\langle \overline{u}_1^2 \rangle / q^2$, and the structural parameter, $K_1 = \{\langle \overline{v}^2 \rangle - \langle \overline{u}^2 \rangle\} / \{\langle \overline{v}^2 \rangle + \langle \overline{u}^2 \rangle\}$, are replotted in Figs. 5.2, 5.3 and 5.4 For the case 1, the same quantities are plotted in Figs. 5.5, 5.6 and 5.7. Here, for comparison, the time in computed results, t, are converted into the downstream distance, Z, by Z = W₀t. The behavior of these are comparable to Tucker and Reynolds results. However, when the strain is turned off, the rate of return to isotropy is much slower than in the experiments. It is interesting that this is consistent with the feelings of some workers that the return to isotropy in the Tucker-Reynolds flow is too rapid (Reynolds 1975), perhaps because of defects in the experimental simulation of homogeneity. The same quantities for case 2 are shown in Figs. 5.8, 5.9 and 5.10.

One-dimensional energy spectra were obtained in a similar manner to that described in Chapter IV (see Tennekes and Lumley (1972)). The only difference is that the shell average in Chapter IV is replaced by a plane average in wave-number space, i.e.

$$\overline{E}_{11}(k_1) = \frac{1}{N^2} \sum_{k_2} \sum_{k_3} \hat{\overline{u}}(\underline{k}_n) \hat{\overline{u}}^*(\underline{k}_n)$$
(5.21)

Here, the notations are the same as before. These spectra were computed at three different times or downstream locations (Figs. 5.11 and 5.12). At zeroth time step, $\overline{E}_{11}(k_1)$, $\overline{E}_{22}(k_2)$ and $\overline{E}_{33}(k_3)$ are almost identical, as they should be. By the end of the straining period (75th time step), E_{11} and E_{22} have become quite different. E_{11} is flatter on the large eddy side while both small-scale spectra are nearly the same. Over the last period, in which there is no strain, the spectra approached one another very slowly, as seen by the spectra at the 125th time step.

The calculations were run on a CDC 7600, and required approximately 7 minutes for each case. Storage requirements were similar to those for isotropic decay.

5.5 Energetics of the Filtered Field

Multiplying (5.10) by \overline{u}_i , taking the ensemble average, and assuming homogeneity, one finds (compare (4.11))

$$\frac{\partial q^2/2}{\partial t} = \mathcal{O} + \mathcal{O}_{L} - \varepsilon_{R} - \varepsilon_{L}$$
 (5.22)

where

$$q^2 = \langle \overline{u_1} \overline{u_1} \rangle$$
 (5.23a)

$$\mathcal{P}_{L} = -\frac{\Delta_{A}^{2}}{24} \left\{ \langle \overline{u}_{i} \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} \nabla^{2} (U_{i}\overline{u}_{j}) \rangle + \langle \overline{u}_{i} \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} \nabla^{2} (U_{j}\overline{u}_{i}) \rangle \right\} (5.23c)$$

 $\varepsilon_{\rm R}$ and $\varepsilon_{\rm L}$ are the dissipation terms discussed in Section 4.9. P and $P_{\rm L}$ are the production terms. Note the appearance of a Leonard production term, $P_{\rm L}$, that comes from the non-linear interaction between the mean strain and the filtered field.

The computed behavior of these terms is shown in Fig. 5.13. Note that Θ_L contributes significantly, particularly where the anisotropy is large near the end of straining period.

5.6 Assessment of Turbulence Closure Models

Turbulence computation of the conventionally averaged (ensemble or space) quantities has been based on some ad hoc closure models with a number of adjustable constants. As pointed out by Reynolds (1974a,b), more systematic approaches are desirable for generalized turbulence models. Even though laboratory experiments provide actual quantities, experiments are limited because important properties like the pressurestrain correlations are difficult to measure directly. On the other hand, computer-generated experiments provide a vast amount of data on the flow field, and hence the numerical experiments can be used to study the closure models. We have attempted to study the pressure-strain terms and other statistical quantities using the present computation. Even though the 16x16x16 mesh calculation gives good results for the energy components, as will be shown shortly we cannot use the computer generated field to compute the pressure-strain term directly, at least not in the present calculation.

The exact Reynolds stress equations for homogeneous flow without mean deformation are

 $\frac{dR_{ij}}{dt} = T_{ij} - D_{ij} \qquad (5.24)$ $T_{ij} = \langle p\left(\frac{\partial u_i}{\partial x_j} + \frac{\partial u_j}{\partial x_i}\right) \rangle$ $D_{ij} = 2\nu \langle \frac{\partial u_i}{\partial x_k} \frac{\partial u_j}{\partial x_k} \rangle$

where

Here u₁ denotes the turbulent components of velocity and p is the turbulent pressure divided by the fluid density.

The pressure-strain term T_{ij} is responsible for the return to isotropy following removal of strain. The modeling of T_{ij} has been the subject of much discussion. Since no direct measurement of this term is known, we tried to estimate this term using the present computation in the return-to-isotropy portion of the computation.

The computed pressure-strain term, (T_{ij}) , was obtained from

$$(T_{ij})_{c} = \langle P\left(\frac{\partial \overline{u}_{i}}{\partial x_{j}} + \frac{\partial \overline{u}_{j}}{\partial x_{i}}\right) \rangle$$
 (5.25)

Here < > denotes an average over the flow field. The fourth order central differencing scheme was used for the $\delta/\delta x_1$ terms.

For comparison T_{ij} was obtained a second way. Using $D_{ij} = 2/3 \epsilon$ (see Reynolds (1974b), (1975)), T_{ij} was obtained from the computed R_{ij} history as

$$(T_{ij})_{R} = \frac{d}{dt} \langle \overline{u}_{i} \overline{u}_{j} \rangle + \frac{2}{3} \varepsilon \delta_{ij}$$
 (5.26)

 $\boldsymbol{\epsilon}$ was estimated from the energy equation, which in the absence of strain is

$$\varepsilon = - \frac{d \langle \overline{u_1} \overline{u_1} / 2 \rangle}{dt}$$
 (5.27)

 ε agreed well with $\varepsilon_R + \varepsilon_L$, computed directly. The time derivatives were approximated by a second order central differencing formula.

Finally, we predicted T_{ij} by Rotta's (1951) model for T_{ij} in the absence of mean strain,

$$(T_{ij})_{m} = -A_{o} \varepsilon b_{ij} \qquad (5.28)$$

where A is a constant and

$$b_{ij} = \frac{\langle \overline{u}_i \overline{u}_j \rangle}{q^2} - \frac{\delta_{ij}}{3}$$

We used $A_{2} = 2.5$, as suggested by Reynolds (1975).

These three results are shown in Fig. 5.14. It appears that $(T_{ij})_c$ is quantitatively poor. This is attributed to the coarseness of the 16^3 mesh. We conclude that T_{ij} undoubtedly contains some Leonard-like terms, and this must account for the difference between $(T_{ij})_c$ and $(T_{ij})_R$. While T_{ij} can be estimated from the R_{ij} equation à la (5.26), it cannot be computed directly from the calculated field with such a coarse grid. A repeat of this work using a 32^3 grid is recommended. This should be accompanied by a careful analysis of the Leonard terms arising in the R_{ij} equations.

CHAPTER VI

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In this thesis we have developed the basic approach to computation of three-dimensional time-dependent turbulent flows. We have seen that, with a modest 16x16x16 mesh and a residual scale stress model, many interesting features of experimental flows can be computed. Work remains to be done in the development of better approaches for using this type of computation to assess turbulence model equations, and to extend the procedure to other flows.

It would be informative to study the effect of the initial spectrum on the rate of return to isotropy. This might be done by removing the strain at different points along the straining portion of the Tucker-Reynolds flow, allowing isotropy to be restored from points with different spectra.

In extending the method to other interesting flows, problems to be resolved include the handling of non-periodic boundary conditions, solid boundaries, and free boundaries connecting the region of computation to irrotational flow outside.

One useful problem to study would be the case of homogeneous turbulence near a wall, without mean shear, for which some experimental data exist (Uzkan and Reynolds (1967)), and would be the diffusion of turbulence into a non-turbulent region, again without shear. It is recommended that experience with these simple problems be gained before a more complex flow is attempted.

When one moves on to handle flows like jets, wakes, and mixing regions, it should be possible to take advantage of the fact that the flow outside of the superlayer is irrotational, and to use the exact solution for unsteady irrotational flow to extend the calculation to infinity out beyond the mesh. Care must be taken that the numerical scheme does not produce vorticity in an irrotational flow; the diffusion of vorticity by $v_{\rm T}$ will also have to be handled in a way that prevents its diffusion into the irrotational external field.

Eventually it may be possible to treat practical flows, such as boundary layers, wakes, combustion, etc.; by these methods. But much more effort should first be devoted to fully understanding the nuances of the residual scale models, grid-schemes, differencing schemes, filters, etc. that are the bases for this type of numerical simulation.











Fig. 3.1. Comparison of Modified Wave Numbers (see Eqn. 3.4 and 3.7)





$$k_1^2$$
 = exact
 \tilde{k}_1^2 = fourth order (see Eqn. 3.15)
 $k_1'^2$ = fourth order (see Eqn. 3.12)
N = 16



Fig. 4.1. Sketch of Wind Tunnel Test Section for a Generation of Isotropic Flow.



Fig. 4.2. Determination of A or B Vector



Fig. 4.3. Unfiltered Initial Energy Spectrum (Data by G. Comte-Bellot and S. Corrsin 1971)





$$\Delta_{A} = 0 ; \Delta = 1.5 \text{ cm}$$



Fig. 4.5. Filtered Energy Spectra 16x16x16 Mesh: Smagorinsky Model:

 $\Delta_{A} = \Delta$; $\Delta = 1.5$ cm







Fig. 4.7. Filtered Energy Spectra-Effect of Leonard Term 16x16x16 Mesh: Vorticity Model:

 $\Delta_{A} = 2\Delta$; $\Delta = .1.5$ cm



Fig. 4.8. Filtered Energy Spectra 32x32x32 Mesh: Smagorinsky Model:

$$\Delta_A = 2\Delta$$
; $\Delta = 1.0$ cm



Fig. 4.9. Sensitivity of Filtered Mean Square Velocity Decay Rate to Smagorinsky Model Constant, C_{g} 16x16x16 Mesh: $\Delta_{A} = 2\Delta$; $\Delta = 1.5$ cm



Fig. 4.10. Decay of Mean Square Filtered Velocity 16x16x16 Mesh: $\Delta_A = 2\Delta$; $\Delta = 1.5$ cm

< > : Average Over all Space


Fig. 4.11. Decay of Mean Square Filtered Velocity. 32x32x32 Mesh: Smagorinsky Model:

 $\Delta_A = 2\Delta$; $\Delta = 1.0$ cm







Fig. 4.13 Comparison of Skewness, S . (see Fig. 4.12 for Definition of S): Smagorinsky Model:

 $\Delta_A = 2\Delta$





16x16x16 Mesh: $\Delta_A = 2\Delta$; $\Delta = 1.5$ cm Vorticity Model. $\varepsilon_o = \varepsilon_R + \varepsilon_L$ at $(U_o t/M - 3.5) = 42$



Fig. 5.1a. Schematic of Wind Tunnel Producing Constant Rate of Strain in x-y Plane



Fig. 5.1b. Equivalent Representation of the Plane Strain in a Box $\Gamma = 1.457$













$$K_{1} = \frac{\langle \bar{v}^{2} \rangle - \langle \bar{u}^{2} \rangle}{\langle \bar{v}^{2} \rangle + \langle \bar{u}^{2} \rangle}$$



Fig. 5.5. Simulation of the Tucker-Reynolds Flow Turbulent Intensities. The solid lines are for decaying turbulence in the absence of strain. (Anisotropic Initial Condition)

$$Z = W_{t}$$











Fig. 5.8. Simulation of the Tucker-Reynolds Flow Turbulent Intensities. The solid lines are for decaying turbulence in the absence of strain. (Isotropic Initial Condition)

 $Z = W_{o}t$



Fig. 5.9. Simulation of the Tucker-Reynolds Flow Turbulent Energy Ratios Under the Plane Strain and the Return to Isotropy in Parallel Flow. (Isotropic Initial Condition)



Fig. 5.10. Simulation of the Tucker-Reynolds Flow Change in Structural Parameter, K (Isotropic Initial Condition)



Fig. 5.11a. One-Dimensional Energy Spectra (Isotropic Initial Condition)



Fig. 5.11b. One-Dimensional Energy Spectra



Fig. 5.11c. One-Dimensional Energy Spectra



Fig. 5.12a. One-Dimensional Energy Spectra at Three Different Downstream Locations (Isotropic Initial Condition)



Fig. 5.12b. One-Dimensional Energy Spectra



Fig. 5.12c. One-Dimensional Energy Spectra





(see Eqns. 5.27, 5.28 and 5.29)

APPENDIX I

ON THE FOURTH ORDER CONSERVATIVE SPACE DIFFERENCING SCHEME

To explain the difference formula used here in detail, consider the following equations.

$$\frac{\partial u_{i}}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} (u_{i}u_{j}) = 0 \qquad (A.1)$$

$$\frac{\partial u_{i}}{\partial x_{i}} = 0 \qquad (A.2)$$

u_i • (A.1)

$$u_{i} \frac{\partial u_{i}}{\partial t} + u_{i} \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} u_{i} u_{j} = 0 \qquad (A.3)$$

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial t} \left(\frac{u_{1}u_{1}}{2} \right) + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} u_{1}u_{1}u_{j} + \frac{u_{1}u_{1}}{2} \frac{\partial u_{1}}{\partial x_{j}} = 0 \qquad (A.4)$$

Integrating (A.4) over all space

$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_{v} \frac{u_{1}u_{1}}{2} dv = -\int_{v} \frac{u_{1}u_{1}}{2} \frac{\partial u_{1}}{\partial x_{j}} dv \qquad (A.5)$$

If div u = 0,

$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_{\mathbf{v}} \frac{\mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}} \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}}}{2} d\mathbf{v} = 0 \qquad (A.6)$$

Now look at difference form of (A.3)

$$\frac{\delta}{\delta t} \frac{u_{i}u_{i}}{2} = -u_{i} \frac{\delta}{\delta x_{j}} u_{i}u_{j} \qquad (A.7)$$

Summing over all mesh points

$$\sum \frac{\delta}{\delta t} \frac{\mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}} \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}}}{2} = -\sum \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}} \frac{\delta}{\delta \mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{j}}} \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{i}} \mathbf{u}_{\mathbf{j}}$$
(A.8)

The RHS of (A.8) has to be zero as in (A.6). Therefore $\delta u_1 u_j / \delta x_j$ must be devised such that RHS summation of (A.8) goes to zero thus conserving the total kinetic energy. The difference formula for $\delta u_1 u_j / \delta x_j$ depends on the type of mesh and the number of neighboring points used.

The following is a fourth order energy conserving scheme using five points in one direction. Following usual convention

$$\overline{f}^{*} = \frac{1}{\Delta} \left[f(x + \frac{\Delta}{2}) + f(x - \frac{\Delta}{2}) \right]$$

$$f_{x} = \frac{1}{\Delta} \left[f(x + \frac{\Delta}{2}) - f(x - \frac{\Delta}{2}) \right]$$
(A.9)

Note that

$$\frac{\partial f}{\partial x} = \overline{f_x}^x + 0(\Delta^2) = \frac{f_{1+1} - f_{1-1}}{2\Delta} + 0(\Delta^2)$$

$$\frac{\partial f}{\partial x} = \frac{4}{3} \overline{f_x}^x - \frac{1}{3} \overline{f_{2x}}^{2x} + 0(\Delta^4) \qquad (A.10)$$

$$= \frac{1}{12\Delta} (f_{1-2} - 8f_{1-1} + 8f_{1+1} - f_{1+2}) + 0(\Delta^4)$$

Now fourth order momentum and energy conserving form of (A.1) and (A.2) are

$$\frac{\partial u_{i}}{\partial t} + \frac{4}{3} \left(\overline{u}_{i}^{x} j \overline{u}_{j}^{x} j \right)_{x_{j}} - \frac{1}{3} \left(\overline{u}_{i}^{2x} j \overline{u}_{j}^{2x} j \right)_{2x_{j}} = 0$$
 (A.11)

$$\frac{4}{3}(\overline{u_{i}})_{x_{i}}^{x_{i}} - \frac{1}{3}(\overline{u_{i}})_{2x_{i}}^{2x_{i}} = 0 \qquad (A.12)$$

To show that these are indeed energy conserving, work with the expanded form of (A.11).

$$\frac{\delta u_{\ell}}{\delta t} + \left\{ \frac{4}{3} (\bar{u}_{\ell}^{x} \bar{u}^{x})_{x} - \frac{1}{3} (\bar{u}_{\ell}^{2x} \bar{u}^{2x})_{2x} \right\} + \left\{ \frac{4}{3} (\bar{u}_{\ell}^{y} \bar{v}^{y})_{y} - \frac{1}{3} (\bar{u}_{\ell}^{2y} \bar{v}^{2y})_{2y} \right\} + \left\{ \frac{4}{3} (\bar{u}_{\ell}^{z} \bar{v}^{z})_{z} - \frac{1}{3} (\bar{u}_{\ell}^{2z} \bar{v}^{2z})_{2z} \right\} = 0$$
 (A.13)

where u_{ℓ} is either u, v or w . u_{ℓ} x (A.13) gives the energy equation. Then sum over all mesh points.

$$\sum u_{\ell} \frac{\delta u_{\ell}}{\delta t} = -\sum \left[u_{\ell} \left\{ \frac{4}{3} (\bar{u}_{\ell}^{x-x})_{x} - \frac{1}{3} (\bar{u}_{\ell}^{2x-2x})_{2x} \right\} + \left\{ v \text{ and } w - \text{ component} \right\} \right]$$

$$= -\sum \left[u_{\ell} \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \frac{4}{3} \quad (\bar{u}_{\ell} \bar{u})_{x}^{x} + u_{\ell} \bar{u}_{x}^{x} + u(\bar{u}_{\ell})_{x}^{x} \right\} - \frac{1}{3} \left((\bar{u}_{\ell} \bar{u})_{2x}^{2x} + u_{\ell} \bar{u}_{2x}^{2x} + u(\bar{u}_{\ell})_{2x}^{2x} \right) \right\}$$

$$+ \dots \right]$$

$$= -\sum \frac{u_{\ell}}{2} \left[\frac{4}{3} \left\{ (\bar{u}_{\ell} \bar{u})_{x}^{x} + u(\bar{u}_{\ell})_{x}^{x} \right\} - \frac{1}{3} \left\{ (\bar{u}_{\ell} \bar{u})_{x}^{2x} + u(\bar{u}_{\ell})_{x}^{2x} \right\} \right]$$

+ v, w, - component

$$-\sum \frac{u_{\ell} u_{\ell}}{2} \left\{ \left[\frac{4}{3} \ \overline{u}_{x}^{x} - \frac{1}{3} \ \overline{u}_{2x}^{2x} \right] + \left[\frac{4}{3} \ \overline{v}_{y}^{y} - \frac{1}{3} \ \overline{v}_{2y}^{2y} \right] \right. \\ \left. + \left[\frac{4}{3} \ \overline{w}_{z}^{z} - \frac{1}{3} \ \overline{w}_{2z}^{2z} \right] \right\}$$
(A.14)

The first summation on RHS of (A.14) is zero for periodic boundary condition. Therefore (A.14) becomes

$$\sum u_{\ell} \frac{\delta u_{\ell}}{\delta t} = -\sum \frac{u_{\ell} u_{\ell}}{2} \left\{ \text{div } u \text{ in 4th order; (A.12)} \right\} \quad (A.15)$$

So if the numerical divergence of velocity is zero, the RHS of (A.15) is zero and (A.11) is indeed energy conserving.

The accuracy of the LHS depends on the time advancing scheme and, as mentioned earlier, the Adams-Bashforth predictor method introduces very weak instability on computational mode. To show that (A.11) and (A.12) are really fourth order accurate, work with a typical term:

$$\frac{4}{3}(\vec{v}\cdot\vec{u}\cdot\vec{u})_{x} - \frac{1}{3}(\vec{v}\cdot\vec{u}\cdot\vec{u})_{2x}$$

$$= \frac{1}{3\Delta} \left\{ (vu)_{(k+1)} - (vu)_{(k-1)} + u_{(k)}(v_{(k+1)} - v_{(k-1)}) + v_{(k)}(u_{(k+1)} - u_{(k-1)}) \right\} - \frac{1}{24\Delta} \left\{ (vu)_{(k+2)} - (vu)_{(k-2)} + u_{(k)}(v_{(k+2)} - v_{(k-2)}) + v_{(k)}(u_{(k+2)} - u_{(k-2)}) \right\}$$

Substitute RHS by Taylor expansion as usual. After some algebra, it can be shown that

$$\frac{4}{3}(\overline{v}^{x}\overline{u}^{x})_{x} - \frac{1}{3}(\overline{v}^{2}\overline{u}^{2})_{2x}$$
$$= \frac{\partial}{\partial x}(vu) - \frac{\Delta^{4}}{60} \left\{ (vu)^{v} + v^{v} + u^{v} \right\} + \dots \quad (A.16)$$

Therefore it is indeed a fourth order scheme. An extension to higher order differencing scheme can be done on the same basic idea. Overall fourth order accuracy is obtained for advective term by using second order energy conserving scheme for the Leonard term.

For convenience, fourth and second order advection term is recapitulated below.



Fourth order energy conserving scheme: $\frac{\partial^{x_{i}}}{\partial u_{i}} = \frac{\partial^{x_{i}}}{\partial u_{i}} + \frac{\partial^{y_{i}}}{\partial u_{i}} + \frac{\partial^{y_{i}}}{\partial u_{i}} + \frac{\partial^{z_{i}}}{\partial u_{i}} + \frac{\partial^$ $= \left\{ \frac{4}{3} \left(\frac{x^{-x}}{u^{-x}} \right)_{x} - \frac{1}{3} \left(\frac{x^{-2x}}{u^{-2x}} \right)_{2x} \right\}$ + $\left\{\frac{4}{3}(\bar{u}_{1}^{y}\bar{v}_{y}^{y})_{y} - \frac{1}{3}(\bar{u}_{1}^{2y}\bar{v}_{y}^{2y})_{2y}\right\}$ $+ \left\{ \frac{4}{3} (\bar{u}_{1}^{z} \bar{v}_{z}^{z})_{z} - \frac{1}{3} (\bar{u}_{1}^{2z} \bar{v}_{z}^{2z})_{2z} \right\} + 0(\Delta^{4})$ $= \begin{cases} \frac{1}{3\Delta} \left[(u_{1}u_{1}) (k+1) - (u_{1}u_{1}) (k-1) + u ((u_{1}) (k+1) - (u_{1}) (k-1)) \right] \end{cases}$ + $(u_i) \left({}^{u}(k+1) - {}^{u}(k-1) \right) - \frac{1}{24\Delta} \left[{}^{(u_iu)}(k+2) - {}^{(u_iu)}(k-2) \right]$ + $u \left((u_1)_{(k+2)} - (u_1)_{(k-2)} \right) + u_1 \left(u_{(k+2)} - u_{(k-2)} \right) \right\}$ $+ \left\{ \frac{1}{3\Delta} \left[(u_{1}v)(l+1) - (u_{1}v)(l-1) + v \left((u_{1})(l+1) - (u_{1})(l-1) \right) \right] \right\}$ + $u_{i}(v_{(l+1)} - v_{(l-1)}) - \frac{1}{24\Delta} \left[(u_{i}v)_{(l+2)} - (u_{i}v)_{(l-2)} \right]$ + $v \left((u_{1})_{(l+2)} - (u_{1})_{(l-2)} \right)^{+} u_{1} \left(v_{(l+2)} - v_{(l-2)} \right) \right\}$ $\begin{cases} \frac{1}{3\Delta} \left[(u_{i}^{W})_{(m+1)} - (u_{i}^{W})_{(m-1)} + W ((u_{i})_{(m+1)} - (u_{i})_{(m-1)} \right) \right] \end{cases}$ + $u_{i} \left(w_{(m+1)} - w_{(m-1)} \right) - \frac{1}{24\Delta} \left[(u_{i}w)_{(m+2)} - (u_{i}w)_{(m-2)} \right]$ + $w \left((u_{1})_{(m+2)} - (u_{1})_{(m-2)} \right) + u_{1} \left(w_{(m+2)} - w_{(m-2)} \right) \right\}$ (A.17) + 0 (4)

Second order scheme:

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial x_{j}} (u_{j}u_{j}) = \frac{\partial}{\partial x} u_{j}u + \frac{\partial}{\partial y} u_{j}v + \frac{\partial}{\partial z} u_{j}w$$

$$= (\overline{u}_{j}^{x}\overline{u}^{x})_{x} + (\overline{u}_{j}^{y}\overline{v}^{y})_{y} + (\overline{u}_{j}^{z}\overline{w}^{z})_{z} + 0(\Delta^{2})$$

$$= \frac{1}{4\Delta} \left\{ (u_{j}u)_{(k+1)} - (u_{j}u)_{(k-1)} + u_{(u_{j})_{(k+1)}} - (u_{j})_{(k-1)} \right) \right\}$$

$$+ u_{j} \left((u_{(k+1)} - u_{(k-1)}) + (u_{j}v)_{(k+1)} - (u_{j}v)_{(k-1)} \right)$$

$$+ v \left((u_{j})_{(k+1)} - (u_{j})_{(k-1)} \right) + u_{j} \left(v_{(k+1)} - v_{(k-1)} \right)$$

$$+ (u_{j}w)_{(m+1)} - (u_{j}w_{m-1}) + v \left((u_{j})_{(m+1)} - (u_{j})_{(m-1)} \right)$$

$$+ u_{j} \left(w_{(m+1)} - w_{(m-1)} \right) \right\} + 0(\Delta^{2}) \qquad (A.18)$$

The subscript is shown whenever it is different from (k,l,m), i.e. $u(k+1) \stackrel{\approx}{} u(k+1,l,m)$

APPENDIX II

FLOW CHARTS AND PROGRAM

Overall Flow Chart



Flow Chart for INICON



*DECK MAIN (INPUT, DUTPUT, TAPE9, TAPEID) PROGRAM MAIN C THIS CONTROLS THE OVERALL SEQUENCE OF COMPUTATION. C THE COMPUTATION IS PERFORMED MOSTLY IN THE SHALL CORE BY TRANSFERING A C DATA FROM THE LAPGE CORE MEMORY, AT THE END OF EACH TIME STEP THE C STATISTICAL DUANTITIES ARE PRINTED OUT. AT THE END OF THE COMPUTA-C TION VELOCITIES AND THE FIGHT HAND SIDE OF MOMENTUM EQUATIONS ARE C STORED FOR CONTINUATION. C + + INTEGER TIME, ZO, ZM1, ZM2, ZP1, 7P2, 7, ZADD1, ZLESS1, ZSAVE, PLANE 1 .TSTART, TEND REAL K, NLEN, NAVG LARGE FM(16,16,16),G(16,16,16),E(16,16,16),ET(10,16,16), 01(16,16,16),02(14,18,16),90HH(16,3),PD(192) 1 LARGE UM(16,16,16),VM(16,16,16),MM(16,16,16),JGU(16,16,16) ,GV(16,16,16),GW(16,15,16) LARGE RUCIE, 16, 161, HV(16, 16, 16), RW(16, 16, 16), P1(16, 16, 16) , GU1 (16, 16, 16), GV1 (16, 16, 16), GV1 (16, 16, 16) DIMENSION U(10,10,5), V(10,16,5), W(10,16,5), P(10,10,5) , DUMMY(16, 16, 6), STR(16, 16, 3), K(16, 16, 3), FR(16, 16), FI(16, 16) , THE (R, 3), TRJ(R, 3), GP(14), GI(16), NWAVE(16), NEFT(3) COMMON/DATA1/U,V,H C0MM08/04142/P COMPUNIONTA3/SIG.K COMMON/DATA4/DUMMY CUMMUN/LATA5/GR, GT, TRR, THT CUMMUN/DATA7/FR,Ft CONMON/DATA8/NWAVE, NEET COMMON/DATA9/IMAX, JHAX, LMAX, NHALF, NAVG, NEEN, NSPEC COEF1=1./(144.+DELTA++2) C CUEF2=C+DELTA+0.5 C C COEF4=1./24. Ĉ COEF5=1./(4.+DELTA++3) Ĉ COFFA=12. JOELTA ¢ COEF7=1./(12.*DELTA) ¢ COEF71=1./(72.+DELT4++2) ¢ COEF8=2,/(3,+DT) Ĉ CUEF9=PI+DELT4+5./3. С ALPHA=DT/(48.+DELTA) C PETAF1.//48.+DELTA) C COFEI N FOR THE FIRST TIME STEP #1.5 AFTERWARDS Ĉ UTHORG=Un+T/M=3.5 UTHEREAN CONVECTIVE DOWNSTREAM VELOCITY Ç Ĉ Ĉ. ---INITIATION C INRITERI HTMORGE38,5 U0M=1000,/5.08 CGF1=0.5 CALL INTCON (CREF1, CREF2, CREF3, CREF4, CREF5, CREF6, CREF7, CREF8, CREF9 1, COEFI1, COEFI4, ALPHA, COF, DELTA, DT, CONST, HFR, NWRITE, GAMMA, 2 TSTART, TEND, NMODEL) NEILTEL #US=1,/(HFR++2) GAMMASEGAMMA++2 GCOF=GANPA+COEF7

> ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

```
ROBRAMMA /6.
      GD=GANMA/DELTA
      GD2=0.5+GD
      COEF16=(DELT4+NAVG)++2/24.
      COEF17#(COEF11/DELTA)##2
      CORF71#CORF7/(6.+DELTA)
      RETARCOEF7/4.
      TOTV#1./4096.
C
C---- COMPUTATION STARTS
C
      DO 300 TINEETSTART, TEND
   10 CONTINUE
C----COMPUTE FORY VISCOSITY "E".
      Z=1
      ZM1=1
      70=2
      7P1=3
C----FIRST TRANSFER DATA FROM LCM TO SCM FOR THE PLANES LELMAX AND 1
      SMALLIN (0(1,1,1),00(1,1,L"AX),256)
      SMALLIN (V(1,1,1),VM(1,1,LMAX),256)
      SMALLIN (W(1,1,1), WH(1,1,1 MAX), 256)
      SHALLIN (11(1,1,2), UP (1,1,1), 256)
      SHALLIN (V(1,1,2),VH(1,1,1),256)
      SHALLIN (W(1,1,2), WM(1,1,1), 256)
      DO 700 LE1,LMAX
      LP1=L+1
      IF (I. ER. LMAY) LPIET
      TRANSFER VELOCITIES FOR THE PLANERL+1
C
      SMALLIN (U(1.1, ZP(), UN(1.1.LP1), 256)
      SMALLIN (V(1,1,2P1),VM(1,1,LP1),256)
      SMALLIN (W(1,1,241), MM(1,1,1P1), 250)
      THEN WE CAN COMPUTE EDDY VISCOSITY AT THE PLANEEL
C
      60 TO (20,25) MMODEL
   20 CALL VISCS(Z0,741,791,7,COEF2)
      66 TO 30
   25 CALL VISCV(Z0,7M1,ZP1,Z,COEF2)
   30 CONTINUE
      THE EDDY VISCOSITY ON THE PLANERL IS TRANSFERED TO E IN LCH
С
      SPALLOUT (K(1,1,Z),E(1,1,L),256)
      ZSAVE=ZM1
      ZM1=20
      ZOBZPI
      ZPIZZSAVE
  700 CONTINUE
C----COMPUTE H(I). THEN STORE THEM IN GU, GV & GW
      ZM2=1
      711=2
      20=3
      ZP1=4
      ZP2=5
      SM4LLIN (U(1,1,1), UM(1,1,LMAX=1),512)
      SMALLIN (V(1,1,1),VM(1,1,LMAX=1),512)
      SMALLIN (H(1,1,1), WM(1,1,LMAY-1),512)
      SHALLIN (11(1,1,3),111(1,1,1),768)
      SMALLIN (V(1,1,3), VM(1,1,1),768)
      SMALLIN (W(1,1,3),WM(1,1,1),768)
      SMALLIN (# (1,1,1), E(1,1,LMAX), 256)
      SMALEIN (#(1,1,2),E(1,1,1),512)
      7LES51=1
      2=2
      74001=3
```

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

DD 760 PLANER1, LMAX CALL VELOC (20,241,242,291,292,2,2LESS1,7ADD1,RETA,COEF6,COEF7, DT, COF, GANNA, GAMMAS, GCOF, GD2, GD, NELTA, G6) 1 SMALLOUT (DUMMY(1,1,1), GU(1,1, PLANE), 256) SHALLOHT (DUMPY (1,1,2), GV(1,1, PLANE), 256) SMALLOUT(DUMMY(1,1,3),GW(1,1,PLANE),256) . SMALLOHT (SIG(1,1,1), D1(1,1, PLANE), 256) SMALLOUT (SIG(1,1,2),02(1,1,PLANE),256) PIIPRESSURE CONTRIBUTION HY MEAN NOTION C SHALLOHT (DUPMY(1,1,4), GHI((,1,PLANE),256) SMALLOUT (DUMMY(1,1,5), GV1(1,1, PLANE), 256) SMALLOHT (DUMMY(1,1,6), GW1(1,1, PLANE), 256) CALL DIVECE (20,241,242,701,282,00887) SMALLOUT (DUMMY(1,1,6), R(1,1, PLANE), 256) ZSAVEEZLESS1 7LE881=Z 7=ZADD1 74001=784VE LEPIANE+2 TF (L "GT, LMAX) LEL-LMAX SMALLIN (K(1,1,ZAOD13,E(1,1,L),256) 284VE#2M2 712=241 7H1=20 70=781 2P1=2F2 7P2=7SAVE L=FLANE+3 IF (L GT. LHAX) LEL-LMAX SWALLIN (1111,1,2P2),UN(1,1,1,1,256) SHALLIN (V(1,1,2P2), VH(1,1,1), 3,256) SHALLIN (W(1,1,7P21,WH(1,1,L),256) 760 CONTINUE C----NOW GU, GV, GH ARE COMPUTED AND DIV U IS STORED IN G. C COMPUTE DIV(GU). THEN GET G 7.12=1 7M1=2 20=3 7P1=4 2F2=5 SHALLIN (H(1,1,1), GH(1,1,LHAX-1),512) SHALLIN (V(1,1,1), GV(1,1,LMAX-1), 512) SMALLIN (W(1,1,1),GH(1,1,LMAX-1),512) SMALLIN (U(1,1,3),GU(1,1,1),768) SMALLIN (V(1,1,3),GV(1,1,1),768) SHALLIN (*(1,1,3),6*(1,1,1),768) DO 770 PLAMEST, LMAX rall DIVGCE(70,241,242,791,792,00EF7) Shall(HIT (DUMNY(1,1,6), PM(1,1, PLANE), 256) ZSAVE=ZM2 728281 741=20 70=7P1 741=292 7P2=ZSAVE I EPLANE+3 TF (L .GT. LMAX) LEL-LMAX SHALLIN (U(1,1,2P2),GU(1,1,L),256) SMALLJN (V(1,1,2P2), GV(1,1,L1,256) SMALLIN (W(1,1,2P2),GW(1,1,L),256) 770 CONTINUE C---P(GU) IS STURED IN PM

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY 94

```
NO 780 LEI, LMAX
      DO 780 JE1, JMAX
      DO 780 INI.IMAX
      P1(T,J,L)=COEFR+G(I,J,L)+PM(T,J,L)
  780 CONTINUE
C----NOW G IS TEMPORARILY STORED IN PI
C----COMPUTE G1
      2M2#1
      Z#1=2
      20=3
      291=4
      7P2=5
      SMALLIN (U(1,1,1),GU1(1,1,LMAX-1),512)
      SMALLIN (V(1,1,1), GV1(1,1,LMAX-1),512)
      SMALLIN (*(1,1,1), GW1(1,1,LMAX-1),512)
      SMALLIN (00(1,1,3),601(1,1,1),768)
      SMALLIN (V(1,1,3),GV1(1,1,1),768)
      SMALLIN (+(1,1,3),6+1(1,1,1),768)
      DU 1770 PLANFET, LMAX
      CALL DIVECE(70, 241, 242, 791, 792, COEF7)
      SMALLULT (DUMMY(1,1,6),G(1,1,PLANE),256)
      ZSAVE=7H2
      712=ZM1
      Z+1=Z0
      20=2P1
      7F1=ZP2
      ZFP=ZSAVE
      L=PLANE+3
      TF (L .GT. LMAX) LEL-LMAX
    . SMALLIN (U(1,1,2P2),GU1(1,1,1),256)
      SMALLIN: (V(1,1,2F2),GV1(1,1,L),256)
      SMALLIN (+(1,1,2P2),641(1,1,1),256)
 1770 CONTINUE
C----COMPUTE P1
      CALL PRESS (COEF3, COEF11, COEF71)
C----NOW STONE P1 TO P1 FROM PM AND SHIFT & FROM P1 TO G1
      DO 1880 LE1, LMAX
      SMALLIN (DUMMY(1,1,1),P1(1,1,L),256)
      SHALLIN (DUMMY(1,1,2), PM(1,1,L),256)
      SPALLOHT (DUMMY(1,1,1),G(1,1,L),256)
      SMALLDUT (DUMMY(1,1,2), P1(1,1,L),256)
 TABO CONTINUE
С
      PRINT 903
      00 400 L=1,16
      PRINT 904, L
      PRINT 902, (E(1,10,L),1#1,16)
  400 CONTINUE
      PRINT 917
      DO 401 J=1.16
      PRINT 918, J
      PRINT 902, (E(1,J,10), T#1,16)
  401 CONTINUE
C
      CALL PRESS(CDEF3, CDEF11, CDEF71)
C----STORE 11, V, W, P AT FIVE STEP INTERVAL
       TF (MSTORE , EQ. 5) GO TO 110
      NSTOREENSTORE+1
      0211-07-00
  110 NTIME STTHE-1
      WRITE (9) NTIME, UH, VM, WM, PM, P1
       FND FILE 9
```

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

NSTORE=1 120 CONTINUE C---PHSEGU(I)-DP/DY(I) C----STORE PHS(N) TO ROUM. THEN ADVANCE 1 STEP DD 800 LE1,LMAX 1 MZEL-2 1,41=1=1 LP1=L+1 LP2=1+2 783,784) L 781 LH2ELMAX-1 LM1=LMAX GO 10 785 782 LM2=LHAX GO TO 785 783 | P2=1 GO TO 785 784 LP1=1 165±5 785 CUNTINUE 00 800 JE1, JMAX JKS=J=S JM1=J+1 JP1=J+1 JP2=J+2 - 788,789) J 784 JM2=JM4X=1 JE1=JEAX CO TH 700 787 JM2=JMAX GO TU 790 788 JP2=1 GU 10 790 789 JP1=1 JP2=2 790 CONTINUE DO 800 Ist, IMAX Z=[s2M] TM1=J-1 IP1=I+1 JP2=I+2 793,794) 1 791 1#2#JHAX+1 THISIMAX GO TO 795 792 1M2=1H4X GO TO 795. 793 JP2=1 GU TO 795 794 JP1=1 192=2 795 CONTINUE FCUM(1,1)=GU(1,J,L)=COEF7+(PM(1M2,J,L)=8,+(PM(1M1,J,L)=PM(1P1,J,L) I=F*(TP?,J,L)) R0U4(1,2)=GV(1,J,L)=C0EF7+(PH(1,1M2,L)=6,+(PM(1,JH1,L)=PH(1,JP1,L) -)-P+(T, 1P2,L)) - #DNM(1,3)=G4(1,J,L)=CNEF7+(P4(1,J,LM2)=8',+(PM(1,J,LM1)=PM(1,J,LP1) =)-P^K(T,J,LP2)) UM(1,J,L)=UM(1,J,L)+DT+(COF+PDUP(1,1)=0,5+RU(1,J,L))

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

```
VM(I,J,L)=VM(I,J,L)+DT+(COF+QDUH(I,2)=0.5+QV(I,J,L))
       WM(1,J,L)#HM(1,J,L)+DT+(COF+RDUM(1,3)=0.54RH(1,J,L))
       RU(I,J,L)=RDUM(I,1)
       RV(J,J,L)=RDUM(I,2)
      FW(I,J,L)=FUUM(I,3)
  ROD CONTINUE
-C----TURBULENT ENERGY
       TKU20.
       TKV±0.
       TKWEO.
       00 230 L=1,LMAX
       FOUR(L,11=0.
       FDUN(L.2)=0.
       ROUM(L,3)=0.
       00 230 J=1, JMAX
       00 230 I=1, IMAX
       1×0=1×0+0*(1,J,L)++2
       T#V=TKV+V*(T.J.L)++2
       THN=TKH+HM(I,J,L)++2
       ROUD(L, 1)=ROUM(L, 1)+US(J, J,L)
       4000 (F'SJ=E0004(F'SJ+A:(J' 1'F)
       900M(L,3)=FDHM(L,3)+MM(I,J,L)
  230 CUNTINHE
       THUSTRUSTDIV
       TKVETKVATDIV
       TKWETKWATDIV
       1151/M#0.
       VSUMBO.
       NSUMEO.
       DO SAU FEI'FHAX
       1990% = 05C* + Potes(L.,1)
       VSUMEVSUM+RDDM(L)2)
       WSUM=WSUM+ROPN(L+3)
  240 CONTINUE
C
       COF±1.5
       FRINT 910
       PRINT 908
       TKSUM=TKU+TKV+TKW
       PRINT 909, TIME , TRH, TRV, TRW, TRSHM
       RTIMESTIMESDT
       DISTRUFR+RTIME
       SHATIO#EXP(0.0185416+DIST)
       PRINT 915, RTINE, DIST, SRATIO
       TKDJV=1./TKSUM
       TKUIETKUETKDIV
       IRAIZIKATKŪIA
       TKWS#TKW+TKDTV
       1K1=(1KV=1K11)/(1KV+1K11)
       PRINT 904, TKU1, TKV1, THU1, TK1
       UTMEDOMATIMEADT AUTMORG
       U0U=1,0E+06/TKU
       1:0V=1_0E+06/TKV
       110H=1. NE+06/TKW
       104=3.0E+06/TKSUM
       PRINT 911, UTM, UOH, HOV, HOW, UNA
       UWBTKII+HOS.
       VWETHVANNS
       KHOTKK+NOS
       DWETH SHII+WOS
       PRIMT 916,11W, VW, WW, DW
 C----DISSIPATION TERMS; LEUNARD, SGS, TOTAL,
```

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY
98

DLENEO. DSGS=0. DO 241 L=1, LMAY D0 241 J=1, JMAX DO 241 I=1, IMAX DLEN#OLEN+D1(I,J,L) D\$G5=D\$G5+D2(1,J,L) 241 CONTINUE DTOT=OLEN+DSGS PRINT 913, DLEN, DSGS, DTOT -C---- SKEWNESS CHECK SH3=0. SK2=0. 00 260 1#1, IMAX 145=1-5 7*1=7-1 1P1=J+1 5+1=591 TF (I .GT. 2) GO TO 253 I (251,252) UT 00 251 TM1=LMAX 11-2=1-4×+1 60 10 256 252 THIZELMAX 60 10 256 253 11=1Max-1 IF (1 .LT. 11) 60 TO 256 T2=TMAY=T+1 GO TO (255,254) 12 254 IP2=1 60 10 256 255 141=1 192=2 256 CONTINUE DO 260 JE1, JHAY DO 260 LEI,LMAX DUDX=UM(142,J,L)=8,+(UM(IN1,J,L)=UM(191,J,L)=UM(192,J,L) SK3=SK3+0UDX++3 SK2=SK2+DUDX++2 260 CONTINUE · . . 543=5K3+T0IV \$K2=(\$K2+T01V)**1.5 SK=5+3/5+2 PRINT 912,5K GO TO (270,280) NEILT 270 NEILTER GD 10 281 280 HETLTEL 281 CONTINUE PHINT 908 PRINT 905 NU 410 LE1, NHALF PRINT 90%,L PPINT 902, (""(I,in,L), I=1,NHALF) PHINT 902, (VM(1,10,L), T=1,NHALF) PHINT 902, (WM(1,10,1), 1=1, NHALF) PRINT 902, (PDUA(L,1),1=1,3) 410 CONTINUE PRIMT 902, USUM, VSUM, ASUM 300 CONTINUE WRITE (9) TIME, UM, VM, WM, PM, PI, RU, RV, RW END FILE 9

320 CONTINUE

902 FURHAT (X, 5(E14.6.X))

904 FORMAT (X, +PLANE = +)13)

DO3 FORMAT (///,X, *EDOY VISCOSITY AT J=10*)

905 FORMAT (///, x, +VELOCITY AT J=10 ; UE +)

n an de artes de la composition de la c Composition de la comp Records de la composition de la composit

```
------
                   )
    -----
 909 FORMAT (X,1H+, 5X, +TIME STEP#+, 14,5X,+12 #+,F14,7, 5X, +V2 #+,
    - E14.7, 5x, +42 =+, E14.7, + SUM3+, E14.7, 194, 1H+1
 910 ECENAT (1H1)
 911 F(19MAT (y, 1++,5x,+Un1/M#+,F12,5,3x,+Un2/U2#+,E12,5,3x,+U02/V2#+,
    - E12.5, XX, +102/W2++, E12.5, XX, +102/114VG2++, E12.5.14X, 14+)
 912 FORMAT (4,1++,54,+6KENNESS-+(04/9x) =+,E12.5,91x,1++)
 013 FORMAT (x, 104, 5X, +01881PATION) LEOMARDE+, E12, 5, 3X, +868#+, E12, 5,
        3x, +TOTAL=+, E12,5, 49x, 1++)
    1
 915 FURMAT (Y, 1H4, 5X, AREAL TIMERA, FB.4, 5X, ADISTANCERA, F9.4,
 1 + IN+, 5X, +STRAIN RETICE+, F7.3, 53X, (H+)
916 FURMAT (X, 1H+, 5X, 1240++2/40++2 = ,E14.7, 4X, 124V++2/40++2 = ,
    1 - Flu.7, 4x, 12H+++2/40++2 4 ,E14.7, 4x, 12H0++2/40++2 =,E14.7,
       -4X, 1H+)
 917 FURMAT (///,X,+EDDY VISCOSITY AT PLANEEIN#)
 918 FORMAT (X, +J=+, 13)
     STOP
     END
*DECK THICON
     SUBROUTINE INTON (COEFL, COEFL, COEFL, COEFL, COEFL, COEFL, COEFL, COEFL,
    -COFF8,COEF9,COEF11,COEF14,ALPHA,COF,DELTA,DT,CONST,UTM,NHRITE,
    2 GAMMA, TSTART, TEND, MMODEL )
C THIS SUPHOUTINE INITIATES THE PROGRAM, FOR STARTING PROBLEM, THE INI-*
 TIAL FIELD IS GENERATED. FOR CONTINUATION PROBLEM, THE DATA STORED *
C
C ON TAPE AT THE END OF THE PREVIOUS RUN ARE READ IN.
C+++
                                      *****
     THTEGER PLANE, TSTART, TEND
     REAL HOIV, MI2, NX, MSHR, K, NLEN, MAVG
     1486F PM(10,10,10),8(3A,10,1A),F(16,16,1A),ET(16,16,16),
        - D)(16,16,16)D)D2(16,16,16)P(0)P(0)P(0)PD1(60)PD2(00)
    1
     LARGE UP(10,10,10),VP(16,16,10),WP(16,10,10) /UT(16,16,16)
     • ,VI(14,14,16),*I(16,16,16)
LARGE RU(16,14,16),?V(16,16,16),?%(16,16,16),P1(16,16,16)
        ,GU1(16,16,16),GV1(16,16,16),GV1(10,16)
     - NIMERSTON HH(16,16,16), N(16,1%,16), FR(16,16), FT(15,16), TPP(8,3),
     - TRI(8,3), HOUM(14,2), GR(16), GI(16), NMAVE(16), NEET(3)
     COMMUNICATASILR, G1. TRR, TRL
     COMMON/DATA7/FR,FI
     COMMON/DATAR/NWAVE, NEET
     COMMON JOATAOVIESY, JMAX, LMAX, MHALF, NAVG, NLEN, NSPEC
C----- STARTEL STARTING FROM TIME STEPED
C----RSTART#2 CONTINUED FROM PREVIOUS RUN
C----- INAXEMAXIMUM NESH NUMBER IN Z-DIRECTION
C----TSTARTESTARTING TIME STEP .
C---- TENDRENDING TIME STEP
```

006 FORMAT (X, 1H+,5X, 0+1++2/8114# , F14.7, 5%, 94V++2/8114# , E14.7,

1 5x, 9HW++2/SUME , E14,7, 5x, +K1=(V2-127/(V2+12)=+, E14,7,9X,1H+)

C----DELTA: MESH SIZE C PIETINE STEP C----C=MODEL CONSTANT C----PAVGEDELTA (AVERAGING) / DELTA (MESH) C----ANTSOR R IN EQUATION (5,168) C----GAMMASSTPAIN RATE C----HHONELSI FOR SHAGORINSKY MODEL C----HUDDEL=2 FOR VOSTICITY MODEL READ 703, NSTART, IMAX, JMAX, LMAX, TSTART, TEND, NHODEL READ 4. DELTA, DT.C. NAVE, ANTED, HTM. GAMMA +LEN=XAVG++2 NESHE16 NHALFENMESH/2 NEPISHHALF+1 1111=11+584=1 F150=3./(3.+ANISU) TEMPEANISO/3. PANISORSCRT(TEPP) CC=1. TFECEIMAXAJMAYALMAX FAC=SORT(TFAC) COEF1=1./(144.+0ELT4++2) COFF2=C+DELTA+0.5 COEF#=1./24. COEF5=1,/(4,+DELTA++3) COFF0=12./DELTA COFF7=1./(12.*DELTA) CUEF72=COEF7+2. COEF8=2./(3.+DT) COFF9=0,31415926535898 FOFF10-3.1415426535440/NHALE COLF11=COEF10 - COFF12=3,1415925535898+2, ALPHA=DT/(48.+DELTA) CUPST=COEFIO/ DELTA ł CONSTS#CONST++2 CUEF14=COEF12+FAC+CONSTS COEF15=COEF12+F4C Pl1=COEF10 PI2=PI1+2. . CALL START (COEF3, COEF11, CELTA) GC TO (1,1000,5000), NSTART 1 CUF=1.0 NCONTEL DO 2 Ma1,25 Y9EDGEN(X9) 2 CONTINUE C----ENERGY SPECTRUM DATA " C-----I,1 INTERVAL DP TO 1.0 THEN 'S INTERVALL UP TO 6.0 C----FN IS THE ENERGY SPECTRUM FOR THE ISOTROPIC PART, ENI IS FOR THE C ANISOTROPIC PART. 00 3 "#1,24,A 17=++7 READ 4, (EN(MY), MARH, M7) 3 CONTINUE 10 503 HE1,24,A 472147 PEADEL, (EN1(MM),MHEM,M7) 503 CONTINUE U FORMAT (BEID. U) - DO 5 L#1,LMAX ND 5 JEL. JMAX ORIGINAL PAGE IS 100 OF POOR QUALITY

DD 5 IH1,1MAX UR(1, J, L)=0. VR(],J,L)=0. WR(],J,L)=0. UI(1,J,L)=0. VI(1, J,L)=0. "[(],J,L1=0, PU(1,J,L)=0. WV(I,J,L)=0. R×(J,J,L)=0. 5 CONTINUE DD 40 Lat, MHALF 1.L≇L N3=L=1 N35=N3++2 DU 30 JE1, NM1 JINDEX=J/8 JJ=J+NHP1=JINDEX+JHAX NZEJONHALF M25=N2++2 144,1=1 05 00 11NDEx=1/8 II#I+NHP1=IINDEX#IMAX NIRIONHALF N15=N1++2 NSOREN1S+N2S+N3S TE (NSOR LT. 0.1) GD TO 20 MAVNESDRT(NSOR) NOIVELLIVAN N12=N15+N25 IT CHIE .LT. C. I) NEDATER IF (ARS(A1) ER NHALF AND' ARS(N2) ER' NHALFI NCONT#2 C----RET FOURTER AMPLITURE OF THE INITIAL FIELD AD DESCRIBED IN SEC 4.4 7 X=CONST+WAVN NREG#X+1. 1 GO TO (310,315,315,315,315,315,315) NREG 310 M=X/0_1 YMRX=0.1+M M12M+1 EDHEN(M1)-EN(M) ENERGYEEN(M)+ED+YM+10. EDAsEH1(M1)-EN1(M) EANISDEEN1(H)+EDA+VM+10. CO TO 320 315 M=(Y+1,)+2. YM=x+1,=0,5+4 M=M+10 MIEH+1 FDSEN("1) -EN(M) ENERGYEEN(H)+ED+YM+2. EDAGEN1(M1)=EN1(M) EANISOREN1 (N)+EDA+YM+2. 320 05#ENE9GY+RISC/(COEF15+Y++2) ONESORT (OS) QSAEEAMISC+RISC/(CDEF15+X++2) . QNASSORT(OSA) C----CHANGE WAVE HUMBER VECTOR TO SATTSFY NUMERICSL DIV FREE C----PI, R2, AND R3 ARE THE MODIFIED WAVE NUMBER 60 10 (330,340) NCONT 330 CONTINUE ARGIEPTIANS ARG2=FI2+N1

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

P1=(8,+STN(ARG1)+STN(ARG2))+C0EF72 ARG1 PPI1 +N2 AKG2=FI2+N2 R2=(8,+SIN(ARG1)=SIN(ARG2))+COEF72 ARG1=PI1+N3 ARG2=PT2+N3 R3=(8,+STN(APG1)+SIN(ARG2))+COEF72 P15=P1++2 928=P2++2 F352#3++2 P125#R15+R25 PS0=P128+P35 GO TO (335,340) NOONT 335 CONTINUE P12=80FT(8128) R1201va1./P12 PDJV=1./SORT(PSO) ---GET A & H VECTOR Ć FIRST CHOOSE RANDOM PHT C 340 CONTINUE. YY=RGEN(XX) PHI=YY+COEF12 CPHI=COS(PHI) SPH1=SIN(PHT) 60 TO (8,11) +CONT A CONTINUE A1=(-#2+CPHI+#1+#3+#31V*SPHI1+#1201V A2=(#1+CPHI+#2+#3+#01V+SPHI)+R120IV A3==F12+PDIV+SPHI CALL RANDOM PHT C VZ=RUEN(XZ) PHT=Y2+CDEF12 CPHI=COS(PHT) SPHJESIN(PHI) H1=(-#2+CPHI+R1+R3+RD1V+SPHJ)+R12DIV R2=(#)+CPHI+R2+R3+RDIV+SPHI)+R12DIV R3==F12+R0IV+SPHI CO TO 12 11 CONTINUE INDEX=(YY+0,25)+4 PHI=0,7853982+(2+1N0EX=1) A1=SIN(PHI) A2=COS(PHI) A3=0. VISEGEN(X1) TNDEX=(Y1+0,25)+4 PHI=0.7853982*(2*1NDEX=)) PI=SIN(PHI) 22=COS(PHI) B3=0. NCONTE1 -12 CONTINUE DETERMINE & AND B TH EQUATION (4.6) C RANNCH THETA C Y3=RGEN(X3) THETASY3+COEF12 CAECUS (THETA) CESEIN (THETA) HR(II,JJ,LL)#GM+CA+A1 VR(TI,JJ,LL)=DNACA+A2 **KP([],JJ,LL)** = DN+CA+43 11(11,JJ,LL)#6N+C6+81

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY



VI(II,JJ,LL)#AN+C8+83 WI(II,JJ,LL)#ON+C8+83 JF (N3 .NE. 03 GD TU 20 WSIGNEARS(43)/A3 5 VSJGN#ABS(B3)/83 KRANSONA+CA+RANISD WIANSCNA+CB+RANISO WR(11,JJ,LL)#WR(TT,JJ,LL)+WRAN+KSIGN VI(II,JJ,LL)=+J(II,JJ,LL)++TAN+VSIGN SU CONTINUE 30 CONTINHE 40 CONTINUE NOW THE UPPER HALF OF THE K-SPACE HAS BEEN DETERMINED С GET THE TRANSFORMED VELOCITY AT THE CONJUGATE POINTS С C----CONJUGATE FORM С N3=1 TO 7, N1 8 M2=+7 TO 7 C -N3=LM ₩3=L#1 С 1-1-54 -N2=JM 10 41 L=2,5 14=1+19=5*1 00 41 3=1,16 M=(J+15)/17 JM=J+(18+2+J)+M PO 41 T=1,16 N=(1+15)/17 74=1+(18-2+1)+4 UR(I",J",LM)# UR(I,J,L) VR((M,JH,LM)= VR([,J,L) RP(IM,JM,LM)= PR(I,J,L) UI(IM,JH,LM)==UI(Y,J,L) V1f1M,JM,LM)=+V1(1,J,L) WI(14,J44L4)=WI(1,J,L) 41 CUNTINUE ۲ N3=0, N1=1 TO 7, N2=+7 TO 7 8,S=1 S4 00 i IM=1+18=2+1 DD 42 J=1,16 M=(J+15)/17 J*=J+(1∂=2+J)+* IF (J .ED. 9) 60 TO 42 UR(1M, JM, 1)= UR(1, J, 1) $VR(I^M,J^M,1) \equiv VR(I,J,1)$ $WP(I^{H},J^{H},1) = WP(T,J,1)$ UI(IM,JM,))==UI(I,J,1) VI(IM,JM,1)==VI(I,J,1) HI(TM,JM,1)==WI(T,J,1) 42 CONTINUE C N1=N3=0 00 43 J=2,8 JM=J+1A=2+J HR(1, JM, 1)= HP(1, J, 1) VP(1,JH,1)= VP(1,J,1) WR(1,JM,1)= WR(1,J,1) $(1^{+}(1^{+}, J^{+}, 1^{+}) = -(1^{+}(1^{+}, J^{+}, 1^{+})$ V1(1,J4,1)==VI(1,J,1) WI(1,J4,1)==+((1,J,1) 43 CONTINUE INVERSE TRANSFORM X AND Y TRANSFORM C C SIGNE=1. DU 50 L=1,LMAX SMALLIN (FR(1,1),UR(1,1,L),256) 103 ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY,

104

SMALLIM (FI(1,1),UI(1,1,L),256) CALL FFTY(SIGN) CALL FFTY(SIGN,CC) SMALLOUT (FR(1,1), UR(1,1,L), 256) SMALLOUT(FI(1,1), UI(1,1,1), 256) SMALLIN (FP(1,1), VP(1,1,L),256) SMALLIN (FI(1,1),VI(1,1,L),256) CALL FETX(SIGN) CALL FFTY(SIGN, CC) SMALLONT(FR(1,1), VP(1,1,L),256) SMALLOUT(FI(1,1), VI(1,1,L), 256) SMALLIN (FP(1,1), PR(1,1,L), 256) SMALLTN (FI(1.1).01(1.1,L).256) CALL FFIX(SIGN) CALL FETY(SIGN,CC) SHALLOUT(FR(1,1),+P(1,1,L),256) \$MALLOUT(FI(1,1),«I(1,1,L),256) 50 CUNTINUE C Z TRANSFORM SMALLIN (HM(1,1,1), 19(1,1,1), 4096) SMALLIN (H(1,1,1), HT(1,1,1), 4096) CALL FFT7/STGN, HN, H) SMALLOUT (MM(1,1,1),09(1,1,1),4096) SMALLOUT (H(1,1,1),UI(1,1,1),4096) SMALLIN (HM(1,1,1), VR(1,1,1), 4096) SMALLIN (H(1,1,1),VI(1,1,1),4096) CALL FETZ(SIGN, HM, H) SMALLOUT (49(1,1,1), VF(1,1,1), 4096) SMALLOUT (H(1,1,1), VT(1,1,1), 4006) SMALLIN (H1(1,1,1), MR(1,1,1), 4096) SMALLIN (6(1,1,1), "((1,1,1), #0961 CALL FFI7(SIGN, HM, H) SMALLOHT (HM(1,1,1), MR(1,1,1), 4096) SMALLOUT (M(1,1,1), +1(1,1,1), 4005) C----THE INITIAL FIELD HAS BEEN GENERATED. THE FOLLOWING IS TO PRINT С OUT INFORMATION ON THE GENERATED FIELD C VELOCITIES ARE STORED IN UR, VR AND WR C----TURBULENT ENERGY CHECK **TKU**≡0. TKVE0. TKW±0, TKI=0. NO 95 L=1, LHAY DO 95 J=1, JMAX 00 95 I=1. JMAX TKU=TXU+UR(I,J,L)++2 TKV=TKV+VH(I,J,L)++2 TKW=TKW+8P(1,J,L)++2 45 CUNTINUE TDIV=1./4096. TKUETKUATOIV TKV=TKV+TDIV TKH=TKH+TDIV TRSUMETRUATKVATKW TRUPETRUZTESUD TKVRSTKV/TKSHP TKWP=TKy/TKSUM PRINT 706 PRINT 700, DT, DELTA, C, NAVG PRINT 702, TKU, TEV, TEN, TKSUM PRINT 702, TKUR, TKVR, TKWR PRINT 706

NTIMERO 115 CONTINUE PRINT 601 UTOT=0, vTOT=0. WT01=0. DO 120 L31, LMAX PRINT 710.L USUM#0. VSUMED. HSUMEO. DD 116 J#1, JMAX 00 116 I=1, TMAX USUM=USUM+UR(J,J,L) VSUM#VSUM+VR(1,J,L) *SUM=#SUM+#R(I, J,L) 116 CONTINUE PRINT 702, (UR(1,10,1),1=1,8) PRINT 702, (VA(1,10,L),I#1,A) PRINT 702, (NR(1,10,1),1=1,8) PRINT 702, USUM, VSUM, WRUM STOT=HTOT+USUM VTOT=VTOT+VSUM WTDT=WTDT+WSUM 120 CONTINUE PRINT 702, UTOT, VIOT, WINT GO TO 131 1000 COF=1.5 PRINT 707 PRINT 706 PHIMI /11,01,0ELIA.L READ (10) NTIME, HR, VR, HK, PH, RU, FV, PH NITTMEENTSHEET PRINT 705, NTIME PRINT 706 601 FORMAT (Y, +11", VM, WM+) PRINT 601 100 125 L=1,LMAX PRINT 710,L PRINT 702, (UP(1,10,L),1=1,144X) PRINT 702, (VR(I,10,L),J=1,IMAX) PRINT 702, (WR(I,10,L), I=1, IMAX) 125 CONTINUE 130 CONTINUE 700 FORMAT (Y , +INITIAL CONDITION, DTE+, F10,4,+ DELTA=+, E10,4, 1 + C=+,F7,4,3x,+AVERAGING ARTABA,F4,1, + DELTA+) 701 FORMAT (X, +L=+,13) 702 FORMAT (Y,8(E14,7,Y)) 203 E05HAT (1013) 704 FORMAT (4620.14) 705 FORMAT (X, +CONTINUED AT TIME STEPAR, 14, /,/) ************ **********) 707 FORMAT (1H1) 710 FORMAT (X, +PLAME=+,13) 711 FORMAT (X,* INTITAL CUNDITION*, /, X, +DT=*, E10.4,+ DELTAR*, E10.4 - .* G#+,F7,4, * UC#+, E10.4,/) 60 TO 6000 5000 CONTINUE COF=1.0 6000 CONTINUE

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

1

105

RETURN

```
#DECK PRESS
      SUBROUTINE PRESS(COLF3, COEF11, COEF71)
C++
                  SOLVE PUISSON FRUATION AY FOURIED TRANSFORM METHOD.
C
   C * *
     LARGE PM(16,10,16),6(16,10,16),E(16,16,16,14),EI(16,14,16),
         D1(16,16,16), D2(16,16,16), FN(60), EM1(60), ED1(60), POUM(16,3),
     1
         Pn(12)
     2
     LARGE UMC16,16,161,141(16,16,10),4M(16,10,16) +UIC(0,10,16)
     VI(16,10,16), +T(16,16,16)
LARGE RU(16,16,16), RV(16,16,16), RV(16,10,16), P1(16,16,16)
     .
         ,GU1(16,16,16),GV:(16,16,15),GV1(15,16,16)
     DIMENSION HM(16,16,16),6(16,16,16)
     DIMENSION FR(16,16), FI(16,16), TRR(8,3), TRI(8,3), RR(16), GI(16)
         ,NWAVE(16),NFFT(3)
     COMMON/DATA5/GP,GL.TRR,TRI
      COMMON/DATA7/FR, FT
      COMMON/DATAB/NWAVE, WEFT
     COMMON/DATA9/IMAX, JMAX, LMAX, NHALF, NAVG, NLEN, NSPEC
C
      FORWARD TRANSFORM
     FORWARD TRANSFORM TH EACH PLANE, AFTER TRANSFORM STORE FR & FI TH G & PM.
Ĉ
      SIGN=+1.
     00 20 L=1,LMAX
      SMALL IN (FR(1.1), G(1.1, 1), 2561
      CALL FETV(SIGM)
      CALL FFTY(SIGN, COEFS)
      SMALLOUT(FR(1,1),P"(1,1,L),256)
      SMALLOUT (FI(1,1),G(1,1,L),256)
   20 CONTINUE
                                                        i
      SMALLIN (HM(1,1,1),PM(1,1,1),4096)
      SMALLIN (H(1,1,1),S(1,1,1),4096)
      CALL FFT7 (SIGN, HM, H)
      SMALLOUT(HM(1,1,1), FM(1,1,1), 4096)
      SMALLOUT(H(1,1,1),G(1,1,1),4096)
C----GET TRANSFORMED PR AND PI STORED IN G AND PM
      NP1=NHALF+1
     DO 210 L=1.LMAX
      MMSL/9
      M=M++16+1
      ARG1=COEF11+(L=M)
      ARG2=ARG1+2.
     ARG3=ARG1+3.
     ARGUMARG1+4.
     WAVEL=COS(4PG4)+16.+(COS(APG1)-COS(APG3))+64.+CDS(4RG2)-65.
     VAML 121 005 00
     MMSJ/9
     #=MM#16+1
      ARG1=COEF11+(J=M)
      ARG2=ARG1+2.
      ARG3=ARG1+3.
      ARG4=ARG1+4.
      WAVE JECOS (ARG4)+16, * (COS (ARG1)-COS (ARG3))+64, *008 (ARG2)-65,
     DO 208 1=1,1MAX
     HME1/9
      MEMM#16+1
```

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY



AFG1=COEF11+(I=M) ARG2=ARG1+2. ARG3=ARG1+3. ARG4=APG1+4. WAVE I=CGS(ARG4)+16 + (COS(ARG1)-COS(ARG3))+04. +COS(ARG2)=65. WV=(HAVE]+HAVE]+HAVEL)+COEF71 ITEST=I+J+L JF (ASS(WV) .LT. 0.0001) 60 TO 205 WAVE=1./WV G(I,J,L) = G(I,J,L) + HAVEPM(1,J,L)=PM(1,J,L)+WAVE 60 TO 20A 205 G(I,J,L)=0. PH(I,J,L)=0. SUN CONTINUE 209 CONTINUE 210 CONTINUE C----EXTRAPOLATE FOR LAST CORNER POINT TENP1 J=NP1 L=NP1 NHISNHALF NH2=MM1=1 $r(1,J,L) = 2*(r(H^{M}_{1},J,L)+r(1,N^{M}_{1},L)+r(1,J,N^{M}_{1}))$ -(R(NM2,J,L)+R(J,MM2,L)+R(I,J,NM2)) 1 r(T,J,L)=G(I,J,L)/3 PM(I,J,L)=2.*(PM(NM1,J,L)+PM(I,NM1,L)+PM(I,J,NM1)) +(P*(NN2,J,J+P*(T,NM2,L)+P*(T,J,N*2)) 1 PH(1,J,L)=PH(1,J,L)/3 C THVERSE TRANSFORM NJUNEL1. DU 300 LEI.LMAX SMALLTH (FR(1,1), PM(1,1,L),256) SMALLIN (FT(1,1),G(1,1,L),256) CALL FFTY(SIGN, CHEF3) i CALL FFTX(SIGN) SMALLOUT (FR(1,1), PM(1,1,L), 256) SMALLOUT (FI(1,1),G(1,1,L),256) 300 CONTINUE SMALLIN (HM(1,1,1),PM(1,1,1),4096) SMALLIN (H(1,1,1),G(1,1,1),4096) CALL FFTZ (SIGN, HA, H) SMALLOUT(HM(1,1,1),PM(1,1,1),4096) SMALLOUT(H(1,1,1),5(1,1,1),4096) PRINT 904 00 910 L=1.8 PRTHE 903.L PRINT 901, (PN(1,10,L),I=1,8) CONTINUE 210 FORMAT (X, R(E14.7, X)) 901 FORMAT (X, +PLANER+, 13) 903 904 FORMAT (1HO, +PRESSURE AT JUINA) RETURN END

*DECK VELOC SUBPONTINE VELOC (20,241,242,291,292,2,21E981,24001,8ETA,COEF6, 1 COFF7,0T,COF,G444,64448,600F,602,60,0ELTA,66)

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

•

C THIS SUPROUTTHE COMPUTES HIT IN EQUATION (3.32). C______ TNTEGER 70,241,242,291,292,7,2LESS1,24001 PEAL K. NLEN, NAVG DIMENSTON U(16, 16, 53, V(16, 16, 53, W(10, 16, 53, 81G(16, 16, 3), K(16, 14, 3) ,P(16,16,5) ,DUM-Y(16,16,6) COMMON/DATA1/11, V, W CUMMON/DATAS/P COMPONIDATA3/SIG,K COMMON/DATAU/DHNMY COMMON/DATAO/IMAX, JMAX, MALF, NAVG, NEEN, NSPEC POTV=1./BETA JTESTEJMAX-1 ITESTETMAX=1 00 210 J=1, J=4x .]]ະງ JM1=J-1 1H5=1-5 JP1=J+1 JP2=J+2 1E (J .GT. 2) GO 10 30 C. (65,011 01 04 10 J*2=J*4X+1 JEISJEAX 60 10 60 20 JM2=JH4X 60 TO 60 30 IF (JJ ,LT. JTEST) GO TO 60 J1=JJ=JM&X+2 60 10 (44,50), 31 40 342=1 50 TO 60 50 JP1=1 JP2=2 60 CONTINUE Y=(J=7.5)+0ELTA YPEN=DELTA YP=Y+DELTA 00 200 1=1, IMAX 125=1=5 $J \cap i = I = 1$ 1P1=1+1 192=1+2 JF (I ',GT,2) GD TD 90 60 10 (70,80), 1 1-XAMIESH1 07 THISIMAX 00 70 120 RO INSELMAX GO TO 120 90 IF (I 'LT, ITEST) GU TO 120 II=I+INAX+S 60 TO (100,110), I1 100 JP2=1 691 07 00 110 JP1=1 1P2=2 150 CONTINUE X=(1+7.5)+DELTA XM#X=DFLTA

C ۵ U COMPONENT C C----ADVECTION TERM---U COMPONENT \$1=U(1P1, J, Z0)+U(1P1, J, Z0)=U(1H1, J, Z0)+U(1M1, J, Z0) \$1=\$1+U(T,J,Z01+(U(TP1,J,Z01+U(TM1,J,Z0)) \$1=\$1+P(T,J,Z0)*(U(TP1,J,Z0)+P(TM1,J,Z0)) 5]#\$1+1'(T,J01,70)#V(T,J01,70)=4(T,JM1,70)#V(I,T*1,20) +V(I,J,70)# - (U(I,JP1,Z0)-U(I,JV1,Z0))+U(T,J,Z0)+(V(I,JP1,Z0)-V(I,JU1,Z0)) S1=S1+11(T,J,ZP1)++(1,J,ZP1)+11(1,J,ZM1)++(1,J,ZM1)+4(7,J,Z0)+(, H(I, J, 7P1) = H(I, J, 2P1)) + U(I, J, 70) + (H(I, 1, 2P1) = H(I, J, ZM1)) \$2=11(TP2, J, 20)+U(IP2, J, 20)=11(IN2, J, 20)+U(T*2, J, 20)+11(I, J, 20)+(,U(1P2,J,70)-U(1M2,J,70))+U(1,J,20)+(U(TP2,J,20)-U(T*2,J,70)) \$2=\$2+U(T,JP2,Z0)+V(T,JP2,Z0)+V(T,JM2,Z0)+V(T,JM2,Z0)+V(T,J,Z0)+(.H(I, JP2, 70)-U(I, JM2, 2013+U(I, J, 20)+(V(I, JP2, 20)-V(I, JM2, 20)) \$2=\$2+11(1,1,2P2)+*(1,1,7P2)+11(1,1,712)+*(1,1,242)+*(1,1,70)+(, H(I, J, 7P2) = H(J, J, ZH2)) + H(I, J, ZO) + (H(J, J, 7P2) = H(I, J, ZH2)) ADVEC ==10. +S1+2. +S2 S1=U(1"2,3,20)+H,+(U(1H1,3,20)+U(1P1,3,20))+U(1P2,3,20) S2=U(1,J"?,ZC1+6,*(U(1,JM1,701+U(1,JP1,Z0))+U(1,JP2,Z0) 53 = GCOF+(Y+52+X+S1)+GAMM&+U(T,J,Z0) ADVECEARVEC+RRTVAS3 C----PESOLVABLE SCALE LOSS TERM (LEONAHD TERM)----- COMPONENT 531=U(TP2,J,70)+U(TP2,J,70)+U(TP1,J,70)+(U(TP2,J,70)-U(T,J,70)) \$31=\$31+8(IP1,J,Z0)+(8(1P2,1,Z0)=0(1,J,Z0)) 531=531+1(1P1, JP1, 70)+V(JP1, JP1, 70)=U(TP1, J41, 20)+V(IP1, J41, 20) \$31=\$31+V(JP1,J,70)+(V(1P),JP1,70)+U(IP1,JH1,20)) +1'(JP1, J, Z01+(V(101, J01, 20)+V(101, JM1, 201) 531=831 \$31=\$31+U(JP1,J,7P1)+*(1P1,J,2P1)=U(1P1,1,2*1)+*(1P1,J,2*1) \$31=\$31+H(JP1, J, Z0) + (H(1P1, J, ZP1) + H(1P1, J, 241)) \$32=+U(1H2,J,Z0)+U(1H2,J,Z0)+U(1H(,J,Z0)+(U(1,J,Z0)+U(1H2,J,Z0)) 532=532+14(JM1,J,Z0)+(4(1,J,J,70)+4(1×2,J,Z0)) \$32=\$32+U(JM1,JM1,70)*V(TM1,JM1,70)=U(TM1,JM1,70)*V(IM1,JM1,70) \$32=\$32+V(1M1,J,Z0)+(U(1M1,JP1,70)=U(1M1,JM1,Z0)) \$32=\$32 +U(1"1,J,Z01+(V(T"1,JP1,Z01=V(1M1,JM1,Z01) \$32=532+U(TM1, J, ZP1)+H(IM1, J, ZP1)+U(TM1, J, ZM1) +H(IM1, J, ZM1) \$32=532+#(1111,J,Z0)*(U(1M1,J,ZP1)~U(101,T,Z01)) \$32=\$32+U(JM1,J,Z0)+(*(141,J,ZP1)+*(TM1,J,ZH1)) \$41=U(JP1, JP1, 20)+U(TP1, JP1, 70)=U(TH1, JP1, 20)+U(TH1, JP1, 20) 541=541+H(1, JP1, 70) +(H(1P1, JP1, 70)=H(141, JP1, 20)) \$41=\$41+4(1,JP1,Z0)+(4(1P1,JP1,Z0)+4(J81,JP1,Z0))* 541±541 +U(1, JP2, Z0)+V(1, J02, Z0)+V(1, JP1, Z0)+(U(1, JP2, Z0)= , ((1, J, Z0))+((T, JP1, Z))+(V(T, JP2, 70)-V(T, J, Z0)) \$41=\$41+U(J,JP1,ZP1)**(J,JP1,7P1)=U(T, 1P1,ZM1)**(I,JP1,ZM1) \$41=\$41+#(1,JP1,Z0)+(11(1,JP1,7P1)=1(1,1P1,Z41)) \$41=\$41+0(1,JP1,Z0)*(*(1,JP1,ZP1)**(1,JP1,ZM1)) 842=P(1P1,JM1,70)+P(1P1,J*1,70)+P(1*1,J*1,70)+P(1*1,J*1,20) 542=542+11(1,101,20)*(UCTP1.301,70)+11(141,341,20)) \$42±\$42+U(1,JH1,Z01+(U(1P1,JM1,Z0)-U(1H1,JM1,Z0)) \$42=\$42=H(T,JM2,Z0)+V(T,JM2,Z0)+V(T,JM1,Z0)+(U(T,J,Z0)=H(T,JM2,Z0) 1) 842=842+11(T,J*1,ZC)*(V(T,J,Z0)+V(T,J*2,Z0)) \$42=542+11(1,391,7P1)+x(1,3M1,7P1)=0(1,3M1,7H1)+x(1,3M1,7M1) \$42=542+W(1,JM1,Z0)+(U(T,JM1,ZP1)=W(1,JM1,ZM1)) \$42=\$42+11(1,J*),Z0)+(*(1,J*),ZP1)+*((1,J*),Z*))) 351 gU(1P1, J, ZP1) + 4(1P1, J, ZP1) = 4(TH1, J, ZP1) + 4((1M1, J, ZP1) + 4((T, J, ZP1)) • * (U(1P1, J, 7P1) = U(1M1, J, 7P1)) +11(1,J,ZP1)+(11(1P1,J,ZP1)+11(1M1,J,ZP1) 851=851 .)+((1,JP1,ZP1)*V(1,JP1,ZP1)=((1,J*1,ZP1)+((1,J*1,ZP1)) 551=551+V(I,J,7P1)+(U(T,JP1,7P1)-U(I,J+1,2P1))+U(I,J-2P1)+(V(I,JP1 ., ZP1)=V(T, J"1, ZP1))

109

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

A LAND COM 化二乙酰苯基

```
851=851
                                                +11(1, 3, 202) + 4(1, 3, 202) + 4(1, 3, 701) + (11(1, 3, 202) =
           , H(T, J, 70)) + H(1, J, 7P1) + (+ (T, J, ZP2) = ((T, J, 70))
             $52=1((IP1,J,Z*1)*U(IP1,J,Z*1)*U(I*1,J,Z*1)*U(I*1,J,Z*1)+U(I,J,Z*1)
           *(U(IP1,J,ZM1)=U(IM1,J,ZM1));
             $52=$52
                                                                 +H(T,J,ZH1)+(U(TP1,J,ZH1)+U(TH1,J,ZH1))
           .)+U(I, JP1, ZM1)+V(I, JP1, ZM1)+U(I, JM1, ZM1)+V(I, JM1, ZM1)
             $52±$52+V((,),2H1)+(U(),JP1,2H1)-U(I,JH1,2H1)+U(I,J,2H1)+(V(I,
           .JP1,2+1)=v(1,J+1,2+1))
                                                      -11(1, <u>3</u>, 2221+W(1, J, 222)+W(1, J, 281)+(U(1, J, 20)
             $52=$52
           -=U([,J,ZM2))+U([,J,ZM1)+(N(T,J,ZA)+W(],J,ZM2))
             $6=U(1P1,J,Z0)+U(1P1,J,Z0)=U(141,J,Z0)+U(141,J,Z0)
             $6=$0+0(1,J,Z0)+(0(10),J,Z0)-0(14),J,Z0))
                                                     +U(T,J,Z0)+(U(TP1,T,Z0)=U(T*1,J,Z0))
             56256
             $6=$6+U(T, JP1, 20)+V(T, JP1, 70)+U(T, JM1, 20)+V(I, JM1, 70)
             $0=$0+V(T, J, 20) + (U(T, JP1, 20)-U(T, J"1, 20))
                                                         +11(1, J, 20) + (V(1, 1P1, 20) - V(1, JS1, 20))
             $6=56
             $6=$*+!!(T,J,ZP1)+*(I,J,ZP1)+!!(T,J,ZM1)*"(T,J,ZM1)+"(I,J,Z0)*(U(I,J
           .,ZP+)+((T,J,Z=+))+((T,J,Zn)+(+(1,J,ZP1)++(I,J,ZP1))
             RESOLV=+0.5+(531+532+541+842+551+552 =6++56)
             RESOLVERESOLVENEEN
             $1= +xP+(U(1P2,J,Z0)+U(1,J,Z0))+Y+(U(10),JP1,Z0)+U(3P1,JH1,Z0))
             $2==****(**(1,3,70)=**(**?,3,70))+**(**(****,**1,20)=**(***,3**,20))
             $3==X+(U(1P),3P1,20)=U(1"1,3P1,70))+YP+(U(1,3P2,70)=U(1,3,20))
             $4=+X+{(){}}*{, J*{, 7}}+!({}*{, 1*{, 2}})+Y*+{('({, J, 7})+U({, 1*{, 2}, 2}))
             $5==X+(U(1P1,J,ZP1)=U(1***,J,ZP1))+Y+(U(1,JP1,ZP1)=U(1,J***,ZP1))
             $6=+++f+(TP1,J,Z*)+U(T*1,J,Z*1))+Y*(U(T,JP1,Z#1)+U(T,J*1))
             57=000F+(51+52+53+54+55+56)
            $8==66+(+(TP1,1,20)+4(T,JP1,70)+4((T,J,7P1)+4(TH1,J,70)+4(T,J41,70)
                  +8(1,3,2"11)
           1
            $9=6N2+1 {U(1+1,J,J)=U(1+1,1,Z0))+X=(U(1,JP1,Z0)=U(1,JM1,20)+Y)
                  +64**4+4(1,3,20)
           1
            RESARC=($7+$8+39)+301V
  C----SUR-GPTD-SCALE MODEL
             571= + (TP), J, Z ) + (4(TP2, J, ZAN+
                                                                      $71=571 =K(IH1,J,Z )+2.+(U(1,J,Z)) =U(Jh2,J,Z0))
             SH=CUFF6+571
             $91=
                                        U(1, JP2, Z0) + U(1, J, Z0) + V(J01, JP1, Z0) + V(JM1, JP1, 70)
             59=×(J, JP1, Z)+591
                                         U(I,J,ZC)-U(Y,JM2,ZC)+V(YP1,JM1,ZC)-V(YM1,JM1,ZC)
             871=
             $71=K(I,JM1,Z)+571
             $9=$9-571
             5712
                                             U(T, J, 2P21-U(T, J, 20)+M(IP1, J, 2P1)-W(IM1, J, 2P1)
             S71=K(I, J, ZAD01)+571
                                            U(I,J,70)-U(I,J,2M2)+W(TP1,J,701)-W(IM1,J,201)
             S=
             S=# (1, J, 7LESS1) +S
             59=CQEF6+(59+571=5)
             SGS = (GD+(+(TP1, 1,7)++(TH1, J,7)))+BD1V+S8+89
             DUMMY(T, J, 1)=HETA*(AUVEC+HESOLV+SGS+HESADD)
            RUBMY(T,J,4)=40VECS+RESADD+SRSADD
             SJG(1,1,1)==RESOLV+0(1,1,20)
            SIF(1,J,2)==SGS+U(1,J,20)
 C
 C
           V COMPONENT
 C
      --- ADVECTION TERM---V COMPONENT
            S1=v(JP1, J, Z0)+U(JP1, J, Z0)=v(IM1, J, Z0)+U(IM1, J, Z0)
            $1=$1+U(1,J,Z0)+(V(TP1,J,Z0)-V(J*1,J,Z0))
            $1#$1%V(1,J,20)*(0(TP1,J,70)+"(1+1,J,20))
            $1=$1+V(T,JP1,70)+V(T,JP1,Z0)+V(T,JM1,70)+V(T,JM1,70) +V(L,J,Z0)+
           -(V(J;JP1,Z0)-V(I;JM1,Z0))+V(T,J,Z0)+(V(J,JP1,Z0)-V(T,JM1,Z0))
            51=51+v(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)-v(1,J,2P1)+v(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J,2P1)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(1,J)+u(J
           •V(I,J,ZP1)=V(J,J,ZM1))+V(I,J,Z0)+(*(I,I,ZP1)=+(I,J,ZM1))
                                                                110
ORIGINAL PAGE IS
```

OF POOR QUALITY

\$2=V(1P2,J,Z0)+U(1P2,J,Z0)+V(1Y2,J,Z0)+U(1Y2,J,Z0)+U(1,J,Z0)+(•V(IP2,J,70)=V(IM2,J,20))+V(I,J,70)+(H(IP2,J,20)-H(I*2,J,20)) S2=S2+V(T, JP2, Z0)+V(T, JP2, Z0)+V(T, JM2, Z0)+V(T, JM2, Z0)+V(T, J, Z0)+(• V(1, JP2, Z0) = V(1, JM2, Z01) + V(1, J, Z0) + (V(1, JP2, Z0) - V(1, JM2, Z0)) \$2=\$2+V(1,J,7P2)**(1,J,2P2)*V(1,J,7M2)*V(1,J,2M2)**(1,J,2M2)**(1,J,2M2)*(.V(1,J,7P2)=V(1,J,2M2))+V(1,J,20)+(M(1,J,7P2)=M(1,J,2M2)) ADVFC ==10.+51+2.+52 51=v(1H2, J, Z0)=K, +(V(1H1, J, Z0)=V(1P1, J, Z0))=V(1H2, J, Z0) 52=v(1,J+2,Z0)=A.*(v(1,J+1,Z0)=v(1,JP1,Z0))=v(1,JP2,Z0) ADV#C=(GCOF+/V+S2-X+S1)+CAM48+V(T,],70))+ADIV+ADVEC C-----RESOLVABLE SCALE LOSS TERM (LEOMARD TERM)--+V COMPONENT \$31=v(TP2,J,Z0)+U(TP2,J,Z0)+U(TP1,7,Z3)+(v(TP2,J,Z0)+v(I,J,Z0)) \$31=\$31+M(IP1,J,Z0)*(U(IP2,J,Z0)+U(I,J,Z0)) \$31=\$31+V(IP1,JP1,Z0)+V(TP1, 191,Z0)+V(TP1,J1),Z0)+V(IP1,J11,Z0) \$31=\$31+V(IP1,J,Z0)+(V(IP1,JP1,Z0)=V(IP1,JP1,Z0)) \$31=531 +V(IP1, 1, 20)+(V(IP1, 001, 20)-V(IP1, 341, 20)) 531=531+V(1P1, J, ZP1)***(TP1, J, ZP1)=V(TP1, 1, Z*1)**(TP1, J, Z*1) \$31=531++(IP1, J, Z01+(V(TP1, J, ZP1)+V(TP1, J, ZH1)) \$31=531+V(1F1, 1, 20)+F+(1P1, 1, 2P1)+*(1P1, 1, 2H1)) \$32=+V(T+2,J,J0)+0(J+2, 1,70)+0(T*1,J,70)+(V(T,J,70)+V(T*2,1,70)) \$32=\$32+V(IM1,3,70)+(U(T,3,70)+U(IM2,3,20)) \$32=\$32+v(1%1,JP1,Z0)+v(101,JP1,Z0)+V(1%1,JP1,Z0)+V(1%1,Z0) \$32=\$\$\$2+4(1)\$;,1,70)*(V(10),JP1,70)=V(101,J41,Z0)) -+v(3H1,J,20)+(v(1H1,JP1,70)+V(1H1,JH1,20)) 532=532 \$32=\$32+\$(121,0,701)+0(141,1,201)+((181,0,701)+*(141,0,701) 532=532++(111,3,70)+(V(1+1,1,2P1)+V(1+1,1,2H1)) \$32=\$32+V(191,J,20)*(W(191,J,2P1)=W(191,J,291)) \$41=*(TP1,JP1,70)*"(TP1,JP1,70)=V(IM1, 1P1,70)*U(T*1,JP1,70) \$41=\$41+1(3,JP1,Z0)+(V(TP1,JP1,Z0)=V(JP1,JP1,Z0)) 5#1_241;v11.301,201+607101,301,201-0(3×1,3P1,201) + - (1, JP2, 70) + V(1, JP2, 201+ V(1, JP1, Z^) + (V(1, 1P2, 20) -5412541 v(1, J, 701) + V(1, JF1, Z0) + (V(T, 1P2, 20) = V(T; J, 20)) \$41=\$41+v(I,JP1,ZP1)**(T,JP1,ZP1)*V(T, 1P1,Z51)**(I,JP1,Z*1) \$41±\$41+K(T,JP1,20)+(V(T,JP1,ZP1)-V(T, IP1,ZM1)) \$41=\$41+V(1,J+1,Z0)*(W(1,JP1,ZP1)=*(1,JP1,ZM1)) \$42=Y(TP1,JP1,70)+U(IP1,JP1,70)+V(IP1,JM1,70)+V(TM1,JM1,70) \$42=\$42+1((),3+1,20)+(v()P1,3+1,20)+V(1+1,3+1,20)) \$42=\$42+V(1,3)1,20)+(U(1P),3"),20)+U(1P1,3m1,20)Y \$42=\$42=V(1,J*2,76)+V(1,J*2,70)+V(1,J*1+Z0)+V(1,J*1+Z0)+V(1+J*2+S4) 11 \$42=542+V(1,J*1,70)+(V(1,J,20)+V(1,JM2,20)) \$42=\$42+V(I+JM1,ZF1)+E(T,JM1,ZP1)+V(T,TM1,ZM1)+8(T,JM1,ZM1) \$42=\$42+\$(],J*1,Z1)+(V(],J*1,ZP1)+V(1,1*1,ZH1)) \$42=\$42+V(1,JM1,Z0)+(+(1,JM1,ZP1)++(1,JM1,ZM1)) \$51=V(IP1, J, ZP1)+U(IP1, J, ZP1)=V(TM1, J, ZP1)+U(IM1, J, ZP1)+U(T, J, ZP1) .+(V(IP1,J,ZP1)=V((M1,J,ZP1))) +v(1,J,ZP1)+(U(JP1,J,ZP1)-U(1M1,J,ZP1) S51=551 ,) + V(], JP1, ZP1) + V(T. JP1, 7P1) - V(T. J"1, 7P1) + V(T. J"1, 7P1) \$51=\$51+V(I,J,7P1)+(V(T,J\$1,7P1)=V(1,J*1,2P1)+V(T,J,2P1)+(V(I,JP1 .,ZP1)=V(J,JM1,ZP1)) +V(T,J,ZP2)**(T,J,ZP2)+H(T,J,ZP1)*(V(T,J,ZP2)= \$51=\$51 •V(I,J,Z0))+V(J,J,ZP1)+(*(],1,ZP2)-*(1,J,70)) \$52=V(TP1,J,ZM1)*U(IP1,J,ZM1)=V(TM1,J,ZM1)*U(IM),J,ZM1)+U(T,J,ZM1) . + (V(IP1,J,ZH1)=V(IM1,J,ZH1)) +v(1,J,Z~1)*(U(1P1,J,Z~1)+U(IM1,J,ZM1) \$52#852 , 1+V(I, JP1, ZM1)+V(I, JP1, 7411=V(T, JK1, ZM1)+V(J, JM1, ZM1) \$52=\$52+V(I,J,Z^1)+(V(T,JP1,Z^1)+V(I,J^1,Z^1))+V(I,J,Z^1)*(V(I, , JP1, Z~1) + V(I, J~1, Z~1)) +V(I,J,ZM2)*#(I,J,7M2)+#(I,J,ZM1)*(V(I,J,ZG) 952=552 -V(T,J,ZM2))+V(J,J,ZM1)+(x(T,J,Z0)-W(T,J,ZM2)) \$6±v(1P1, J, Z0) + ((1P1, J, 70) + v(1M1, J, Z0) + U(1M1, J, Z0) \$6=\$6+U(I,J,Z0)*(V(IP1,J,Z0)-V(TM1,J,Z0))

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY . '

```
+V(],J,Z0)+(U(TP1,1,Z0)=U(TH1,J,Z0))
           36856
           S6=S6+V(1, JP1, 20) +V(1, JP1, 20) -V(1, JM1, 20) +V(1, JM1, 20)
           $5=$6+V(1,J,Z0)+(V(1,JP1,Z0)+V(1,J41,Z0))
                                                      +V(1, J, Z) +(V(T, 1P1, Z0) +V(T, J41, Z0))
           $6=56
           $6$$6+V(1,J,ZP1)+([1,J,ZP1)+V(1,1,ZP1)+*(1,J,Z41)+*(1,J,Z0)+(V(1,J
         ••ZP1)=V(T,J,7H1))+V(T,J,Z0)+(V(T,J,ZP1)=V(L,J,ZH1))
           HESOLV==0,5+($31+532+541+542+551+552 +6.+56)
           PESOLVERFSOLVALLEN
           S1= -xP*(V(JP2, J, 20)-V(I, J, 20))+Y*(V(IP1, JP1, 20)-V(IP1, J41, 20))
           $2=-XP+(V([,J,70)-V(["2, 1,20))+V+(V(["1,JP1,20)+V([M1,J"1,20))
           $3==X+(v(1F1,JP1,70)=V(1H1,JP1,70))+YP+(V(1,JP2,70)=V(1,J,20))
           $4==**(V(JP1,J*1,Z^)=V(JM1, 1*1,Z^))+***(V(1,J,Z0)=V(I,J*2,Z0))
           $5==X+(V(TP1,J,ZP1)=V(T+1,J,ZF1))+V+(V(1,JP1,ZP1)=V(T,JF1,ZP1))
           SA==X+(V(JP1,J,Z%()=V(T+1,J,7*())+Y+(V(I,JP1,Z41)=V(I,J*1,Z41))
           87=GCOF+(51+52+63+51+55+56)
           88= 66+rv(TP1,J,Z0)+V(T,JP1,Z0)+V(T,J,ZP1)+V(TM1,J,Z0)+V(I,J'1,Z0)
                +V(1,J,Z-1))
         1
           $92602+(_(V(101,3,70)=V(101,3,70))4x+(V(1,JP1,20)=V(1,301,20))+Y)
                -GANMA+V(T, J, ZO)
         1
          RESADD=(57+58+59)+901V
C----SUF-GRID-SCALE MODEL
           $5=
                                    v(192, J, Z0)=V(T, J, Z0)+U(TP1, JP1, Z0)=U(1P1, JH1, Z0)
           S=K(IP1,J,Z)+58
                                       V(T,J,Z0)=V(T 12,J,Z0)+H(TM1,JP1,Z0)=H(TH1,JM1,Z0)
           $51=
           8=5=K(J*1,J,Z)+S51
           SO=CPEF6+S
           $9=k(1,JP1,7)*2.*(V(1,JP2,Zn)+V(1,J,70))
          $9±$9+K(T,JM1,7)+2.+(V(T,J,70)+V(T,JM2,Z0))
          $9=59+K(1,J,Z4001)+(V(1,J,792)+V(1,J,Z0))
           $9=$9+K(1,J,ZAD(1)+(H(1,JP1,7P1)+((1,JH1,2P1))
                                         vtE,J,/v)=vtI,J,Z`21++(I,JFI,ZN()++(I,J'1,Z''1)
          S=
          S=+([,],7LESS1)+5
           $9=(1'FF6+($9+5)
           SGS==CO+ (K(T, JP1, 7)=K(T, J+1, 7))+A0TV+5A+59
           DUMMY(T,J,2)=FFTA+(ADVEC+PESOLV+SGS+RESADD)
          DUMMYII, J. 5) = ADVECS+RESADD+SGSADD
           SIG(1, J, 1)=SIG(1, J, 1)=PES(LV+V(1, J, Z0)
           SIG(I,J,2)=SIG(I,J,2)=SCS+V(T,J,70)
C
          W COMPONENT
C
                                                                                                         · ,
С
C====#GVECTION TERM===# COMPONENT
           51=+(TP1,J,Z0)+U(TP1,J,Z0)++(IM1,J,Z0)++(IM1,J,Z0) //
           $1=$1+H(I,J,ZG)+(v(IP1,J,ZO)+*(IH1,J,ZO))
          $1=$1+%(T,J,Z0)+(U(TP1,J,Z0)-U(TH1,J,Z0))
          $1=$1+*(T,JP1,Z0)+V(T,JP1,Z0)+*(T,IM1,Z0)*V(T,J/1,Z0) +V(1,J,Z0)*
         +(+(1,JP1,Z0)++(1,J41,Z0))++((1,J,70)+(V(I,JP1,Z0)+V(I,J41,Z0))
          $1=$1+$(T,J,ZF1)+$(I,J,ZF1)+$(1,J,ZN1)+*(I,J,ZM1)+*(T,J,ZU)+(
           (*,J,781)=«(1,J,7"*))+»(1,J,70)+("(*,J,781)=*(*,J,781))
          $2=6(1P2, J, Z0)+6(TP2, J, Z0)+6(T22, J, Z0)+6(T32, J, Z0)+6(T, J, Z0)+(
         ,*(J$2,J,70)=*(I*2,J,70)+*(T,J,70)*(*(*F2,J,70)=*(***,J,70))
          $2#$2+*(T,JF2,Z0)+Y(T,JP2,Z0)+*(T,J*2,Z4)+Y(T,J*2,Z0)+Y(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+(T,J*2,K0)+
         .»(I,JP2,70)-~(T,J*2,70))+~(T,T,70)+(V(T,TP2,20)-V(T,J*2,20))
          82=52+1((T,J,ZP2)+*((T,J,ZP2)+*(T,J,ZP2)+*(T,J,ZP2)+*(T,J,ZP2)+*(T,J,ZP2)+(
         , #(T, J, ZFP)=W(I, J, Z<sup>1</sup>?))++(T, J, 20)+(^(T, J, Z<sup>1</sup>P))=P(I, J, Z<sup>1</sup>P))
          s3 = -15, *81+2, *32
          $1=v(1H2,J,Z0)=A,+(v(JH1,J,Z0)=v(IP1,J,Z0))=v(IP2,J,Z0)
          $2=#($,JM2,Z0)=#,+(*(I,JM1,70)+*(I,JP1,Z0))=#($,JM2,Z0)
          ADVEC =GCOF+(Y+S2=X+S1)+HDIV+S3
C----RESOLVARIE SCALE LOSS TEPS (LECHARD TEPS )---- COMPONENT
           $31=#(IP2,J,Z0)+U(IP2,I,Z0)+U(IP1,J,Z0)+r*(IP2,J,Z0)+r(I,J,Z0))
           $31=$31+*(IP1,J,Z))*(U(TP2,J,Z0)=U(T,J,Z0))
```

ander States States (1999)

\$31=\$31+*(1P1,JP1,70)=V(TP1,JP1,Z0)=W(TP1,JH1,Z0)+V(JP1,JH1,Z0) \$31=\$31+V(TP1,J,Z0)+(%(JP1,JP1,Z^)+*(TP1,JM1,Z0)) +w(IP1, J, 7") + (V(IP1, 1P1, Z0) - V(IP1, J"1, Z0)) 531=531 \$31=\$31+#(IP1,J,ZP1)+#(JP1,J.7P1)=*(TP1,J.ZM1)+#(TP1,J.ZM1) \$31=\$31+#(IP1,J,Z0)+(*(TP1,J,ZF1)+*(IP1,J,ZH1)) \$31=531+#(TP1,J,Z0)+(@/TP1,J,ZP1)=*(TP1,J,ZH1)* \$32#=%(IY2,J,Z0)+U(I'2,J,Z0)+U(I*1,J,Z0)+(W(I)J,Z0)=W(IN2,J,Z0)} \$32=532++(1*1,J,Z0)+(+(T,J+70)++((142,J,Z0)) \$37=\$37++(t+1,3P1,74)+V(TV1,3P1,20)=V(tM1,3H1,70)+V(1M1,3M1,20) \$32=\$32+V(1-1, 1, 20)+(-1+1, 1=1, 20)+V(1-1, 3-1, 20)) + 4(151,J,70) * (V(151,JP), 20) - V(181,J81,20)) 532=532 \$32=\$32+*(1:1,1,201)* (1*1,1,201)**(1*1,1,201)**(1*1,1,241) \$322532+0(101,1,7,70)+(0(101,1,201)-8(101,1,201)) \$37=\$32++(141,1,20)+(..(141,1,2P1)-+(141,1,2M1)) \$41±*(IP1, JP1, 70)*H(IP1, JP1, 70)**(I*1, JP1, 20)*H(1*1, JP1, 20) \$41#\$41+0(1,JP1,Z0)+(+(JP1,JP1,Z0)++(JH1,JP1,Z0)) \$41=\$41+#(1,JP1,Z0)*(0(1P1,JP1,Z0)=0(191,JP1,Z0)) 541=841 +*(1, JP2, Z0) *V(I, JP2, 20) +V(I, JP1, 20) +(*(1, JP2, 20) = .*(1, J, Z(1)) + ~(1, JP1, Z^1) *(V(1, JP2, Z0) + V(1, 1, Z0)) \$41=\$41+\$(1,JP1,7P1)+*(1, 1P1,7P1)=*(1,JP1,7M1)+*(1,JP1,7M1) \$41=\$41+4(1,JP1,ZP)+(4(),JP1,ZP1)+8(1,JP1,ZM1)) \$41±\$41++(1,001,20)+(*(1,0P1,2P1)++(1,0P1,201)) 542=+(191,J41,Z0)+4(191,J44,Z0)+4(141,T41,Z0)+4(141,J41,J41,Z0) \$47=\$42++((,,)+1,20)+(+(+P),)+1,70)++(1+1,)+1,20)1 \$42=\$42+*(1,JN1,Z0)*(0(IP1,JM1,Z0)=U(IM1,JM1,Z0)) \$42=\$42+#(1,J*2,70)+V(T,J*2,70)+V(1,J*1,70)+(4(1,J,70)+((1,J*2,70) 11 \$42=\$42+%(1,J%1,Z0)+(V(1,J,Z0)-V(1,JM2,Z0)) \$#7=502+6(I,J**,2P1)+8(1,J**,2P1)+6(I,J*1,Z*1)+8(I,J*1,Z*1) \$42±\$42+x([,JE1,20)+(((),JM1,2P1)+x(),JM1,2M1)) 542=842++(1,j)1,2))+(+(),J^*,2))+(+(),J**,2)) \$51=+(TP1, 1,ZP1)+U(TP1, J,ZP1)+*(J*1,J,ZP1)+U(I*1,J,ZP1)+U(T,J,ZP1) .* (W(IP1, J, 7P1)=x(1)1, J, 7P1)) + + (1, J, ZP1) + (H([P1, J, 7P1)+H(1M1, J, 2P1) 551=851 .)+W(1, JP1, 7P1)+V(1, JP1, 7P1)+V(1, JB1, 7P1)+V(1, JM1, 2P1) \$51=\$51+V(T,J,ZP))+(*(T,JP),ZP))+*(I,J*1,ZP))+*(I,J,ZP))*(V(T,JP) .,ZP1)=V(1,JH1,ZP1)1 851=851 +**(1,J,ZP2)**(1,J,ZP2)+*(1,J,7P!)*(*(1,J,ZP2)= .#(1,J,Z01)+*(1,J,ZP1)*(*(1,J,ZP2)+*(1,J,Z0)) \$\$2=*(1F1, T,Z"1)+U(JF1,J,Z41)=*(J*1,J,Z91)+U(141,J,ZM1)+U(1,J,Z41) *(*(IP1,J,Z*1)=*(I*1,J,Z*1)) 852#852 ++((,J,Z+1)+(+()(),J,Z+1)=H()+(),J,Z+1) .)+*(I,JP),Z*1)+V(J,JP1,Z*1)=*(I,J*1,Z*1)+V(I,J*1,Z*1) \$52=\$52+V([,J,7h1)*("(T,JP1,7h1)=~(T,J41,241))+*(T,J,241)*(V(I, .JP1,ZM1)=V(I,JM1,ZM1)) \$52=\$52 =w(T,J,ZM2)+=(T,J,ZM2)+=(T,J,ZM1)+(+(T,J,Z0) ...(J,J,7+2))+H(I,J,Z+1)+(~(J,J,70)-*(T,J,7*2)) 56##(IP1,J,70)##(IP1,J,70)##(IM1,J,70)##(IM1,J,20) \$6#80+U(T,0,20)*(*(TP),0,70)+*(JH),0,20)) 56=56 \$6#\$6+#(T,JP1,Z01+V(T,JP1,Z01+8(T,JM1,Z01+V(T,TM1,Z0) \$6=\$6+V(T,J,Z0)+(4(J,J01,Z0)+V(T,J01,Z0)) +w(1,J,70)+(V(1,JP1,Z0)=V(1,JM1,Z0)) 56=56 \$6\$\$6+#(T,J,ZP1)*!(T,J,ZP1)=!(T,J,Z!!)* .. 2P1) = w(I,J,ZH1)) + U(I,J,ZO) + r ((I,J,ZP1) = w(I,J,ZH1)) RESOLV==0.5+(\$31+\$32+\$41+\$42+\$51+\$52 =6.+\$6) RESOLVERESULVENLED \$1= qxP+(~(JP2,J,70)=+(1,J,70))+Y+(~(IP1,JP1,Z0)=+(IP1,J*1,70)) \$2=-XM+(W(T,J,70)-W(TMP,J,20))+Y+(#(TM), 191,70)-W(TM1,JM1,20)) \$3==x*(*(1P1,JP1,Z^))=*(1*1,JP1,Z^))+*P*(*(1,JP2,Z0)=*(1,J,Z^)) \$4#=X*f#fIF1,JM1,Z0)+0(IM1,JH1,Z0))+YM*(0(I,J,Z0)=0(I,JM2,Z0)) 95==X+(+(3P1,J,ZP1)=+(3*1,J,ZP1))+Y+(*(I,JP1,ZP1)=*(I,J*1,ZP1))

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

```
Sh==X+fxf1P1,J,ZM1)=W(TH1,J,ZM1))+Y+f#(I,JP1,ZH1)=#(I,JM1,ZH1)}
      $7=6C0F+(51+52+83+84+55+56)
      $9=CD2+(_(%(IP1,J,Z0)=#(IM1,J,Z0))+x=(#(T,JP1,Z0)+#(T,J*1,Z0))+#)
      RESADD=(57+59)+RDIV
C----SUA-GRID-SCALE MODEL
                      W(IP2, J, Z0) - w(I, J, Z0) + H(TP1, J, ZP1) + H(IP1, J, ZM1)
      35=
      S=K(IP1, J, Z )+SS
                        +(1, J, Z0)=W(IMP, J, Z0)+U(IM1, J, ZP1)=U(1M1, J, ZM1)
      $$1=
      5=S=*(I*1, J, Z )+SS1
      58=C0EF6+5
                       W(T, JP2, Z0) = W(T, J, Z0) + V(T, JP1, ZP1) = V(T, JP1, ZM1)
      S≡
      $9=K(I, JP1, Z )+S -
                         W(I,J,Z0)-W(I,J22,Z0)+V(J,JM1,ZP1)-V(I,JM1,ZM1)
      SS=
      $9=59=K(T,JM1,Z)+$5
      59=59 +K(I,J,ZADD))+2.+(M(I,J,ZP2)++(I,J,Z0))
      59=CUEF6+(S9=X(1,J,ZLES51)+2,+(+(1,J,Z0) ++(1,J,ZM2)))
      SG3=SA+S9
      DUMMY(T,J,J)=HETA+(ADVEC+RESOLV+SGS+RESAND)
      DUNAY(1,J,+)=ADVECS+RESADD
      $16/1,J,1)#576(1,J,1)#8F80EV+H(T,J,Z0)
      $16(1,J,2)=SIG(1,J,2)+868**(1,J,70)
  200 CONTINUE
  210 CONTINUE
      RETURN
```

```
ADECK DINGCE
     SUBROUTINE DIVICE (20,241,2Mp,201,202,00EF7)
*********************
C THIS SUPPOPTING CALCULATES THE DIVERGENCE OF (1, 4,8) FOR THE PLANE 204
C THEN THE VALUE IS STORED IN DUMNY (T. J.A).
                                        *******************
C + + + '
     INTEGER 20,241,742,741,242
     DIMENSION M(15,16,5), V(16,16,5), W(16,16,5), DUMMY(16,16,6)
     COMMON/DATAS/U,V.W
     CONNEN/DATAD/DUMMY
     COMMON/DATA9/IMAX, JMAX, LMAX, NHALF, NAVG, NLEN, NSPEC
     JTEST=JMAX=1
     TTEST=IMAX=1
     10 210 J=1, JHAX
     JJ=J
     JM2=J=2
     J#1=J-1
     JP1=J+1
     165=1+5
     1F (J .G. 2) UD 10 30
     CO TO (10,20),J
  10 JMS=JMAX=1
     JM1=JMAX
     GO TO 60
  20 JM2=JMAX
     GC TO 60
  30 JF (JJ .LT. JTEST) GO TO 60
     S+X4H5#CC=11
     CO TO (40,50),J1
  40 JP2=1
   · GO TO 60
  50 JP1=1
```

 \mathbf{N}

END



```
S=S4C
  60 CONTINUE
     00 200 I=1, IMAX
     142=1=2
     IM1=1-1
     TP1=1+1
     1P2=1+2
     1F (1 .67. 2) 60 10 90
     GO TO (70, 60),I
  70 142=143x=1
     J=1=1=Ax
     GO TO 120
  SO IM2±IMAX
     00 10 120
  90 JF (I .LT. ITEST) GO TO 120
     5+4941=1=11
     GG TO (100,110), I1
 100 TP2=1
     00 TO 120
 110 JP1=1
     SaSAL
 120 CONTINUE
     D1V=0(1*2,J,Z0)=0(152,J,Z0)+V(1,J=2,Z0)=V(1,JP2,Z0)
     DIV=01V+*(1,J,7~P)=*(1,J,7P2)
     S=H(1P1, J, 703-H(141, J, 70)+V(T, JP1, 20)-V(T, JH1, 20)
     S=S+~(I,J,ZP1)++(T,J,ZM1)
     01v=01v+8.*$
     DUMMY(T, 1, E)=DTV+COEF7
 200 CONTINUE
 210 CONTINUE
     RETURN
     END
                     . . .
                                   • •
*DECK START
     SUBREUTINE STAFT/CDEF3, CDEF11, DELTA)
C THIS SUPPOUTINE INITIATES THE CONSTANTS FOR FET ROHTINES, .
DIMENSION TAR(8,3), TRI(8,3), GR(16), GI(10), NWAVE(10), NEFT(3)
     COMMON/DATAS/GP, GI, TRP, TRI
     COMMON/DATAN/NWAVE, NEFT
     COMMEN/CATA9/IMAX, JMAX, LMAX, MHALF, NAVE, MEN, NSPEC
     DATA NWAVE/1,9,5,13,3,11,7,15,2,10,6,14,9,12,6,16/
     COFF3=1./16.**3
     COEF11=3,1415926535898/8,
     WFFT())=F
     NFFT(2)=4
     NFFT(3)=2
     00 30 J=1,3
      TFR(1,J)=1.
      THI(1,J)=0.
  30 CONTINUE
     DO 40 1=2,8
     REFLOAT(T)=1.
     H=P+COEF11
     TER(1,1)=COS(B)
     TRT(I,1) = SIN(B)
  40 CONTINUE
```

ales a substances Status (Missiones)

```
00 50 1=2,4
      PSFLNAT(1)=1.
     8=2,*F+COEF11
      TRE(1,2)=COS(P)
      TRT(1,2)=+STN(B)
   SO CONTINUE
      RE4,+COEF11
     TRP(2,3)=CUS(P)
     (A)412+=(2,5)19T
     RETURN
     END
HOFCK FFTX
     SURROUTINE FFTX(Stan)
C FAST FOURTER TRANSFORM IN YADTRECTION
DIMENSION FRUIA, 161, FILLS, 161, TROLA, 3), TRILA, 31, GRUIA), GTULE)
    . , * FAVE (163, 1.FFT (3)
     COMMON/LA135/GR. GL. THU. TRT
     COMMUNICATION, FT
     COMMON/ONTAF/SWAVE, SFFT
     COMMON/DATA9/1MAX, JUAX, LMAX, WHALF, NAVG, MI EN, MSPEC
     TF (SIGN .L1. 6.) ON TO 3
     00 2 J=1. J44X
     DD 1 1=1,1MAY
     FI(T.J)=0,
   1 CONTINUE .
                  . .. . . . . .
   5 CONTINUE
   3 CONTINUE
     DU 100 J=1, JMAX
                                                    ï
     JPEJ
     00 20 MM=1,3
     IENC=0
     INCRENFFT(MM)
                                                       .
     TFFO
   5 CONTINUE
     TSTART=1+IP
     JEND=ISTAPT+1NCR=1
     Mat
      DO 10 ISJART, JEND
      JP=J+INCR
     GUUN1=FR(1,J)+FR(1P,JP)
     GDUM2=FI(1,J)+FI(JP, JP)
     GOL+3=FR(],J)=FR(]P,JA)
     GOUMAEFI(1,J)=FI(1P,JP)
     GDUMESEGCUMESTRR (M. MIDEGRUMAETRJ(M. MV)ESIGM
     ADDNASSOUNS*TRI(F,MN)*SIGN+GNUMU+TRR(M,MM)
     FR(1,J)=GOUD1
     FILLFJJ=GDUMS
     FR(IP, JP)=GDINS
     FI(IP,JE)=GDUMA
     MEM+1
  10 CONTINUE
     IF (IP .IT. IMAX) GO TO 5
  SU CONTINUE
C
     FIFTH 1,2,3, ETC.
  60 00 70 T=1, IMAX,2
```

. · ·

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

116

1P=1+1

GR(])=GUUM1 2*U10=(I)IA RF(JP)=RDUM3 GI(IP)=GPUM4

DO AD TET, THAN IMEN-AVE(T) FE(14, J1868(1)) FJ(T*,J)=G1(T)

70 CONTINUE

AN CONTINUE 100 CONTINUE RETURN END

С

GDUH1=FH(1,J)+FH(IP,JP)GOUM2=FI(I,J)+FI(IP,JP) GDUM3=FH(1, J)=FF(1P, JP) GOUM4 = F1(I, J) = FI(IP, JP)

LET THANSFURPED VALUE DROERED

117

ADECK FFTY SURFOUTINE FFTY (SIGN, COFF3) C**** ******** C FAST FOURIER TRANSFORM IN VEDTRECTION 12777782204 FR(14,14);FT(14,14),TRR(8,3),TRT(8,3),AR(16),AT(16) COMPONIZATASZOR, GT. THR, TRI •• * $(x_1, x_2, \dots, x_n) \in \mathbb{R}^n$ COMMON/DATA7/FR, FI COMMON/DATAR/NHAVE, SFFT COMMUNICATA9/IMAX, JNAX, LMAX, NHALF, HAVG, MEEN, NSPEC (C Y-TRANSFORM DO 200 121, IMAX IP=I 00 120 MM=1,3 JENDED INERBNEFT(MM) IP=0 105 CONTINUE JSTART=1+JP TEND=ISTART+JHCP=1 M=1 DO 110 JEISTART, IEND JP=J+INCR GDEFFITER(1,J)+FF(IP,JP) GDUMS=FI(J,J)+FI(IP,JP) GOUN 3=FR(I,J)=FP(JP,JP) GDDM###FI(I,J)#FT(TP,JP) EDNHSEEDNH3+TRREM, MMS+EDNHU+TRT(M, MMS+SIGN GDUU6=GDUU3+TET(0,MM)+STGM+GDUM4+TEH(0,MM) FR(],J)=GOUN1 F1(J,J)=GDUM2 FR(TP, JP)=GOUM5 FI(JP, JP)=GDHMA M=++1 110 CONTINNE JF (JP , LT. JMAX) GO TO 105 120 CONTINUE

118

an an an Araga. An Aragan

PETURN END *DECK FFTZ SUBROUTINE FFTZ(STGN, HH, H) C FAST FOURTER TRANSFORM TH 7-DERECTION CIMENSICH HMC16,16,16), HC16,16,16),HOUNC16,2),TPE(A,3),TPT(A,3), =GR(10), GT(16), Nr AVE(16), WEET(3) COMMON/DATAS/GR. GT. TPR. TRI COMMON/DATA8/LHAVE, SFFT COMMENIZATER/IMEX, JMEX, LMEX, NHALF, NAVE, NEEN, NSPEC XAMI.121 005 00 XAMI.121 005 00 DO 120 MME1.3 TEND=0 INCR=NFFT(MM) LP=0 105 CONTINUE ISTART=1+LP TENDEISTAPT+INCR=1 Ma1 DO 110 LEISTART, JEND LP=L+INCR 11141=HM(J,J,L)+HM(T,J,LP) ₽UM2=H(1,J,L)+H(1,J,LP) - DUM3#HM(1,J,L)+HM(1,J,LP) DUM4=H(1, J,L)=H(1, J,LP) DUNS=DUN3+THR(M, HM)=DUM4+TRT(M, MM)+STGN DUM6=DUM3+TEI(M,MM)+SIGN+DUM#+THR(M,MM) HH(I,J,L)=DUH1 H(I,J,L)=DUMS

5, XAML, 1=1, JMAX, 2 JP=J+1 GDUM1=FP(1,J)+FP(1P,JP) GDUH2=FI(I+J)+FI(TP+JP) GDUH3=FR(1,J)=FH(10,JH) GDUM4=F1(],J)+F1(1P,JP) IF (SIGN . 17, 0.) GP TO 160 GR(J)=GDIP(1 GI(J)=GDUM2 GR(JP)=GDUM3 GI(JP)=GDUM4 GO TU 170 160 COPITINUE RR(J)=RDNH1+CDEF3 G1(J)=GCUM2+CCEF3 GR(JP)=GNUM3+CREF3 GI(JP)=GDUM4+CCEF3 170 CONTINUE GET FROERED SET C 00 186 J=1, JHAX JMENHAVE (J) FR(1.JM)=GR(J) F1(1,JM)=61(J) 180 CONTINUE 200 CONTINUE

JM1=JJ=1 JP1=JJ+1 TF (JJ .EQ. 1) JM1#JMAX TF (JJ .EQ. JMAX) JP1#1 DU 200 1=1, IMAX 1,M1=1=1 IP1=1+1 TE (I .ER. 1) TETETHAY IF (I .EO, IMAX) IPI#1 84=51+52+53 K(T, JJ, Z)=COEF2+SORT(S4) 210 CONTINUE RETURN END

• • ·

SUBRUUTINE VISCV(20,211,7P1,7,COEF2)

C THIS SUPROVITINE CALCULATES THE EDDY VISCOSITY BY VORTICITY MODEL. INTEGER 20,201,201.2 REAL K. MLEN, NAVG DIMENSTON U(16,16,5),V(16,16,5),W(16,16,5),SIG(16,16,3),K(16,16,3) COMPON/DATA1/U,V,* COMMUN/DATA3/SIG.K COMMON/DATA9/IMAX, JHAX, LMAX, WHALF, NAVG, NLEN, NSPEC . COEF2=C+DELTA+0.5 DO 210 JJ=1, J+AX S1= (+(1, JP1, 20)=+(1, JM1, 20)=+(1, JJ, 2P1)++(1, JJ, 7H1))++2 SP= (U(1,JJ,7P1)=U(1,JJ,7V1)=U(TP1,JJ,7U)+#(IV1,JJ,70))*+2 \$3=(V(1P1,JJ,Z0)=V(1P1,JJ,Z0)=U(1,JP1,Z0) +U(1,JP1,Z0))*+2 200 CONTINUE

119

.

H(I,J,LP)=00M6 MEMA1 110 CONTINUE IF (LP .LT. LMAX) GO TO 105 120 CONTINUE 00 170 L=1,LMAX,2 LP=L+1 DUhj=h(I,J,L)+H(I,J,LF) $\mathsf{NUMP=HP}(\mathsf{T},\mathsf{J},\mathsf{L})+\mathsf{HP}(\mathsf{T},\mathsf{J},\mathsf{LP})$ DUM3=H(I,J,L)=H(],J,LP) $\mathbb{D}UMU = H^{\mu}(T, J, L) = H^{\mu}(T, J, LP)$ HDUM(L,1)=DUM1 HDUF(L,2)=0042 HOUM (LP, 1)=DUM3 HOUM(LP,2)=DUM4 170 CUNTINUE GET ORDERED SET С DO 100 LET.LMAX LMENNAVE(L) H(T,J,LH)=HOUM(L,1) FM(T,J,L*)=FDU*(L,2) 180 CONTINUE 200 CONTINUE RETURN END

DECK VISCUDET

С

HM(T,J,LP)=DUH5

19. ANDE 2000 化合同 医无脊髓膜 他

+DECK VISCSMAG SUBROUTINE VISCS(Z0,741,7P1,7,COEF2) C THIS SUPPONITIVE CALCULATES THE EDDY VISCOSITY BY SMAGOPINSKY MODEL. . # TNIEGER 70,211,251,2 REAL #, MLEN, AVG CIMENSION U(16,16,5),V(16,14,5),V(16,16,5),SIG(16,16,3),K(16,16,3) COMMON/DATA1/U, V.V COMMEN/DATA3/STG, P COMMON/DATA9/IMAX, JMAX, LMAX, HMALF, MANG, NEEN , MSPEC **C** -CCFF2=C+DELTA+0,5 JTFST=JMAY=1 TTESTETMAX+1 PO 210 JUST, JNAY JEJJ J-12=JJ-2 JF1=JJ=1 JP1=JJ+1JF5=JJ+2 TF (JJ .GT. 21 GP TO 30 CO TO (10,20),JJ 10 JE 2= JHAX=1 JH1=JMAX GO TO 60 en Jrestray GO TO 60 30 TF (JJ .LT. JTEST) GO TO 60 • • S+XAML-ULEIL GD TD (40,50), J1 40 JF2=1 i 60 TO 60 50 .1P2=2 JP1=1 EN CONTINUE 00 200 I=1, IMAX 1#2=1-2 J#1=1=1 IF1=I+1 1P2=1+2 1F (1 .GT. 2) GG TO 90 GO TO (70,80), I TO IMELIMAX-1 TM1=IHAX 60 TO 120 80 142=1MAX GO TO 120 90 TF (I .LT. ITEST) 60 TO 120 T1=1=1"AY+2 GD TU (100+110),11 100 192=1 GC TO 120 110 TP2=2 191:1 120 CONTINUE \$1=(U(1P1, J, 70)=U(1M1, J, 70))++2 +(V(1, 1P1, 70)+V(1, JM1, 70))++2 1 + (W(J, J, ZP1) = w(J, J, ZM1)) + + ?

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

~

120

	\$2=(U(I,JP1,ZG)=U(I,JP1,ZO)+V(TP1,J,ZO)=V(IM1,J,ZO))++2
	\$3={U{1,J,2P1}=U{1,J,7P1}+F{1P1,J,20}=W{1*1,J,70}}**2
	\$4=(V(T,J,ZF1)=\(T,J,ZH1)++(T,JP1,Z0)=H(T,JH1,Z0))++2
	S5=2, +S1+S2+S3+S4
	*(I,J,Z)=COEF2+SGRT(S5)
2(:)	CONTINUE
210	CONTINUE
	FETUHN
	END

. SAMFILE	INPUT					•	
1 16 1	6 16 1 15	1					
1,5	0,00625	0.26	2.	0	1000.	0.	
65.	130	301.	386	379	325	58C.	Saw.
214	183.	A9	44	22.	12.	6,4	3.5
1,7	0 . R	0.	ń,	0.	U .	0.	0.
65.	130	301.	386	379	325	586.	24R.
214	183.	80	44	.55	12.	6.4	5.5
1.7	0.8	0.	0	٥.	α.	a'.	4.

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

REFERENCES

- Arakawa, A., 1966, "Computational design of long-term numerical integration of the equations of fluid motions: I. Two-dimensional incompressible flow," J. Comp. Phys., Vol. 1, 1, p. 119.
- Cochran, W. T., et al, 1967, "What is the Fast Fourier Transform?," <u>Proc. IEEE</u>, Vol. <u>55</u>, 10, p. 1664.
- Comte-Bellot, G. and S. Corrsin, 1971, "Simple Eulerian time correlation of full- and narrow-band velocity signals in grid-generated 'isotropic' turbulence," J. Fluid Mech., Vol. <u>48</u>, part 2, p. 273.
- Deardorff, J. W., 1970a, "A numerical study of three-dimensional turbulent channel flow at large Reynolds numbers," <u>J. Fluid Mech.</u>, Vol. <u>41</u>, p. 453.
- Deardorff, J. W., 1970b, "A three-dimensional numerical investigation of the idealized planetary boundary layer," Geophys. Fluid Dyn., Vol. 1, p. 377.
- Deardorff, J. W., 1971, "On the magnitude of the subgrid scale eddy coefficient," <u>J. Comp. Phys.</u>, Vol. <u>7</u>, p. 120.
- Deardorff, J. W., 1973, "The use of subgrid transport equations in a three-dimensional model of atmospheric turbulence," <u>J. Fluid</u> Engineering, Sept. 1973, p. 429.
- Fox, D. G. and J. W. Deardorff, 1972, "Computer method for solution of multidimensional, nonlinear, subsonic incompressible flow," <u>J. Heat Transfer</u>, Nov. 1972, p. 377.
- Fox, D. G. and D. K. Lilly, 1972, "Numerical simulation of turbulent flows," <u>Rev. Geophys. Space Phys.</u>, Vol. 10, 1, p. 51.
- Grant, H. L. and I. C. T. Nisbet, 1957, "The inhomogeneity of grid turbulence, <u>J. Fluid Mech.</u>, Vol. <u>2</u>, p. 263.
- Jain, P., 1967, "Numerical study of the Navier-Stokes equations in three dimensions," MRC Technical Summary Rep. No. 751, University of Wisconsin, Madison, Wisconsin.
- Leonard, A., 1973, "On the energy cascade in large-eddy simulations of turbulent fluid flows," Report No. TF-1, Mechanical Engineering Department, Stanford University or <u>Advances in Geophys</u>., Vol. <u>18A</u>. p. 237.
- Leonard, A., 1975, "Numerical study of the energy loss of large eddies in turbulent flow simulations," to be published.

ORIGINAL PAGE IS OF POOR QUALITY

- Lilly, D. K., 1964, "Numerical solutions for the shape preserving twodimensional thermal convection element," J. Atmos. Sci., Vol. 21, p. 83.
- Lilly, D. K., 1965, "On the computational stability of numerical solutions of time-dependent non-linear geophysical fluid dynamics problems," Mon. Weather Rev., Vol. <u>93</u>, 1, p. 11.
- Lilly, D. K., 1966, "On the application of the eddy viscosity concept in the inertial sub-range of turbulence," NCAR Manuscript No. 123.
- Lilly, D. K., 1967, "The representation of small-scale turbulence in numerical simulation experiments," Proc. of the IBM Scientific Computing Symposium on Environmental Sciences, IBM Form No. 320-1951, p. 195.
- Lumley, J. L. and B. Khajeh-Nouri, 1974, "Computational modeling of turbulent transport," Adv. in Geophysics, Vol. 18A, p. 169.
- Orszag, S. A., 1969, "Numerical methods for the simulation of turbulence," <u>Phys. Fluids</u>, Sup. II, p. II250.
- Orszag, S. A., 1971a, "Numerical simulation of incompressible flows within simple boundaries. I. Galerkin (spectral) representation," <u>Studies</u> in <u>Applied Math.</u>, Vol. <u>1</u>, 4, p. 293.
- Orszag, S. A., 1971b, "Numerical simulation of incompressible flows within simple boundaries: accuracy," J. Fluid Mech., Vol. <u>49</u>, p. 75.
- Orszag, S. A. and M. Israelli, 1974, "Numerical simulation of viscous incompre-sible flows," Ann. Rev. Fluid Mech., Vol. <u>6</u>, p. 281.
- Phillips, N. A., 1959, <u>The Atmosphere and Sea in Motion</u>, Rockefeller Institute Press, New York, 501-504.
- Reynolds, W. C., 1974a, "Recent advances in the computation of turbulent flows," Advances in Chem. Engrg., Vol. 9, (Reprint of Report MD-27, Mechanical Engineering Department, Stanford University.)
- Reynolds, W. C., 1974b, "Computation of turbulent flows," AIAA 7th Fluid and Plasma Dynamics Conference, AIAA paper No. 74-556.
- Reynolds, W. C., 1975, "Computation of turbulent flows," Report No. TF-4 Mechanical Engineering Department, Stanford University, or <u>Annual</u> Review of Fluid Mech., Vol. 8.

Rotta, J. C., 1951, Zeitschrift für Physik, I: 129, p. 547.

- Schumann, U., 1973, "Ein Verfarhren zur direckten numerischen simulation turbulenter strömungen in platten- und ringspaltkanälen and über seine anwendung zur untersuchung von turbulenzmodellen," Univesität Karlsruhe. (NASA Technical Translation, NASA TT F 15,391.)
- Schumann, U., 1974, "Subgrid scale model for finite difference simulation of turbulent flows in plane channels and annuli," in press.
- Smagorinsky, J., 1963, "General circulation experiments with the primitive equations," Mo. Weather Rev., Vol. <u>93</u>, 3, p. 99.
- Smagorinsky, J., S. Manabe, and J. L. Holloway, 1965, <u>Mon. Weather Rev.</u>, Vol. <u>93</u>, p. 727.
- Tennekes, H. and J. L. Lumley, 1972, <u>A First Course in Turbulence</u>, M.I.T. Press.
- Tucker, H. J. and A. J. Reynolds, 1968, "The distortion of turbulence by irrotational plane strain," J. Fluid Mech., Vol. 32, part 4, p. 657.
- Uberoi, M. S., 1963, "Energy transfer in isotropic turbulence," <u>Phys.</u> <u>Fluids</u>, Vol <u>6</u>, 8, p. 1048.
- Uzkan, T. and W. C. Reynolds, 1967, "A shear-free turbulent boundary layer," J. Fluid Mech., Vol. 28, part 4, p. 803.